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2020 2019 2018
2022 2021 © © ©
151,865 153,366 142,798 132,989 110,388
(2,971,998)  (3,001,373) (2,794,557) (2,602,595) (2,160,293)
45,040 43,639 37,928 37,450 33,722
(881,433)  (854,015) (742,251) (732,897) (659,940)
44,807 43,407 37,835 37,359 33,660
(876,873)  (849,475) (740,431) (731,116) (658,726)
507,883 482,489 453,470 384,992 321,493
(9,939,270)  (9,442,310) (8,874,408) (7,534,293) (6.,291,618)
54,032 54,032 54,032 52,489 52,489
(1,057,406)  (1,057,406) (1,057,406) (1,027,210) (1,027,210)
6,300,510 5,902,069 5,368,163 4,733,490 4,357,334
(123,300,981) (115,503,490)  (105,054,950) (92,634,399)  (85,273,026)
7.46 6.99 6.45 6.10 5.55
OF
)
(146) (137) (126) (119) (109)
0.74 0.71 0.68 0.68 0.61
(O
(14) (14) (13) (13) (12)
0.67 0.65 0.61 0.62 0.55
@ )
13) 13) 12) 12) 1)
-56,398 ~112,242 117,169 65,100 19,514
(-1,103,709)  (-2,196,576) (2,292,997) (1,274,007) (381,8839)
(103,094) -93,410 ~173,562 -74,423 55,765
(-2,017,550) (-1,828,034)  (-3,396,608)  (-1,456,458) (1,01,321)
70,566 286,039 86,748 -61,453 -37,444
-1,380,977  (5,597,783) (1,607,658)  (-1,202,635) (-732,779)
136,664 222,583 145,076 117,499 187,680
(2,674,514)  (4,355,949) (2.839,137) (2,299, 455) (3.672,898)
0.74 0.77 0.75 0.82 0.80
(ROAA)
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10.27 10.64 10.72 11.77
(RoAE) 5
Tier 8.72 8.91 9.02 9.20 9.15
Tier 11.01 11.41 11.75 11.08 10.09
12.95 13.37 13.90 13.47 13.01

2022 2,971 1,840
2021
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)
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)
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(©)
6.75
8.01
6.57
113,655
2.09
4.97
3.21
1.25
0.02
187.93
2022 45

12.95

8.72

6,300,510
3,572,276
3,917,168

151,865
1.34

44,674

1.96
0.91
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)
2022 2021 /
113,655 112,155 1,500
26,744 27,314 (570)
2,470 2,193 277
49 24 25
6,416 10,092 (3,676)
858 115 743
484 3 481
1,189 1,470 (281)
45,227 45,540 (313)
50,600 54,772 4,172)
9 23 (14)
63 90 Q@7
55,966 52,941 3,025
10,926 9,302 1,624
45,040 43,639 1,401
44,807 43,407 1,400
151,865 1,501 0.98
74.84 1.71
17.61 0.20
2022 2021
74.84 73.13
17.61 17.81
7.55 9.06
100.00 100.00
113,655 1,500 1.34
1.93 14
2.01 15
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2022 2021
(%) Q)
3,470,892 172,825 4.98 3,203,836 163,736 5.11
109,329 6,084 5.56 109,473 6,358 5.81
1,533,559 53,358 3.48 1,403,509 52,273 3.72
319,628 4,619 1.45 327,307 4,800 1.47
229,349 4,423 1.93 149,687 2,167 1.45
5,662,757 241,309 4.26 5,193,812 229,334 4.42
241,309 229,334
3,759,684 86,392 2.30 3,486,521 77,558 2.22
846,774 18,142 2.14 902,139 22,099 2.45
881,759 23,120 2.62 599,017 17,522 2.93
5,488,217 127,654 2.33 4,987,677 117,179 2.35
127,654 117,179
113,655 112,155
1.93 2.07
2.01 2.16
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13,648 (4,559) 9,089
®) (266) 274)
4,844 (3,759) 1,085
(113) (68) (181)
1,153 1,103 2,256
19,524 (7,549) 11,975
6,077 2,757 8,834
(1,356) (2,601) (3,957)
8,271 (2,673) 5,598
12,992 (2,517) 10,475
6,532 (5,032) 1,500
241,309 11,975 5.22
()
9,089 5.55
172,825
2022 2021
(%) Q)
1,874,288 81,033 4.32 1,765,900 77,042 4.36
1,479,464 89,442 6.05 1,358,655 84,417 6.21
117,140 2,350 2.01 79,281 2,277 2.87
3,470,892 172,825 4.98 3,203,836 163,736 5.11
)
1,085 2.08 53,358

49/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

oOoOooodn
)
4,423 2,256 104.11
127,654 10,475 8.94
)
86,392 8,834
11.39
2022 2021
) Q)
2,836,706 64,098 2.26 2,680,063 57,786 2.16
845,312 8,824 1.04 849,964 7,564 0.89
1,991,394 55,274 2.78 1,830,099 50,222 2.74
922,978 22,294 2.42 806,458 19,772 2.45
234,195 968 0.41 234,932 1,005 0.43
688,783 21,326 3.10 571,526 18,767 3.28
3,759,684 86,392 2.30 3,486,521 77,558 2.22
)
18,142 3,957
17.91
)
23,120 5,598

31.95
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26,744 570 2.09
2022 2021
30,077 30,131
1,335 1,412
13,067 13,084
2,303 2,681
4,677 3,976
1,486 1,500
3,149 3,725
2,058 1,872
2,002 1,881
(3,333) (2,817)
26,744 27,314
11,466 2,431 17.49
2022 2021
2,470 2,193
49 24
6,416 10,092
858 115
484 3
1,189 1,470
11,466 13,897
45,227 313 0.69

28.62 0.02
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2022 2021
22,237 21,990
7,327 6,743
1,766 1,620
13,897 15,187
45,227 45,540
50,609 4,186 7.64
2022 2021
47,668 50,646
47,366 50,766
302 (120)
500 233
2,062 5,229
815 619
(436) (1,932)
50,609 54,795

10,926 1,624 17.46
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®
398,441 (6.75 6,300,510
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
% %
3,572,276 3,307,304
10,255 8,981
(83,180) (76,889)
3,499,351 55.55 3,239,396 54.89
108,012 1.71 109,053 1.85
32,073 0.51 51,189 0.87
356,426 5.66 378,263 6.41
2,062,342 32.73 1,849,721 31.34
7,187 0.11 6,426 0.11
130,007 2.06 169,513 2.87
165 0.00 256 0.00
26,174 0.42 25,155 0.43
10,281 0.16 10,953 0.19
1,281 0.02 1,281 0.02
32,703 0.52 19,895 0.34
34,508 0.55 40,968 0.68
6,300,510 100.00 5,902,069 100.00
)
3,572,276 264,972
8.01 55.55
0.66
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q) Q)
1,931,450 54.07 1,790,819 54.15
1,519,119 42.53 1,430,750 43.26
121,707 3.40 85,735 2.59
3,572,276 100.00 3,307,304 100.00
)
2,062,342
212,621 32.73

1.39
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
%) )
403,617 19.57 383,666 20.74
15,730 0.76 13,705 0.74
449,596 21.81 325,695 17.61
1,192,273 57.81 1,125,530 60.85
1,126 0.05 1,125 0.06
2,062,342 100.00 1,849,721 100.00
678,081 100,302
61.49
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
%) )
100,233 14.78 51,395 8.90
416,943 61.49 412,129 71.33
160,905 23.73 114,255 19.77
678,081 100.00 577,779 100.00
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) 10
21,870 4.04 2027 10 -
19,290 4.24 2027 24 -
18,150 3.05 2026 25 -
14,930 4.39 2027 -
13,700 3.18 2026 -
12,480 3.86 2029 20 -
12,420 4.04 2028 -
12,140 4.65 2028 11 -
11,550 4.73 2025 -

10 10,670 3.63 2026 19 -
)
6,019
4,738 1,281
)
5,790,497 372,794
6.88
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
%) (%)
63,386 1.09 101,180 1.87
3,917,168 67.65 3,675,743 67.85
540,668 9.34 526,259 9.71
188,601 3.26 179,626 3.32
27 0.00 67 0.00
14,261 0.25 13,337 0.25
92,980 1.61 80,600 1.49
19,006 0.33 16,777 0.31
11,141 0.19 6,535 0.12
10,151 0.17 10,736 0.20
875,971 15.13 763,532 14.09
57,137 0.98 43,311 0.79
5,790,497 100.00 5,417,703 100.00
3,917,168 241,425

6.57

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) (%)
2,774,476 70.83 2,755,687 74.97
1,222,309 31.20 1,149,318 31.27
1,552,167 39.63 1,606,369 43.70
1,066,501 27.22 858,116 23.35
259,400 6.62 255,458 6.95
807,101 20.60 602,658 16.40
6,917 0.18 6,519 0.17
69,274 1.77 55,421 1.51
3,917,168 100.00 3,675,743 100.00

507,883 25,394
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

54,032 54,032

109,062 109,062

58,434 58,434
(590) 3,152

26,245 26,245

81,401 75,596

179,299 155,968

507,883 482,489
2,130 1,877

510,013 484,366

1,379,424 9,820
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
367,128 361,385
724,330 669,088
116,297 121,565
171,484 217,381
185 185
1,379,424 1,369,604
©
56,398
354,707
226,169
103,094
733,672
893,056
70,566
930,514 818,471

57/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

(10)

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

Q) ()
379,002 19.62 331,050 18.49
320,176 16.58 316,576 17.68
268,954 13.92 242,545 13.55
178,649 9.25 197,503 11.03
160,716 8.32 149,726 8.36
151,748 7.86 131,822 7.36
110,579 5.73 95,893 5.35
85,008 4.40 76,557 4.27
72,531 3.76 55,328 3.09
65,622 3.40 63,098 3.52
138,465 7.16 130,721 7.30
1,931,450 100.00 1,790,819 100.00

1,519,119 1,430,750

121,707 85,735

3,572,276 3,307,304

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

) ()
841,441 23.56 750,167 22.68
610,286 17.08 578,837 17.50
511,900 14.33 455,150 13.76
465,674 13.04 429,285 12.98
446,599 12.50 431,443 13.05
106,440 2.98 107,845 3.26
473,669 13.26 447,812 13.54
116,267 3.25 106,765 3.23
3,572,276 100.00 3,307,304 100.00
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q) (%)
1,192,422 33.38 1,076,478 32.55
845,036 23.66 765,976 23.16
1,188,728 33.28 1,117,183 33.78
346,090 9.68 347,667 10.51
3,572,276 100.00 3,307,304 100.00

10
2022 12 31
(@) (@)
9,650 0.28 1.63
5,870 0.16 0.99
5,000 0.14 0.84
4,734 0.13 0.80
4,216 0.12 0.71
4,200 0.12 0.71
3,986 0.11 0.67
3,690 0.10 0.62
3,411 0.10 0.57
10 3,365 0.09 0.57
48,122 1.35 8.11
CBIRC

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) (%)
3,461,714 96.91 3,204,469 96.89
65,888 1.84 61,469 1.86
25,037 0.70 23,012 0.70
13,427 0.38 12,513 0.37
6,210 0.17 5,841 0.18
3,572,276 100.00 3,307,304 100.00
3,527,602 98.75 3,265,938 98.75
44,674 1.25 41,366 1.25
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2022 2021 2021 2020
12 31 12 31 2022 12 31
2.05 2.22 -0.17 3.35
27.78 49.40 -21.62 43.43
80.68 76.00 +4.68 83.11
51.43 74.64 -23.21 67.65
)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) ()]
4,404 0.12 4,634 0.14
90
19 0.00 70 0.00
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
() )
32,182 46.04 29,839 45.41
24,223 34.65 24,339 37.04
11,519 16.48 10,139 15.43
1,979 2.83 1,387 2.12
69,903 100.00 65,704 100.00
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) Q)]
28,099 62.90 25,846 62.48
16,575 37.10 15,520 37.52
44,674 100.00 41,366 100.00
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Q)] )]
9,326 20.88 9,845 23.80
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6,099 13.65 4,148 10.03
5,078 11.37 5,867 14.18
4,724 10.57 4,734 11.45
4,428 9.91 4,992 12.07
4,186 9.37 3,497 8.45
7,483 16.75 8,275 20.00
3,350 7.50 8 0.02
44,674 100.00 41,366 100.00

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

) (%)
8,578 19.20 10,935 26.44
6,952 15.56 2,436 5.89
4,216 9.44 2,887 6.98
1,858 4.16 2,105 5.09
1,582 3.54 704 1.70
1,053 2.36 2,152 5.20
603 1.35 605 1.46
573 1.28 558 1.35
362 0.81 84 0.20
147 0.33 1,350 3.26
2,175 4.87 2,030 4.91
28,099 62.90 25,846 62.48
16,575 37.10 15,520 37.52
44,674 100.00 41,366 100.00
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) Q)
12,625 28.26 12,546 30.33
9,241 20.69 7,352 17.77
19,978 44.72 19,045 46.04
2,830 6.33 2,423 5.86
44,674 100.00 41,366 100.00
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
440 529
440 529
(202) (202)
238 327
PD
LGD
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
() 76,889 75,533
) 47,366 50,766
7,505 5,757
@) (758) (907)
(47,828) (54,253)
6 )
D) 83,180 76,889
L/C
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8,933 49,036
36,461 206 146
12,223 22,766
(11

2022 2021
28,355 14,987 27,675 12,869
27,202 12,488 26,509 10,017
26,434 11,693 25,794 11,306
21,625 4,644 20,719 3,270
18,587 7,811 19,756 6,455
5,889 (1,279) 5,999 (2,813)
20,771 5,161 24,193 10,346
3,002 461 2,721 1,491
151,865 55,966 153,366 52,941

2022 2021
57,619 25,844 59,693 19,672
65,998 6,358 63,380 10,598
28,051 23,776 29,953 22,563
197 12) 340 108
151,865 55,966 153,366 52,941
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(12)
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
32,073 51,189 -37.34
28 31,164 -99.91
449,596 325,695 38.04
32,703 19,895 64.38
63,386 101,180 -37.35
11,141 6,535 70.48
57,137 43,311 31.92
2022 2021
6,416 10,092 -36.42
858 115 646.09
484 3 16,033.33
()
38,900 235,701 231,721
)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
101 3 98
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)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
18,045 25,750 (7,705)
)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
816 692 124
(13)
FPA
57,619
2,074 3.47 37.94
FPA 4.7 420 963,900
81,100  9.19 7.05
2,781,300 19,280
0.70 99,467 4.29
1,931,450 140,631 7.85
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130
9,305

54,243
Increases and Two Controls)
305,317 68,316
46
FPA
429,394
M&A M&A
E
1,426

425,288

28,653

28.82

715

M&A
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(Two

33,163
0.67

ME&A

12,223

9,031

454,174
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65,998 2,618 4.13
43.46 47,496
6.15 41.79
0.71 18,502 48.42
( ) 147,064,100
500,000 10.76
CEB
255,635,200 28.71
MAU 58,408,100 2,424.034

14.21

CEB

1,066,594 208,292 24.27
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1,055,390
AUM
8,021
®
DSC
10,000
6,000
IC
5.5
20
NAV
90 1,800
AIP
300
56,526
67,057 13.38

CEB

0.97
25.70

®

36
24

45.47

6,505 13
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14.35
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35.16

2,662

24

©

40,000

51.31

28.31

Yao
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3,306.8
0.25

99.41

20.51 2,569

589

820
64.33
20
300,082

CEB

23,028.3

153
20.35

GMV

REIT
AUM
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7.0 (MAU) 13,975.7
NGCC-1BS
2,756.607
3.44 465,348
43,968
CEB
14,491
2,228 18.17
75 11.23
22.41 676,251
13.79
( ) 53
191,862
10.0
CEB 57,467.2
22.62
44.91
ESG
FPA
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743
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28,051 1,902 6.35
18.47
1,246,413 19.78 48.58

GMV
3,908 540,668
NAV
REIT
10
REIT
1,185,241
117,532 11.01 NAV
1,143,109 96.45
4.14 32,870

REIT
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20

23
1,307 39 115
1,153
460
150
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€3]

2022 12 31
@ (€H)
54,031,980,001 @
650,000,000 &
41,353,244,591 12,678,735,500
200,000,000 100,000,000
350,000,000
2022 12 31
1.00 54,031,980,001
100 650,000,000
5.30 3.90
4.80
2020 25 2021 11
4.45 4.01

741425
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(¢Y) Tier Tier 5.125
Tier
5.125
(2) Tier
Tier
1) SAFR
2)
SAFR
CSRC
SAFR
)
) 10
)
)
)
1.
2.
. ¢) )

@
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®3) 2022 12 31

2017 12 31 39,810,391,638 39,810,391,638
779,089

2018 88,858|  39,810,480,496 88,858 39,810,480,496
30 1.74 779,091

2018 49,358|  39,810,529,854 49,358 39,810,529, 854
12 31 0.97 779,092

2019 35,594|  39,810,565,448 35,594 39,810,565,448
30 0.70 779,093

2019 22,153  39,810,587,601 22,153 39,810,587,601
12 31 0.43 779,093

2020 9,564 39,810,597,165 9,564 39,810,597,165
30 0.19 779,093

2020 1.542.576,314D0|  41,353,173,479| 1,542,576,314 41,353,173,479
12 31 30,188.22 809,282

2021 5,841|  41,353,179,320 5,841 41,353,179,320
30 0.11 809,282

2021 3,375| 41,353,182,695 3,375 41,353,182,695
12 31 0.07 809,282

2022 3,393| 41,353,186,088 3,393 41,353,186,088
30 0.07 809,282

2022 58,503|  41,353,244,591 58,503 41,353,244,591
12 31 1.14 809,283

2022 12 31 41,353,244,591 41,353,244,591
809,283

1,542,553,191
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2017 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2018 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2019 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2020 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2021 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2022 12 31 12,678,735,500 12,678,735,500
248,123

2017 12 31 0 300,000,000 0

2018 12 31 0 300,000,000 0

2019 15 350,000,000 650,000,000 0

2019 12 31 0 650,000,000 0

2020 12 31 0 650,000,000 0

2021 12 31 0 650,000,000 0

2022 12 31 0 650,000,000 0

Tier
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)
2022 12 31
208,599 839
®)
2022 12 31 10
Q)
23,359,409,561 43.23
1,782,965,000 3.30
5,239,381,370 9.70
4,200,000,000 7.77
1,572,735,868 2.91
1,530,397,000 2.83
989,377,094 1.83
413,094,619 0.76
376,393,000 0.70
766,002,403 1.42
723,999,875 1.34
709,396,977 1.31
1,610
4,200 2022 12 22
5,239,381,370
1,605,286,000 282,684,000
172,965,000 3,178,446,370
709,396,977
10
2022 12 31 10

781425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

oOoOooodn
2022 12 31 23
Q)
32,400,000 16.20
26,700,000 13.35
15,500,000 7.75
15,500,000 7.75
15,500,000 7.75
11,640,000 5.82
10,224,000 5.11
10,000,000 5.00
10,000,000 5.00
7,786,000 3.89

10
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2022 12 31 23
Q)
11,890,000 11.89
10,080,000 10.08
10,000,000 10.00
8,180,000 8.18
7,200,000 7.20
6,540,000 6.54
6,370,000 6.37
5,800,000 5.80
5,210,000 5.21
4,570,000 4.57
10
2022 12 31 26
Q)
84,110,000 24.04
47,720,000 13.63
27,270,000 7.79
27,270,000 7.79
20,810,000 5.95
18,180,000 5.19
15,000,000 4.28
13,630,000 3.89
13,130,000 3.75
9,090,000 2.60

10
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10
2022
2022 44,807
2022 2,971
1,840 39,996
37,821
2022
@ 26,245 50
(2) MOF
1.5 4,608
(3) 10 1.90 2023 28
59,086 11,226
28.07
(C))
®)
100
2022 2021 2020
112.26 108.60 113.47
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€))
2022 12 31
RS ARG FRER =
CSRC
14
14 A.2.1
IT
CSRC
2020 69 2021
CSRC
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()

2022 19
37,232,832,798

2022 28
37,873,237,645

2022 12 29
37,336,505,012

)

2021

CBIRC

CBIRC

)
2023 28

2023 28

)

2022

2021
110
2022
46
2022
53
14 12
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95

11

45
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()
2/2 5/5 171 - - 2/2 - - -
2/3 9/11 2/3 - - - - - -
3/3 11711 - - 8/8 - - - -
3/3 10/11 - - - - - - 6/7
0/3 9/11 - 6/6 - - - - 77
2/3 11711 - - 8/8 - - - /7
1/3 11/11 - - 7/8 - - 6/7 -
0/3 11/11 - 6/6 8/8 - 3/3 777 -
2/3 11711 - 6/6 8/8 - 3/3 777 -
1/3 10/11 3/3 - - 5/5 3/3 6/7 -
2/3 11/11 - 6/6 - 5/5 3/3 777 -
3/3 11711 - - - 5/5 3/3 777 /7
1/3 11/11 3/3 6/6 - 4/4 - 6/6 -
- 1/1 - - - 1/1 - - -
2/2 9/9 3/3 - 6/7 - - - 5/6
2022 CBIRC
)
SAFR
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(

(

(

(

)

)

2023

)

2023

)

72

2022

39

2022

-2025

28

28

2023

56

2021

15

2021

2022
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2023 28
)
2023 28
)
2021
2023 28
)
2021
15

2023 28

AML

20

2021

17

14
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SAFR

2022

12

2023

2022

2022 12

3.13
3.13
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19
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2023

Q)
2023

)

)

28

28

ESG
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)
8/8 5/5 -
7/8 - 5/6
8/8 5/5 -
8/8 5/5 6/6
7/8 4/5 5/6
3/3 2/2 1/1
8/8 - 6/6
3/3 - 1/1
3/3 2/2 -
5/5 3/3 5/5
5/5 3/3 -
5/5 - 5/5
2022
()
23
D
16 2021
2021
2021
2021
2022 2021

2023 28
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2021
2023 28

)

)

)

)

2023 28

2021

2022
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(

(

(

)

)

)

14 C.1.4

2022 12 31
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2022

)

2022 12 31
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@
24 7.7
2022 2022 0
WANG Jiang
59
13
CPPCC 14
2020 0
WU Lijun
58
CSRC IT
CSRC
2023 0
WANG Zhiheng 2022 12
49
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2021 2020 0
QU Liang 2018
56
SO0A
2021 0
YAO Wei
47
DNMC
CGN
2019 12 0
LIU Chong
53
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oooooog
2021 0
LI Wei
52
«
MBA
2017 0
WANG Liguo
65
2019 0
SHAO Ruiqing
65
13
2019 0
HONG Yongmiao
59
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oooooono
2020 0
LI Yinquan
67
L 1ZHI INC.
2021 0
HAN Fuling
58
CSRC
MBA
2022
LIU Shiping
60
loT
XBRL
NGIU
1BM
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2021 0
LU Hong 2009
59
1994
2009
2021
2009 11 0
WU Junhao
57
2021 12 0
LI Yinzhong
58
2016 11 0
WANG Zhe
62
PBOC
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2019 0
QIAO Zhimin
70

PBOC
CBRC

2022 0
CHEN Qing
62

MBA
2018

2019 0
SHANG Wencheng)
47 )

2000

2022 0
YANG Wenhua)
54 )

2006
2022 0

LU Jian)
51 ) 2000
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( )
0
WANG Zhiheng
49
2020 12 0
DONG Tiefeng
55 PBOC
CBRC
0
Qu Liang
56
2020 2020 0
QI Ye
53
1992
2020 2020 0
YANG Bingbing 2021 10
52 2005
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2022 2022
ZHANG Xuyang
50

17
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CBRC
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€))

2006

)
)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Ernst & Young

2016
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)
2021 2022
2022 2021
12.66 2.96 12.48 7.16
3.72 0.59 3.15 1.30
16.38 3.55 15.63 8.46
)
)
2022
0.50
2.85
0.20
3.55
)
*

®
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59

131

193

100

5.1094

2022 12 31
IFRS
19.57 2023
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
241,309 4,722,417 229,334 4,488,066
(127,654) (2,498,189) (117,179) (2,293,193)
1 113,655 2,224,228 112,155 2,194,873
30,077 588,607 30,131 589,664
(3,333) (65,227) (2,817) (55,129)
2 26,744 523,380 27,314 534,535
3 2,470 48,338 2,193 42,917
49 959 24 470
4 6,416 125,561 10,092 197,500
858 16,791 115 2,251
484 9,472 3 59
1,189 23,269 1,470 28,768
151,865 2,971,998 153,366 3,001,373
5 (45,227) (885,092) (45,540) (891,218)
8 (50,600) (990,242) (54,772) (1,071,888)
©) (176) 23) (450)
56,029 1,096,488 53,031 1,037,817
(63) (1,233) (90) (1,761)
55,966 1,095,255 52,941 1,036,055
9 (10,926) (213,822) (9,302) (182,040)
45,040 881,433 43,639 854,015
44,807 876,873 43,407 849,475
233 4,560 232 4,540
45,040 881,433 43,639 854,015
( ) () ( ) )
10 0.74 14.48 0.71 13.89
10 0.67 13.11 0.65 12.72
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122 31
2022 2021

( ) ( ) ) (C )
45,040 881,433 43,639 854,015
(135) (2,642) (287) (5,617)
(135) (2,642) (287) (5.617)
(5,046) (98,750) 2,828 55,344
834 16,321 112 2,192
774) (15,147) (126) (2,466)
23(b) 1,201 23,504 (685) (13,405)
180 3,523 (83) (1,624)
(3.605) (70,550) 2,046 40,040
(3,740) (73,192) 1,759 34,424
41,300 808,241 45,398 888,439
41,065 803,642 45,166 883,899
235 4,599 232 4,540
41,300 808,241 45,398 888,439
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ( ) ) ( )
11 356,426 6,975,257 378,263 7,402,607
12 32,073 627,669 51,189 1,001,769
7,187 140,650 6,426 125,757
13 129,979 2,543,689 138,349 2,707,490
14 15,730 307,836 13,705 268,207
15 28 548 31,164 609,879
16 3,499,351 68,482,299 3,239,396 63,394,980
17 108,012 2,113,795 109,053 2,134,167
18 2,046,612 40,052,197 1,836,016 35,930,833
403,617 7,898,785 383,666 7,508,344
449,596 8,798,594 325,695 6,373,851
1,126 22,036 1,125 22,016
1,192,273 23,332,783 1,125,530 22,026,622
19 165 3,229 256 5,010
20 26,174 512,225 25,155 492,283
21 10,281 201,199 10,953 214,350
22 1,281 25,069 1,281 25,069
23 32,703 639,998 19,895 389,345
24 34,508 675,322 40,968 801,744
6,300,510 123,300,981 5,902,069 115,503,490
26 63,386 1,240,464 101,180 1,980,093
27 540,668 10,580,873 526,259 10,298,889
28 188,601 3,690,922 179,626 3,515,281
29 27 528 67 1,311
14 14,261 279,088 13,337 261,005
30 92,980 1,819,619 80,600 1,577,342
31 3,917,168 76,658,978 3,675,743 71,934,291
32 19,006 371,947 16,777 328,326
33 11,141 218,029 6,535 127,890
34 10,151 198,655 10,736 210,104
35 875,971 17,142,752 763,532 14,942,321
36 57,137 1,118,171 43,311 847,596
5,790,497 113,320,026 5,417,703 106,024,448

107/425

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

122 31
2022 2021
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
37 54,032  1,057,406.00 54,032 1,057,406
38 109,062  2,134,343.00 109,062 2,134,343
64,906  1,270,210.00 64,906 1,270,210
39,993 782,663.00 39,993 782,663
39 58,434 1,143,553 58,434 1,143,553
40 (590) (11,546) 3,152 61,685
41 26,245 513,615 26,245 513,615
41 81,401 1,593,018 75,596 1,479,414
179,299 3,508,881 155,968 3,052,294
507,883 9,939,270 482,489 9,442,310
2,130 41,684 1,877 36,733
510,013 9,980,954 484,366 9,479,043
6,300,510 123,300,981 5,902,069 115,503,490

2023 24
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2022
2022 54,02 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 3,152 26,245 75,506 155,968 482,489 1,877 484,366
B} _ - . - . - - 44,807 44,807 233 45,040
2 - - - - - @742 - - - @) 2 (3,740
B} _ } N n - - - . . 33 38
a2 - - - - - - - - - - - -
. ; - - . - . - 5885 (5,805 - - -
) _ . - - - - . - (10,860)  (10,860) (0) (10,880
- } ; - - - - . S @811)  (4,811) - (@.811)
2022 12 31 54,02 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 (590) 26,245 81,401 179,209 507,883 2,130 510,013
2021
2020 12 31 54,02 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 1,303 26,245 67,702 136,581 453,449 1,540 454,998
_ . ) - - - . - 21 2 2 2
2021 54,02 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 1,393 26,245 67,702 136,602 453,470 1,570 455,040
. . - n - y . - 43,407 43,407 232 43,639
2 - - - . - 1,70 - - N - 1,759
. . ) . - - B, - - . 95 9
a2
i B B} B, - - - - 784 (7.89) - - -
_ - - - - - - - o @137 (11,347) (0)  (11,367)
- } - - - - - . - (4.800)  (4,800) - (4,800
2021 12 31 54,032 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 3,152 26,245 75,506 155,968 482,480 1,877 484,366
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2022
2022 1,057,406 1,270,210 782,663 81,470 1,143,553 61,685 513,615 1,479,414 3,052,294 9,442,310 36,733 9,479,043
_ - - - - - - - 876,873 876,873 4,560 881,433
40 - - - - - (73,231) - - - (73,231) 39 (73,192)
- - - - - - - - - - 744 744
42 - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - 113,604  (113,604) - - -
_ - - - - - - - - (212,530) (212,530) (391) (212,922)
- - - - - - - - (94,151)  (94,151) - (94,151)
2022 12 31
1,057,406 1,270,210 782,663 81,470 1,143,553 (11,546) 513,615 1,593,018 3,508,881 9,939,270 41,684 9,980,954
2021
2020 12 31
1,057,406 1,270,210 782,663 81,470 1,143,553 27,261 513,615 1,324,928 2,672,890 8,873,997 30,314 8,904,311
_ - - - - - - - 411 411 11 822
2021
0 1,057,406 1,270,210 782,663 81,470 1,143,553 27,261 513,615 1,324,928 2,673,301 8,874,408 30,725 8,905,133
_ - - - - - - - 849,475 849,475 4,540 854,015
40 - - - - - 34,424 - - - 34,424 - 34,424
_ - - - - - - - - - 1,859 1,859
22
- _ _ - - - - - 154,486  (154,486) - - -
_ - - - - - - - - (222,061) (222,061) (391) (222,452)
_ - - - - - - - (93,936)  (93,936) - (93,936)
2021 12 31
1,057,406 1,270,210 782,663 81,470 1,143,553 61,685 513,615 1,479,414 3,052,294 9,442,310 36,733 9,479,043
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12 31
2022 2021
( ) ( ) ) ( )
55,966 1,095,255 52,941 1,036,055
50,600 990,242 54,772 1,071,888
9 176 23 450
6,358 124,426 5,765 112,821
(758) (14,834) (907) (17,750)
“49) (959) @4 (470)
(644) (12,603) 156 3,053
(61,804) (1,209,504) (61,503)  (1,203,614)
(858) (16,791) (115) (2,251)
63 1,233 90 1,761
(1,979) (38,729) (1,506) (29,472)
1,656 32,408 (1,532) (29,981)
23,120 452,458 17,522 342,906
428 8,376 462 9,041
32 626 94) (1,840)
72,140 1,411,780 66,050 1,292,599
(980) (19,179) 19,987 391,146
(35,276) (690,351) (34,721) (679,490)
(56,455) (1,104,824) (15,537) (304,059)
(313,242) (6,130,146) (352,244)  (6,893,415)
31,138 609,371 12,432 243,294
20,108 393,514 1,815 35,520
(354,707) (6,941,616) (368,268)  (7,207,005)
15,266 298,756 56,953 1,114,570
8,796 172,138 17,509 342,651
12,275 240,222 66,409 1,299,624
(37,001) (724,110) (138,608)  (2,712,559)
227,572 4,453,584 183,125 3,583,756
(18,110) (354,413) (12,823) (250,946)
17,371 339,950 17,411 340,733
226,169 4,426,127 189,976 3,717,830
(56,398) (1,103,709) (112,242)  (2,196,576)
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12 31
v 2022 2021
( ) ( ) ) ( )
733,672 14,357,961 690,317 13,509,504
60,941 1,192,615 60,635 1,186,627
16 313 171 3,346
(893,056)  (17,477,106) (839,181)  (16,422,772)
(4,667) (91,333) (5,352) (104,739)
(103,094)  (2,017,550) (93,410)  (1,828,034)
38 744 95 1,859
930,514 18,210,159 638,113 12,487,871
(818,471)  (16,017,477) (316,574)  (6,195,353)
(22,724) (444,709) (16,399) (320,928)
(15,690) (307,053) (16,166) (316,369)
(3,101) (60,687) (3,030) (59,297)
70,566 1,380,977 286,039 5,597,783
3,007 58,847 (2,880) (56,362)
46(a) (85,919)  (1,681,435) 77,507 1,516,812
222,583 4,355,949 145,076 2,839,137
46(b) 136,664 2,674,514 222,583 4,355,949
186,631 3,652,369 176,851 3,460,974
(92,068)  (1,801,771) (88,916)  (1,740,086)
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1.1 2022
2022
IFRS
IAS 16 -
1AS 37 -
IFRS 2018-2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
IAS 41
IFRS IAS 37 IFRIC 21
Day
IFRS
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
IFRS
IAS 16
IAS 37
2020 IFRS 2018-2020 IFRS
10
IFRS 16

IFRS 16 13
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1.2 2022

IFRS 17 2023
1AS 2023
1AS IFRS 2023
IAS 12 2023
1AS 2024
IFRS 16 2024
IFRS 10 IAS 28

2020 IFRS 17 IFRS 17 2023

IFRS 2023 IFRS
IAS 39

IAS

IAS IFRS

IAS 12

2023

IAS

IFRS 16
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30 35

10

2.8 3.2
19.0 32.3
9.5 19.4
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2022 2021

4,619 4,800

75 224

3,433 1,392

@

81,033 77,042
89,442 84,417
2,350 2,277
6,084 6,358

915 551
53,358 52,273
241,309 229,334
2,218 5,870
10,106 11,814
4,422 3,817
64,098 57,786
22,294 19,772
1,396 598
23,120 17,522
127,654 117,179
113,655 112,155

758 2021 907
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2022 2021

13,067 13,084
4,677 3,976
3,149 3,725
2,303 2,681
2,058 1,872
1,486 1,500
1,335 1,412
2,002 1,881
30,077 30,131
1,735 1,835
183 192
1,415 790
3,333 2,817
26,744 27,314
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2022 2021
191 40
2,155 2,139
2,346 2,179
124 14
2,470 2,193
2022 2021
5,642 10,219
17 (483)
1,531 230
(774) 126
6,416 10,092




EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021
15,249 15,378
2,382 2,156
1,166 1,088
714 677
334 282
2,392 2,409
22,237 21,990
2,760 2,722
2,412 2,082
850 664
541 516
428 462
336 297
7,327 6,743
1,766 1,620
(a) 13,897 15,187
45,227 45,540

(a 2022 12 31 9.90 2021 9.90
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2022
- 1,537 551 - 2,088 141 139 2,368
@ - - - - - - - -
() - - - - - - - -
420 - - - 420 - - 420
430 - - - 430 - - 430
430 - - - 430 - - 430
430 - - - 430 - - 430
420 - - - 420 - - 420
() 394 - - - 394 - - 394
- 1,569 583 - 2,152 141 139 2,432
330 - - - 330 - - 330
340 - - - 340 - - 340
() - - . - : - - -
- 717 1,090 - 1,807 138 139 2,084
() - 242 420 - 662 47 49 758
() - 233 322 - 555 34 49 638
() - 292 219 - 511 41 127 679
() - - - - - - - -
() 36 - - - 36 - - 36
() - - . - . - - -
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- 463 735 - 1,198 99 103 1,400
- 559 803 - 1,362 103 102 1,567
2021
- 186 139 - 325 26 76 427
- 1,525 788 - 2,313 245 130 2,688
- 755 397 - 1,152 174 64 1,390
430 - - - 430 - - 430
420 - - - 420 - - 420
430 - - - 430 - - 430
430 - - - 430 - - 430
245 - - - 245 - - 245
430 - - - 430 - - 430
- 1,55 707 - 2,262 245 130 2,637
330 - - - 330 - - 330
340 - - - 340 - - 340
- 737 836 - 1,573 245 130 1,948
- 738 836 - 1,574 245 130 1,949
- 714 923 - 1,637 241 130 2,008
- 1,55 707 - 2,262 245 130 2,637
- 50 37 - 87 34 21 142
- 27 20 - 47 4 11 62
- 133 61 - 194 113 11 318
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() 2022 19
2022
2022

2021

2022 26

2022

2022 19

2022

2022 12

2022 24

() 202 12 31
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CBIRC

20

19

2021

CBIRC

2022

2022 12 31

39

2021 25
2022

21

2022 12 31
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3,000,001

3,500,001

4,000,001

4,500,001

5,000,001

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000
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2022 2021
2,749 2,974
23,275 24,674
273 250
932 1,317
27,230 29,215
2022 2021
- 2
5 3
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2022 2021
47,366 50,766

302 (120)

500 233

2,062 5,229

815 619

(445) (1,955)

50,600 54,772

2022 2021

22,286 10,371

23(b) (11,607) (993)
9(b) 247 (76)
10,926 9,302
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2022 2021
55,966 52,941
25 25
13,992 13,235
@ -
2,725 2,111
0 (6,036) (5,968)
10,679 9,378
247 (76)
10,926 9,302
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2022 2021
44,807 43,407
4,811 4,800
39,996 38,607
54,032 54,032
0.74 0.71

2022 2021
54,032 54,032
54,032 54,032

2022 2021
39,996 38,607
794 776
40,790 39,383
54,032 54,032
6,817 6,436
60,849 60,468

0.67 0.65
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
4,022 4,005
(@) 281,357 281,760
() 67,141 90,168
©) 243 -
3,522 2,195
356,285 378,128
141 135
356,426 378,263
PBOC
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
7.50 8.00
6.00 9.00
PBOC 2022
2021 12 31
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2022 2021
12 31

17,532 25,855

1,022 418

13,935 25,348

32,489 51,621

19 27

32,508 51,648

(435) (459)

32,073 51,189
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2022 2021
12 31

6,068 11,795

85,049 78,469

38,727 48,268

129,844 138,532

379 221

130,223 138,753

(244) (404)

129,979 138,349
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2022 12 31
1,037,901 4,768 (4,518)
308 1
22,844 540 (348)
659,026 10,130 (9,379)
9,519 291 (16)
160
1,729,758 15,730 (14,261)
2021 12 31
1,020,673 6,470 (6,723)
38,778 602 (496)
801,008 6,031 (6,077)
22,829 601 1)
80 1
1,883,368 13,705 (13,337)
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2019

©

41

2021 2022

CCR

2022 12 31

14
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
1,390 1,459
2,652 2,311
4,443 1,882
8,485 5,652
CCR
CCR
6,239 2021 12 31 3,270
416 2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
- 2,300
- 28,731
28 2
- 133
28 31,166
- 2
28 31,168
- ®
28 31,164

2022 2021

12 31 12 31

- 7,586
28 23,580
28 31,166
- 2
28 31,168
- ®
28 31,164
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
1,838,407 1,720,006
497 901
589,758 565,296
257,190 203,600
208,442 214,068
463,729 447,786
1,519,119 1,430,750
93,043 70,813
121,210 84,834
214,253 155,647
3,572,276 3,307,304
10,255 8,981
3,582,531 3,316,285
(83,180) (76,889)
3,499,351 3,239,396
(776) 474)
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2022 12 31
379,002 10.59 78,769
320,176 8.96 120,441
268,954 7.53 65,021
178,649 5.00 117,234
160,716 4.50 41,166
151,748 4.25 47,185
110,579 3.10 38,971
85,008 2.38 8,739
72,531 2.03 14,816
65,622 1.84 19,029
138,465 3.88 32,387
1,931,450 54.06 583,758
1,519,119 42.53 832,781
121,707 3.41 118,279
3,572,276 100.00 1,534,818
10,255
3,582,531
(83,180)
3,499,351
(776)
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2021 12 31
331,050 10.01 91,670
316,576 9.58 125,894
242,545 7.33 70,162
197,503 5.97 132,710
149,726 4.53 55,563
131,822 3.99 41,151
95,893 2.90 35,341
76,557 2.31 6,585
63,098 1.91 21,597
55,328 1.67 12,371
130,721 3.95 36,352
1,790,819 54.15 629,396
1,430,750 43.26 759,940
85,735 2.59 75,514
3,307,304 100.00 1,464,850
8,981
3,316,285
(76,889)
3,239,396
474)
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2022 12 31 10
2022 12 31
12 ( (
ECL ECL) ECL)
8,578 (3.397) (1,386) (4,630) 5,505 5,072
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
1,192,422 1,076,478
845,036 765,976
1,188,728 1,117,183
346,090 347,667
3,572,276 3,307,304
10,255 8,981
3,582,531 3,316,285
(83,180) (76,889)
3,499,351 3,239,396
(776) 474)
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2022 12 31
841,441 23.56 332,851
610,286 17.08 319,605
511,900 14.33 303,254
465,674 13.04 251,536
446,599 12.50 222,310
116,267 3.25 21,940
106,440 2.98 74,881
473,669 13.26 8,441
3,572,276 100.00 1,534,818
2021 12 31
750,167 22.68 305,064
578,837 17.50 318,941
455,150 13.76 283,547
431,443 13.05 231,123
429,285 12.98 236,217
107,845 3.26 77,626
106,765 3.23 12,320
447,812 13.54 12
3,307,304 100.00 1,464,850
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2022 12 31
( (
(2 &0 ECL) ECL)
9,326 (6,261) (3,008) (5.,213)
6,099 (5,900) (3,496) (3,444)
4,724 (10,567) (2,246) (3,570)
4,428 (3.252) (1,830) (3.,270)
4,186 (4,734) (3,499) (2,398)
28,763 (30,714) (14,079) (17,895)
2021 12 31
( (
(2 &0 ECL) ECL)
9,845 (5,507) (2,344) (4,587)
4,992 (2,985) (1,733) (2,919)
4,734 (9,303) (2.,136) (2,900)
4,148 (5,396) (3,584) (2,463)
3,497 (4,049) (3,554) (1,913)
27,216 (27,240) (13,351) (14,782)

49(b)
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2022 12 31

18,061 10,778 1,456 295 30,590
2,881 5,094 1,975 357 10,307
11,121 7,382 7,540 1,289 27,332

119 969 548 38 1,674
32,182 24,223 11,519 1,979 69,903

108 - - - 108
32,290 24,223 11,519 1,979 70,011
0.90 0.68 0.32 0.06 1.96

2021 12 31

14,526 10,872 1,329 176 26,903
2,912 3,263 2,111 344 8,630
7,985 9,295 5,841 865 23,986
4,416 909 858 2 6,185
29,839 24,339 10,139 1,387 65,704

645 - - - 645
30,484 24,339 10,139 1,387 66,349
0.92 0.73 0.31 0.04 2.00
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12 ECL
( ) ECL) ECL)
3,418,026 106,860 47,390 3,572,276 1.33
8,441 1,530 284 10,255
3,426,467 108,390 47,674 3,582,531
(36,726) (17,680) (28,774) (83,180)
3,389,741 90,710 18,900 3,499,351
2021 12 31
12 ECL
(¢ ) ECL) ECL)
3,130,394 131,030 45,880 3,307,304 1.39
7,169 1,409 403 8,981
3,137,563 132,439 46,283 3,316,285
(31,363) (19,935) (25,591) (76,889)
3,106,200 112,504 20,692 3,239,396
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@
2022
(12 Ech ( ECL) ( ECL)

2022 (31,363) (19,935) (25,591) (76,889)

(2,847) 2,511 336 -

1,180 (1,377) 197 -

427 3,348 (3,775) -

(4,117) (2,227) (41,022) (47,366)

- - 47,828 47,828

- - (7,505) (7,505)

- - 758 758

®) - - ©)

2022 12 31 (36,726) (17,680) (28,774) (83,180)

2021
2 Ech ( ECL) ( ECL)

2021 (31,192) (21,037) (23,304) (75,533)

(3,492) 2,843 649 -

912 (1,293) 381 -

574 4,340 (4,914) -

1,827 (4,787) (47,806) (50,766)

- - 54,253 54,253

- - (5,757) (5,757)

- - 907 907

8 D - 7

2021 12 31 (31,363) (19,935) (25,591) (76,889)
O]

2022 12 31
776 2021 12 31 474
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
4,404 4,634
19 70

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
126,223 127,150
(14,945) (15,556)
111,278 111,594
1,122 1,223
(4,388) (3,764)
108,012 109,053

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
39,200 36,337
31,903 29,568
24,686 24,301
14,703 17,585
7,428 10,763
8,303 8,59
126,223 127,150
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
€ 403,617 383,666
(b) 449,596 325,695
© 1,126 1,125
¢)) 1,192,273 1,125,530
2,046,612 1,836,016

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
(@) 109,640 50,891
() 293,977 332,775
403,617 383,666
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a
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
9,407 4,146
79,658 33,820
@ 19,479 11,243
256 797
372 351
468 534
@) 109,640 50,891
(©)) 1,542 2,051
670 881
108,098 48,840
109,640 50,891

@
@

25(a)
(©))
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
214,031 253,537
5,059 4,088
74,887 75,150
293,977 332,775

2022 2021

12 31 12 31

196,287 125,286
(€H) 143,053 98,420
@ 65,207 58,904
4,437 93
17,852 15,835
16,078 22,211
442,914 320,749
6,682 4,946
B)(4) 449,596 325,695
®) 55,718 56,394
33,248 38,665
387,196 264,355
442,914 320,749
6,682 4,946
449,596 325,695
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(3) 2022 12 31
2021 12 31

*

®

)

2022

2022 12 31

2021

2021 12 31
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ooooodo
1,218
25(a)
2022
€V ECL) (
ECL) ECL)
(410) (104) (173) (687)
10 (30) 20 -
31 104 (135) -
(95) (103) (302) (500)
®) (25) - (31)
(470) (158) (590) (1,218)
2021
Q2 ECL) ¢
ECL) ECL)

(420) - (36) (456)

7 Q) - -

6 - (6) -
) (€ (131) (233)

2 - - 2
(410) (104) (173) (687)
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©
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
) 24 23
1,102 1,102
1,126 1,125
)
)
2022 12 31
60 2021 20
@
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
() 1,105,621 978,630
() 79,789 139,573
1,185,410 1,118,203
17,745 17,652
1,203,155 1,135,855
(10,882) (10,325)
1,192,273 1,125,530
() 217,335 157,553
29,541 15,725
957,193 950,325
1,174,528 1,107,878
17,745 17,652
1,192,273 1,125,530
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aa
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
405,772 364,017
385,852 405,557
(€H) 242,040 187,762
29,524 5,260
31,091 6,572
11,342 9,462
1,105,621 978,630
17,330 16,823
() 1,122,951 995,453
(4,217) (3,981)
1,118,734 991,472
1,135,161 1,003,770
@
@
25(a)
)
)

167/425
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)
2022
(12 ECL) (
ECL) ECL)

2022 (1,361) (1,315) (7,649) (10,325)
36 (36) - -

162 1,314 (1,476) -

(88) (19) (1,955) (2,062)

- - 1,579 1,579

74) - - 74

2022 12 31 (1,325) (56) (9,501) (10,882)

2021
(12 ECL) (
ECL) ECL)

2021 (1,932) 472) (2,734) (5,138)
104 (104) - _

102 195 (297) -

323 (934) (4,618) (5,229)

42 - - 42

2021 12 31 (1,361) (1,315) (7,649) (10,325)
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@
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
4,680 4,680
2,267 2,267
105 105
70 70
156 156
105 105
5,000 5,000
600 600
12,983 12,983
/
5,900 90 90
( )
2,267 100 100
)
150 70 70
( )
( 100 70 70
)
( 156 100 100
)
( 150 70 70
)
5,000 100 100
)
1,000 60 60
( )
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12 31

20

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022
2022

2022

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31
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2022 2021

256 257
“n 93
(63) (90)
19 )
165 256

() )

(

13,529 10,134 2,656 9,151 4,818 40,288
59 1 930 1,373 351 2,714
690 - (754) - - (64)
- - - (556) (198) (754)
- 922 - - - 922
14,278 11,057 2,832 9,968 4,971 43,106
(4,895) (882) - (5.582) (3.611) (14,970)
(442) (394) - (1,212) (364) (2,412)
- - - 525 182 707
- (94) - - - (94)
(5,337) (1,370) - (6,269) (3,793) (16,769)
(163) - - - - (163)
(163) - - - - (163)
8,778 9,687 2,832 3,699 1,178 26,174
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2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

2021

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

( ) 2022 12 31

(

) 2022 12 31

2021 12
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() )
(

13,526 8,127 2,315 8,249 4,790 37,007
43 2,217 356 1,353 223 4,192
15 - (15) - - -
(55) - - (451) (195) (701)
- (210) - - - (210)
13,529 10,134 2,656 9,151 4,818 40,288
(4,506) (582) - (5,101) (3,351) (13,540)
(424) (317) - (911) (430) (2,082)
35 - - 430 170 635
- 17 - - - 17
(4,895) (882) - (5,582) (3.611) (14,970)
(163) - - - - (163)
(163) - - - - (163)
8,471 9,252 2,656 3,569 1,207 25,155

35 2021 12 31 38

9,687
31 9,252
25(a)
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2022

2022

2022

2022

12 31

12 31

12 31

10-50

10
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
8,173 8,002
605 469
8,778 8,471
(
17,302 61 17,363
2,250 8 2,258
(1,406) (16) (1,422)
47 - 47
18,193 53 18,246
(6,381) (29) (6,410)
(2,749) 1) (2,760)
1,205 14 1,219
(14) - (14)
(7,939) (26) (7,965)
10,254 27 10,281
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2021

2021

2021

2021

12 31

12 31

12 31
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15,658 64 15,722
2,760 4 2,764
(1,103) ) (1,110)
13 - (13)
17,302 61 17,363
(4,521) 23) (4,544)
(2,710) 12) (2.722)
843 6 849
7 - 7
(6,381) ©9) (6,410)
10,921 32 10,953
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
6,019 6,019
(4,738) (4,738)
1,281 1,281
CDB PBOC 1999 18
CcDB CIB
29 137 1999 18
CcoU
11 2021 11
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
/ /
(
130,811 32,703 79,583 19,895

130,811 32,703 79,583 19,895
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2022

2022 12 31

2021

2021 12 31

)

)
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/
) )
(
17,847 (953) 3,001 19,895
10,827 379 401 11,607
(229) 1,430 - 1,201
28,445 856 3,402 32,703
/
) )
(
17,324 137 2,126 19,587
507 (389) 875 993
16 (701) - (685)
17,847 (953) 3,001 19,895
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24
2022 2021
12 31 12 31

@ 17,229 25,058

6,539 5,713

3,475 2,684

1,542 2,148

1,334 1,004

927 950

238 327

77 83

) 3,147 3,001

34,508 40,968
@
()

25
@
2022 12 31
1,838.53 2021 12 31 1,601.0
)
2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 2022 12 31

2021 12 31
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
63,142 100,143
244 1,037
63,386 101,180

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
160,959 163,919
376,763 359,030
2,019 1,526
539,741 524,475
927 1,784
540,668 526,259
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28

29
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
115,365 111,353
6,605 12,102
65,745 55,464
187,715 178,919
886 707
188,601 179,626

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
27 67
27 67
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@
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
74,624 72,963
74 -
17,947 7,439
215 183
92,860 80,585
120 15
92,980 80,600
®)
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )

89,892 78,170
2,968 2,415
92,860 80,585
120 15
92,980 80,600
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@
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )

822,387 843,252
254,239 251,609
1,076,626 1,094,861
1,552,167 1,606,347
807,037 602,576
2,359,204 2,208,923
409,978 313,623
2,086 2,915
3,847,894 3,620,322
69,274 55,421
3,917,168 3,675,743

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
( )

15,528 13,845
(a) 319 220
(b) 3,159 2,712
19,006 16,777




(b)

(

(

(

)

)

12

)

SRB

SRB

SRB

31

SRB
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SRB
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
3,159 2,712
2022 2021
(
2,712 2,163
239 196
95 86
135 287
22) 0)
3,159 2,712
V40
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
3.25 3.50
6.00 6.00
25.18 25.16
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@
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2022 12 31
(927) 1,021
1,003 (704)
2021 12 31
(786) 866
851 (597)
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
7,542 3,089
3,068 2,965
531 481
11,141 6,535
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34

35

2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
2,723 2,841
2,171 2,340
1,724 1,851
2,539 2,601
2,282 2,546
11,439 12,179
10,151 10,736
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
@ - 6,700
(b) 130,346 42,174
Tier ©) 46,596 41,434
(@ 24,082 23,498
) 604,319 586,331
) 46,798 35,309
@ 20,476 25,127
872,617 760,573
3,354 2,959
875,971 763,532
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@

2027

)

2012

2022

() 2022 12 31

(b)

2022
2024
2024
2024
2025

2025

10

2019

2021

2021

2022

2022

2022

2022

18

22

3.45
18

0.68

11 11

17

10 18

12 31

15

1.75
BBSW 103bp

2.73

67

480

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
) - 6,700
- 6,700
5.25
2021 12 31 6,767
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
) - 800
() 39,993 39,988
() 1,415 1,386
() 944 -
() 39,998 -
() 47,996 -
130,346 42,174
3.49
400
400
2.47
130,169 2021 12 31 42,824

184/425



(c) Tier

2027
2027
2030
2032

2037

©)

2017

2017

2017

2020
4.39

2022

2022

25

16

25

25

2022 12 31

2027

2032

10

10

10

15

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

29

29

Tier

Tier

Tier

2025

Tier

Tier

EDINETOOOO

O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

oOoOooodn

2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
) - 27,992
() - 11,996
() 1,596 1,446
40,000 -
5,000 -
46,596 41,434
280 4.60
2022
120 4.70
2022 29
10 Tier 16
18
400 3.10
50 3.35
45,113 2021 12 31 41,739
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
24,082 23,498

185/425
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V38
(
24,826 5,174 30,000
(64) (13) an
24,762 5,161 29,923
2022 4,183 - 4,183
2022 (5,447) (998) (6,445)
2022 23,498 4,163 27,661
584 - 584
) - - -
2022 12 31 24,082 4,163 28,245
O) 2017 17 300 A
2017 17 2023 16 0.20
0.50 1.00 1.50 1.80 2.00
A
105
() A 30 15 130
(
30
) 4.36
30 20 A 30 20
A
2022 12 31 3.35 2021 12 31  3.55
() 2022 12 31 5,801 2021 12 31 5,801
1,542,885,091 2021 12 31  1,542,823,195
(v) 2022 12 31 436 2021 363

186/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

OoOoOoOoOodno
®
2022 12 31 223
796,570 (2021 623,770 ) 2022
781,630 (2021 346,860 ) 2022 12 31
596,629 2021 12 31 579,510
@®
2022 12 31
@
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
(
2022 24
) - 3,182
2022 12 11
) - 3,182
2023
) 4,863 4,455
2024 11
) 3,819 3,500
2024 15
) 4,165 3,818
2024 14
) 3,471 3,181
2024 12
) 2,081 1,909
2024 12 15
) 2,077 1,900

20,476 25,127
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( ) 2019 17 500
3.13
() 2019 12 500
2.59
( ) 2020 27 700
1.10
() 2021 550
0.93
() 2021 600
0.84
() 2021 14 500
0.83
() 2021 12 300
1.27
() 2021 12 300
2.00
( ) 2022 12 31 19,574 2021 12 31
22,409

188/425
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(a) 2022 12 31

(b) 2022 12 31
157

37

¢

2021 12 31

A )

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
@ 20,718 10,841
13,436 4,885
6,680 6,100
) 1,883 2,213
865 408
23 22
13,532 18,842
57,137 43,311
10
165

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
41,353 41,353
12,679 12,679
54,032 54,032

A

189/425
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@ 0 © ¢

¢ @ ¢

@

/

202
12 31
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2 2021
12 31

35(d)

( )

64,906 64,906
4,163 4,163

39,993 39,993

109,062 109,062

4.45
2015 19

4.01
2016

4.80
2019 15

100

100

100

200

100

350

20,000

10,000

35,000

65,000

(94)

64,906
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®
()

)

()

)

Tier

)

Tier Tier 5.125
Tier 5.125

CBIRC

)
CBIRC
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©
2022 2022 12 31
( ) ( ( )
650 64,906 - 650 64,906
2021 2021 12 31
( ) ( ( )
650 64,906 - 650 64,906
@
2020 18
400 2020 22
100 4.60
CBIRC
CBIRC
Tier
Tier
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©

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
507,883 482,489
402,984 377,590
64,906 64,906
39,993 39,993
2,130 1,877
2,130 1,877

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
58,434 58,434
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
16 16
(703) (568)
(687) (552)
81 3,868
(1,463) 2,929
1,544 939
16 (164)
97 3,704
(590) 3,152
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ECL
2021
928 811 16 (81) (281) 1,393
2,001 128 - (83) (287) 1,759
2022
2,929 939 16 (164) (568) 3,152
(4,392) 605 - 180 (135) (3,742)
2022 12 31
(1,463) 1,544 16 16 (703) (590)
41
@
50 10
®)
[2012] 20
1.5
2022 12 31 5,805
2021 7,894
2022 12 31 4,608

2021 6,806

195/425
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(a) 2023 24

4,608

2023 1,680
2022 12 31

( )

(b) 2022 9 22

(©) 2022 19

6,806
2021 12 31
)

(d) 2022 25

1,680
2021

(e) 2022 27

890
2021 25

() 2022 27

401
2021 11

2021

2022 12 31

50

4.8

11,185

1,840

2021 12 31

50

10,860

4.80 (
4.80

4.45 (
4.45

4.01 (
4.01

196/425
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4.80

10 2.07

10 2.10 (
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@

(b)

2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2022
2021
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( ) ( )
214,031 214,031 252,528 252,528
52,909 52,909 56,578 56,578
73,539 73,539 133,980 133,980
145,276 145,276 143,736 143,736
485,755 485,755 586,822 586,822
2022 12 31
1,185,241 2021 12 31 1,067,464
2022
3,421 2021 3,001
4,677

3,976
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2022 12 31
2021 12 31
2022

2022 12 31

44 2022

©
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IFRS
2022 12
2021 12 31
2022 12 31
2021 )
2022 12 31
2022 12 31 1,998 2021 12 31
1,998
2022 12 31 251

2021 12 31 251

199/425



45

Tier

2013

CBIRC

8.50 9.50

11.50

Tier

Tier

CBIRC

2018

Tier

7.50 8.50

0TC
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Tier Tier
10.50

CVA
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Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31

404,205 378,813
54,032 54,032
62,007 65,749
26,245 26,245
81,401 75,596
179,293 155,968
1,227 1,223
(4,809) (4,021)
(1,281) (1,281)
(3,475) (2,684)
(53) (56)
399,396 374,792
105,063 105,062
104,899 104,899
164 163
504,459 479,854
88,759 82,400
45,000 42,258
42,287 38,677
1,472 1,465
593,218 562,254
4,579,772 4,204,733

8.72 8.91

11.01 11.41

12.95 13.37
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C))
12 31
«
(k)
47
@
O
2007
2,000
cic
2003 12 16
828,209

CIC

2022
12 31
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2021
12 31

136,664

222,583

222,583

145,076

(85,919)

77,507

2022
12 31

2021
12 31

4,002

67,141

31,084

34,417

4,005

90,168

50,029

78,381

136,664

222,583

29

CIC

202/425

CIC
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®
()
CIC
2022 2021
730 1,034
5,902 4,112
CIC
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
8,143 13,788
6 -
23,419 26,467
3,128 2,338
28 1,732
100 2,228
340,056 298,941
122,064 81,369
51,592 44,614
166,400 172,958
11,396 14,227
386,276 359,721
121,788 56,181
64,165 57,899
3,215 3,020
17,281 27,478
108,483 101,898
1,101 11
316,033 246,487
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2022 12 31
- 4,289 407 4,696
105 708 1,136 1,949
2022 12 31
- 3,100 2,000 5,100
- - 13 13
- 3,822 9,528 13,350
272 43,876 706 44,854
272 21,356 - 21,628
- 41 77 118
- 22,479 629 23,108
- 534 3,537 4,071
272 51,332 15,784 67,388
- 20,958 16,648 37,606
- - 20 20
5,164 10,387 22,138 37,689
- 118 168 286
5,164 31,463 38,974 75,601
2022 12 31
180 - - 180
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2021 12 31
- 1,934 636 2,570
72 371 659 1,102
2021 12 31
- 3,300 - 3,300
- - 28 28
- 114 - 114
- 8,899 14,514 23,413
104 46,963 1,514 48,581
- 15,769 1,514 17,283
104 41 - 145
- 31,153 - 31,153
- 731 2,317 3,048
104 60,007 18,373 78,484
- 15,511 14,905 30,416
- 370 - 370
- - 28 28
- 66 - 66
3,137 7,226 29,044 39,407
- 115 1,122 1,237
3,137 23,288 45,099 71,524
2021 12 31
180 - - 180
2022 12 31 180

2021 12 31 180
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2022 2021
24,427 28,887
1,903 3,360
587 618
2022 12 31
(2021 12 31 110
78 32 161

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
8,199 9,041
8,308 9,100
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48

2022 2021

12 31 12 31
356,253 377,846
28,279 49,555
7,187 6,426
137,450 149,588
15,726 13,705
- 32,507
3,489,051 3,231,445
2,031,064 1,822,297
398,106 378,113
443,869 318,343
1,121 1,120
1,187,968 1,124,721
19 12,983 12,983
16,403 15,836
10,122 10,780
1,281 1,281
31,146 18,517
32,121 38,633
6,169,066 5,781,399
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
63,231 101,036
544,410 528,061
105,321 98,520
14,257 13,336
89,959 79,382
3,915,781 3,674,204
18,473 16,385
9,836 5,362
9,993 10,562
872,278 759,340
27,151 19,953
5,670,690 5,306,141
54,032 54,032
109,062 109,062
64,906 64,906
39,993 39,993
58,434 58,434
(453) 3,390
26,245 26,245
77,429 72,821
173,627 151,274
498,376 475,258
6,169,066 5,781,399
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@
2022

20,821 67,033 25,801 - 113,655

/( ) 27,544 (19,537) (8,007) - -
48,365 47,496 17,794 - 113,655
7,522 18,399 823 - 26,744

- - 2,470 - 2,470

- - - 49 49

438 - 5,912 66 6,416

- - 858 - 858

245 48 191 - 484

1,049 55 3 82 1,189
57,619 65,998 28,051 197 151,865
(18,176) (25,006) (1,899) (146) (45,227)
(13,596) (34,630) (2,374) - (50,600)
(©)) @® @ - ®
- - - (63) (63)

25,844 6,358 23,776 12) 55,966
2,866 3,226 266 - 6,358
1,819 2,672 176 - 4,667
2022 12 31

2,453,436 1,673,543 2,133,844 5,703 6,266,526
2,977,717 1,176,387 1,632,788 3,582 5,790,474
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2021

23,337 64,538 24,280 - 112,155
) 27,132 (19,792) (7,340) - -
50,469 44,746 16,940 - 112,155
7,947 18,493 874 - 27,314
- - 2,193 - 2,193
_ . - 24 24
/C ) - - 10,134 (42) 10,092
i - 115 - 115
313 47 (357) - 3
964 94 54 358 1,470
59,693 63,380 29,953 340 153,366
(18,901) (24,644) (1,853) (142) (45,540)
(21,103) (28,136) (5,533) - (54,772)
an @ (O] - (23)
- - - (90) (90)
19,672 10,598 22,563 108 52,941
2,671 2,865 229 - 5,765
2,162 2,993 197 - 5,352

2021 12 31
2,302,005 1,555,303 2,023,110 475 5,880,893
2,912,103 927,003 1,575,081 3,404 5,417,681
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2022 2021

12 31 12 31
6,266,526 5,880,893
22 1,281 1,281
23 32,703 19,895
6,300,510 5,902,069
5,790,471 5,417,681
36 23 22
5,790,497 5,417,703

(k)

218/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 28,355 27,202 20,771 26,434 21,625 18,587 5,889 3,002 151,865
2021 27,675 26,509 24,193 25,794 20,719 19,756 5,999 2,721 153,366
¢
2022
1 31 3,704 3,408 12,191 12,995 3,241 2,763 1,214 491 40,007
2021
1 31 3,698 3,342 11,580 12,683 2,846 2,831 1,338 557 38,875
()
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ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
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30

IFRS

90

12 ECL
ECL ECL
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PD
EAD
PD LGD EAD
PD 12
PD
Point-in-Time(
LGD
LGD
EAD 12
ECL
CPI
PD LGD
2022
GDP 2023
6.1 3.1
ECL

10%

PIT

GDP

LGD
IFRS
)PD
ECL
PD LGD
cPI
4.6
12

225/425

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

LGD

GDP

ECL



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

53(a)

226/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 12 31
356,426 - - - 356,426
32,073 - - - 32,073
129,845 - 134 - 129,979
28 - - - 28
3,389,741 90,710 18,900 - 3,499,351
104,043 3,505 464 - 108,012
1,618,886 5,192 17,791 129,863 1,771,732
21,338 6,539 - 15,730 43,607
5,652,380 105,946 37,289 145,593 5,941,208

2021 12 31
378,263 - - - 378,263
51,189 - - - 51,189
138,215 - 134 - 138,349
31,164 - - - 31,164
3,106,200 112,504 20,692 - 3,239,396
106,003 2,858 192 - 109,053
1,436,541 3,519 11,165 68,184 1,519,409
27,347 5,712 - 13,705 46,764
5,274,922 124,593 32,183 81,889 5,513,587
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
300 300
(166) (166)
134 134
158,470 209,720
900 1,118
2,576 9,730
161,946 220,568
162,080 220,702
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AAA

AA
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31

27,292 18,814

(9,501) (7,649)

17,791 11,165

5,217 -

9,355 3,599

33,794 20,275

26,151 12,790

74,517 36,664

1,384,698 964,608

208,649 310,143

15,561 29,168

6,924 17,619

63,592 150,042

1,679,424 1,471,580

1,771,732 1,519,409
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2022 12 31
.45% 356,426 14,922 341,504 - - -
.19% 32,073 19 32,054 - - -
.56% 129,979 513 47,992 70,779 10,695 -
.62% 28 - 28 - - -
.98% 3,499,351 12,589 2,647,346 756,364 81,450 1,602
.56% 108,012 1,122 20,983 60,173 19,863 5,871
.48% 2,046,612 299,498 115,021 243,919 970,807 417,367
N/A 128,029 124,407 1,420 - - 2,202
N/A 6,300,510 453,070 3,206,348 1,131,235 1,082,815 427,042
.93% 63,386 272 68 63,046 - -
.06% 540,668 927 463,639 76,102 - -
.28% 188,601 892 106,837 80,872 - -
.63% 92,980 120 89,764 1,548 1,548 -
.30% 3,917,168 76,352 2,161,300 811,022 868,413 81
.62% 875,971 3,354 261,866 422,153 183,598 5,000
N/A 111,723 80,815 29,523 - 1,358 27
N/A 5,790,497 162,732 3,112,997 1,454,743 1,054,917 5,108
N/A 510,013 290,338 93,351 (323,508) 27,898 421,934
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2021 12 31
J4T% 378,263 21,046 357,217 - - -
-51% 51,189 27 49,762 1,400 - -
J12% 138,349 355 92,158 34,543 11,293 -
-19% 31,164 2 31,162 - - -
J11% 3,239,396 12,126 2,456,909 685,895 82,352 2,114
.81% 109,053 1,223 25,706 55,661 20,253 6,210
.T2% 1,836,016 367,692 125,673 199,395 698,872 444,384
N/A 118,639 115,839 - - - 2,800
N/A 5,902,069 518,310 3,138,587 976,894 812,770 455,508
-99% 101,180 1,037 7,606 92,537 - -
-45% 526,259 1,788 425,612 97,417 1,442 -
-02% 179,626 713 90,908 88,005 - -
.78% 80,600 15 76,318 2,336 1,931 -
.22% 3,675,743 62,116 2,002,866 732,266 878,404 91
.92% 763,532 2,959 202,883 503,394 54,296 -
N/A 90,763 79,566 10,884 223 87 3
N/A 5,417,703 148,194 2,817,077 1,516,178 936,160 94
N/A 484,366 370,116 321,510 (539,284) (123,390) 455,414
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100
2021 12 31
9,855
100

2,333

12,553

12
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2022 12 31
2,736
2021 12 31
13,337
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100
2021 12 31
9,296
2,908
2021 12 31
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2022 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
344,797 7,628 4,001 356,426
14,275 10,286 7,512 32,073
99,603 25,085 5,201 129,979
- - 28 28
3,354,625 74,791 69,935 3,499,351
104,687 3,325 - 108,012
1,906,805 105,825 33,982 2,046,612
110,819 15,285 1,925 128,029
5,935,701 242,225 122,584 6,300,510
63,386 - - 63,386
534,696 3,924 2,048 540,668
97,935 58,477 32,189 188,601
74,725 8,343 9,912 92,980
3,731,263 153,797 32,108 3,917,168
816,898 51,913 7,160 875,971
99,343 9,900 2,480 111,723
5,418,246 286,354 85,897 5,790,497
517,455 (44,129) 36,687 510,013
1,331,943 34,169 13,312 1,379,424
(927) 43,772 (8,031) 34,814
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2021 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )

361,425 14,942 1,896 378,263
17,284 26,377 7,528 51,189
84,508 46,782 7,059 138,349
31,029 - 135 31,164
3,083,882 93,185 62,329 3,239,396
108,230 823 - 109,053
1,744,976 66,766 24,274 1,836,016
103,446 13,758 1,435 118,639
5,534,780 262,633 104,656 5,902,069
101,180 - - 101,180
524,463 265 1,531 526,259
84,283 64,636 30,707 179,626
72,972 1,828 5,800 80,600
3,445,129 199,292 31,322 3,675,743
701,662 56,446 5,424 763,532
79,603 9,375 1,785 90,763
5,009,292 331,842 76,569 5,417,703
525,488 (69, 209) 28,087 484,366
1,304,615 49,136 15,853 1,369,604

(56,670) 69,135 (24,128) (11,663)
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100

100

2021 12 31
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31

0.8914 0.8176

6.9509 6.3748

2022 12 31

100
31 2021 12 31

12
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ALMC

ALMC

238/425



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 12 31
/

285,122 71,304 - - - - - 356,426
- 29,321 269 2,231 80 - 172 32,073
134 - 37,301 10,778 70,999 10,767 - 129,979
- - 28 - - - - 28
50,072 435,712 165,707 218,479 935,429 834,213 859,739 3,499,351
33 46 4,371 5,486 23,607 67,841 6,628 108,012
25,405 216,233 35,753 53,166 268,783 1,013,567 433,705 2,046,612
81,666 28,432 2,008 4,564 5,309 3,492 2,468 128,029
442,432 781,048 245,527 294,704 1,304,207 1,929,880 1,302,712 6,300,510
- - 25 71 63,290 - - 63,386
- 274,073 57,135 133,346 76,114 - - 540,668
- 6 64,023 43,183 81,389 - - 188,601
- - 82,059 7,820 1,550 1,551 - 92,980
- 1,382,165 318,146 364,756 830,288 1,021,718 95 3,017,168
- - 13,069 243,628 426,169 188,105 5,000 875,971
- 59,873 3,013 5,312 8,015 30,022 5,488 111,723
- 1,716,117 537,470 798,116 1,486,815 1,241,396 10,583 5,790,497
442,432 (935,069)  (291,943)  (503,412)  (182,608) 688,484 1,292,129 510,013
- - 235,347 218,141 574,524 699,711 2,035 1,729,758
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2021 12 31
/

283,955 94,308 - - - - - 378,263

- 47,360 566 1,863 1,400 - - 51,189

134 - 57,707 34,529 34,635 11,344 - 138,349

- - 31,164 - - - - 31,164

40,247 424,929 138,685 204,972 848,399 758,453 823,711 3,239,396

35 163 3,838 5,530 21,367 70,938 7,182 109,053

25,339 257,058 36,931 60,363 219,216 756,178 480,931 1,836,016

68,841 33,293 1,980 1,797 2,715 7,197 2,816 118,639

418,551 857,111 270,871 309,054 1,127,732 1,604,110 1,314,640 5,902,069

- - 2 7,802 93,376 - - 101,180

- 195,213 81,904 149,184 98,516 1,442 - 526,259

- 6 48,460 42,837 88,323 - - 179,626

- - 73,810 2,520 2,338 1,932 - 80,600

- 1,428,708 242,027 369,592 713,016 891,849 30,551 3,675,743

- - 37,863 129,319 511,269 85,081 - 763,532

- 49,395 3,413 2,537 5,896 23,195 6,327 90,763

- 1,673,322 487,479 703,791 1,512,734 1,003,499 36,878 5,417,703

418,551 (816,211)  (216,608)  (394,737)  (385,002) 600,611 1,277,762 484,366

- - 383,509 239,565 438,142 820,304 1,848 1,883,368
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2022 12 31
63,386 64,799 - 25 72 64,702 - -
540,668 543,019 274,209 57,357 134,598 76,855 - -
188,601 190,663 6 64,001 43,520 83,046 - -
92,980 93,084 - 82,102 7,863 1,566 1,553 -
3,917,168 3,978,082 1,382,165 324,008 376,136 862,226 1,033,433 114
875,971 904,053 - 13,211 251,786 433,688 199,530 5,838
65,432 70,298 28,111 354 2,711 2,872 28,620 7,630
5,744,206 5,843,998 1,684,491 541,148 816,686 1,524,955 1,263,136 13,582
748 - 13 0)) 378 97 262

681,857 - 213,796 162,785 300,364 4,912 -

(489,327) - (106,413) (128,164)  (249,837) (4,913) -

192,530 - 107,383 34,621 50,527 @ -
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101,180 103,136 - 2 7,832 95,302 - -
526,259 529,293 195,668 82,009 150,733 99,439 1,444 -
179,626 181,293 6 48,505 43,129 89,653 - -
80,600 82,195 - 75,391 2,523 2,344 1,937 -
3,675,743 3,747,415 1,428,709 245,370 373,963 731,797 937,005 30,571
763,532 790,079 - 38,466 136,112 518,738 96,763 -
51,901 54,609 23,912 1,644 669 3,417 17,346 7,621
5,378,841 5,488,020 1,648,295 491,387 714,961 1,540,690 1,054,495 38,192
433 - 47 6 62 329 2
835,750 - 355,824 192,172 274,567 13,187 -
(691,673) - (253,563)  (164,043)  (260,875) (13,192) -
144,077 - 102,261 28,129 13,692 (5) -
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2022 12 31
(
365,068 540 1,520 367,128
964,754 46,456 1,086 1,012,296
1,329,822 46,996 2,606 1,379,424
2021 12 31
(
357,503 957 2,925 361,385
962,529 44,584 1,106 1,008,219
1,320,032 45,541 4,031 1,369,604
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)
12 31

2022 2021 2022 2021
1,118,734 991,472 1,135,161 1,003,770

875,971 763,532 859,788 751,799

/
©
0TC

LIBOR
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2022 12 31
- 10,961 - 10,961
1 4,768 - 4,769
- 214,253 - 214,253
1,287 108,098 255 109,640
217,137 69,144 7,696 293,977
56,292 393,240 64 449,596
24 - 1,102 1,126
274,741 800,464 9,117 1,084,322
27 - - 27
- 9,743 - 9,743
- 4,518 - 4,518
27 14,261 - 14,288
2021 12 31

2471425
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- 7,234 - 7,234

- 6,470 - 6,470

- - 1 1

- 155,647 - 155,647

1,801 48,840 250 50,891
255,932 66,775 10,068 332,775
56,912 268,716 67 325,695
23 - 1,102 1,125
314,668 553,682 11,488 879,838
67 - - 67

- 6,614 - 6,614

- 6,723 - 6,723

67 13,337 - 13,404
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2022 12 31
2022 1 10,318 1,102 67 11,488 - -
@ (1,237) - ®) (1,241) - -
- 2,964 - - 2,964 - ;
- (4,094) - - (4,094) - -
2022 12 31 - 7,951 1,102 64 9,117 - -
) (1,237) - ®) (1,241) - -
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2021 12 31
2021 2 10,364 852 - 11,218 0 Q@)
- 250 - 67 317 - -
- (634) - - (634) - -
- (489) - - (489) - -
1 941 250 - 1,192 - -
@) (114) - - (116) 2 2
2021 12 31 1 10,318 1,102 67 11,488 - -
- (489) - - (489) - -

250/425



@

2022

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2022 12 31
217,623 917,538 - 1,135,161
21,583 838,205 - 859,788
2021 12 31
184,283 819,487 - 1,003,770
23,262 728,537 - 751,799

12 31
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
92,724 105,138
92,724 105,138
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
16,007 15,635
6,009 7,564
345,112 338,186
367,128 361,385
724,330 669,088
116,297 121,565
171,484 217,381
185 185
1,379,424 1,369,604
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2022 2021
12 31 12 31
418,205 409,233
% 100%
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
3,939 2,139
5,708 4,530
9,647 6,669




@
2022 12 31

)

2022 12 31

1,688 2021 12 31

54
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MOF PBOC
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
( )
4,320 5,393

674
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Pear whe year endad 31 Decernber B2
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Nore V 022 021
Interest income 241,309 239,334
Interes: expense _ a27.654) {117,179
Net Interest income 1 113,655 112,155
Fee and commission income 30077 ERED
Fee and commision expense (333 (2,817}
Net fee and comminion income 2 & 26,744 27,304
Met trading gaing 3 2470 2,193
Dividend income 49 24
Mer gains arising from investnent securitics 4 6416 10,092
Mer gains on derccogniton of financial assers mexsured
at amortised cost 858 115
Iet foreign exchange gains 484 3
Other ner operating income 1,189 1,470
Operating income 151,855 153,366
Oiperating expenses 5 (45,227) [45,540)
Credit impairment losses 8 (50,600) (54,772}
Other impairment losses | (23)
Operating profit 56,029 53,031
Losses on invessment of joint venmres (63} {oo)
Profit before tax 55,966 52,941
Income txx 2 B ¢ L1122 9,302}
Net profit 45,040 43,639
Met profit attributable o
Equity sharcholders of the Bank 44,807 43,407
Mon-controlling interests 23 23T
45,040 43,639
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in RMB/share) 10 0.74 0.7l
Diluted earnings per share (in RMB/share) 10 057 0.65
The notes form an integral part of these consolidaed financial ssements,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

thee yeus endsd 31 Dievernber
(Eaprenied in eillions of Reaminbl, salon ethorwies sated)

Nowe V 2022 021
Net profit 45,040 43,639
Onher comprehensive income, net of ax
Items that will not be reclasified to profit or loss:
- Remeasurement of supplementary retirernent benchits (135} (287}
Subsogal il (135) (287)
Trems thar will be reclassified 1o profic or loss:
— Dbt instruments at Bair value threugh other
comprehensive income
= Met change in fair value (5,046) 21,828
— Changes in allowance for expected credit losses B34 112
= Reclassified to the pmﬁt or losm upon disposal (774) {1285)
- Related income tx cffect 23(b) 1,201 {685}
- Exchange differences on wranslation of fnancial
| seawements —. LE)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - ¥ 1,759
Totm! comprehensive income 41,300 45,398
Total comprehensive income antributable tor
Equity shareholders of the Bank 41,065 43,166
Non-conmolling interests s 232
41,300 43,398

‘The notes form an integral pare of these consolidared financial statemenos.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As A December 2000 {
{Frpromed Es millises of Reaminkd, unlon thersie soed)
31 December 31 Decemnber i
MNowe V 022 2021
Asscts
Cash and deposizs with the central bank 11 356,426 378,263
Dieposizs with banks and other financial institutions iz 32073 51,189
Precious metals 7.187 6,426
Macements with banks and other Ananclal
institutions 13 129973 138,349
Derivative financial asets 14 15,730 13,705
Financial amsens held under ressle agreemenn 13 8 31,164
Leans and advances to cusarmers 16 3,499,351 3,239,396
Finance lease receivables i7 108,012 109,053
Financisl investments 18 2,046,612 1,636,016
— Financial assers ar fair value through
profit or los 403,617 383,666
~ Dby instrumencs ar fair value through other
comprehensive income 449,506 325,695
— Equity instruments ae falr value through other
comprehensive income 1,126 1,125
~ Financial investments measured ar amortised costc 1,192,273 1,125,530
Investrnent In joint ventures 19 165 256
Property and equipment 20 26,174 25,155
Right-of-use assers 21 10,281 10,953
Goodwill 22 1,281 1,281
Deferred tax asscts 23 32,703 19,895
Other ames 24 34508 40,968
Total essets 6,300,510 5,502,069
Liabiliries and equity
Liabilitics
Due to the central bank 26 63,386 101,180
Dieposits from banks and other fnancial institutions 1 540,668 526,259
Placements from banks and other financial
instinutions 28 188,601 179,626
Financial labilicies ar fair value through profic or loss 19 ik a7
Deerivative Brancial liabilites 14 14,261 13,337
Financial assets sobd under repurchase agreements 30 92,980 B0,600
Diepoaits fram customers 3 3,917,168 3,675,743
Accrued saff coses 32 19,006 16,777
Taxes payable 33 11,141 6,535
Lease liabiliries 34 10,151 0,736
Dbt sccurities fssued 33 875,971 763,532
_ Other liahilities 36 B 1 - 43,311
Total liabilities 5,790,497 5.417,703

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial satements.

151

257/425



CHINA EVIRBRICHT RANK

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As ur 31 December 2022
(Epremsd 15, clllioss of Ksnanini, walu celoraivy soxmd)

31 December 31 December

Mote V 2022 2021
Share capital 37 54,082 54,032
Ovher equity instruments 38 109,062 109,062
of which: Preference shares 4,906 64,906
Perpemual bonds 39,593 39,993
Capital reserve 39 58434 38434
Chither mmpr:hzn.ﬁv: inoome 40 m 3,152
Surplus reserve 41 26,245 26,245
General reserve 41 81,401 75,596
Retained earnings 1T 155,968
Total equity atribusable w equity sharcholders of the
Bank 07,883 482,489
Mon-controlling interests 2130 _ LB77
Total equity 10013 484,366
Total liahilities and equity 6,300,510 5,902,069

Approved and autharised for taue by the board of directars on 24 March 2023,

Chatrmn, Presidens, Creneral Manager af

The notes form an integral pare of these consalidared financial seatements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Pear the year endad 31 Decemnber B2
{Frprenicd B milliens of Reaminbd, unlos otherwis seed)
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The notes form an integral pare of these consolidared financlal savements.

153

259/425



CHINA EVIRBRICHT RANK

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the yeus endsd 31 Duvemnber 2022
{Fapreaied in eillion of Rerminbl, wlon atherwiee raed)

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

22 2021
Cash flows from operating activitles
Proflr before rax 55,965 52,941
Credic impairment Josses 50,600 54,772
Orher impairment losses 9 23
Depreciation and amertisation 6,358 5,765
Unwinding of discount (758) (907}
Dividend income (49) (24}
Unreatised foreign exchanpe (gains)/lose (644) 156
Interest income from investment securities and
net gzins on disposl (61,804) (61,503}
Met gains on derecognidon of fi Jal assces im d
at amortised cost (B38) (115)
Losses on investments of joint ventures 63 )
Met gains on disposal of trading securities (1,979) {1,506)
Revaluarion loscafgaing) on financial instramentes ar fair vahee
through profic 1656 (1,532)
Interess expense on deby seourities isued 23,120 17,532
Imterest expense on leass liabilises 428 462
Net loses/{gains} on disposal of property and equipment 32 {94)
72,140 56,050
Changes in aperating asets
Wer (increase)fdecrease in deposits with the central bank,
banks and other financial Instimdons (980) 19,987
Met increase in placernents with banks and odher
financial institutions 135,276) (34,721)
Mer incresse in financial ases held for wrading (56,455) (15,537)
Met nerease in loans and advances to customens (313,242) (352,244)
Ner decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 31,138 12,432
Met decrease in other operacing assets 20,108 1,815
(354,707) (368,268)
Chanpes in operaring Babilivie
Met increase in deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 15,266 56,953
Mer incresse in placements from banks and other
fimancial lnstnuions 8,79 17,508
Met increase in financial axets sold under repurchass agreements 12,275 66,409
Met decresse in amounts due 1o the ceniral bank (37,001} {138,508)
Met incresse in deposhs from customers 227,571 183,125
Intome tax paid (18,1100 (12,823)
Net increase in other operating liabilities 17371 17411
226,169 189,976
Net cash used in operating activities (56,398) (112,242)

The notes form an integral pare of these consolidated financial starements.
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Nore V 2022 021
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal and redemption of
investmicnes. N el G90,317
Investment income received 60,941 G633
Proceeds from disposal of properey and
equipment and other long-term asiets 16 171
Payments on acquisition of investments (893.056) {839,181)
Payments on acquisiion of propemy and
equipment, intanglble assets and other
long-term assets _ (AEET) (5.352)
Net cash used in investing activities (103,094) (33,4100
Cash flows from financing sctivities
Capital injected into subsidiaries by non-conerolling
sharcholders kL] 95
Proceeds from insurance of debos 930,514 638,103
Repayments of debrs lasued (B18.471) (316,574)
Interest paid on debe securities issued (22,724} (16,399)
Dividends paid {15,690} (16,166
Other ner cash flows from financing acrivites (3,100} {3,030}
Met cash from financing scrivities 70,566 186,039
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
ofn ud:.l:hd cash qnhlmu —___3.'.'_.:!1_ {l.EEI!_[h
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 46(a) (85.919) 77.507
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 222,583 145,076
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 46{b) 136,664 132,583
Interest received 186,531 176,851
Interest paid (excluding interest expense on
debe securities sued) (92,068} (BE,916)

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial smiements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur endsd 31 Duvernber 2022
{Fapromed in eilion of Rorminkl, slon echowdee s}

156

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

China Everbright Bank Company Limived (the “Bank”) commenced in operaions in Befing, the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC") on 18 Auguse 1992, The A-Shares and H-Shares of the Bank were listed on
the Shanghai Siock Exchange in August 2010 and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limiced in December
2013, respectively.

The Bank it licensed as a financial institution by the China Banking and Insumance Regulatory Commission
(the “CBIRC"), formerly the China Banking Regulstory Commision, Ne. BODOTH 111000001 and is issweed
the business licence of legal enterprise Mo, 9111000010001 1743 by the State Adminkstration of Industry and
Commerce of the PRC. The registered address is No.25, Taipinggian Ave, Everbright Center, Xicheng Diistricr,
Beijing, People's Republic of China.

The principal activities of the Bank and jes subsidiaries (Note V 19) (collectively the “Group”) are the provision
of corparate and retail deposits, loans and advances, setdement, treasury business and other financial services as
approved by the CBIRC, The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and abo has 2 number of overssas
branches and subsidiaries. For the purpose of these financial statements, Mainland China refers to the PRC,
excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Hong Kong™)the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC ("Macau”) and Taiwan. Overseas refers to countries and regions other than
Mainkand China.

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023,

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Baals of prcpara.l:in-n

The consolidaved financial satements of the Group have boen prepared in accordance with Intermadonal
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFR3s") ax imued by the Intornational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). In addition, the consolidated financizl stztements comply with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Financial smsets and financial lizhilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivasive financial
instruments). 35 well 23 financial assews st fir value through other comprehensive income are measured
at their fair values in the consolidated financial sarements. Other accounting items are measured az their
historical costs. Impairment is recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment of asets.

The prepararion of financlal savemenss in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of cemain critical
secounting estimates. [t also tequires mansgement to exerclie its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies, The arcas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or ancas
where assumptions and estimaces are significane w the consolidated financial starerments, are disclosed in
Naoee 1L
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1 Basls of proparation (continaed)

As & Bnancial instiution ineorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
Group also prepared ity consolidated financial statements for the reporting period in accordance with
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Srandard” issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China (the "MOF), as well as addhional specific accounting standards, the
Application Guide and Interpretations of Accounting Standards and ather relevant regulations (collectively
known a5 the "PRC GAAP™), There is no difference in the nex profic for the year or tocl equity as at
the end of the year berween the Group's consolidared financial statements prepared under IFRSe and
thase prepared under PRC GAAP.

1.1 Seandards, amendments and intcrpretations effective in 2022
On 1 January 2022, the Group applied the following new smandards and amendments for the first

time in 2022,

Amendments to [FRS 3 Reference to the Conceprual Framework

Amendments to [AS 16 Progerty, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before [niended Use

Amendmenns to [AS 37 Omerour Comeracss — Coree of Fulfilling
a Camtract

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2018-2020 Armendmeniz to [FRS 1, IFRS 9.
Trerarive

IFRS 16, and 45 41

IFRS 3 Amendments add an exception 1o che recognition principle of [FRS 3 o aveid the ssue of
potential “day 3" gaine or bosses arising for Habilites and contingens liabilivies that would be within
the scope af IAS 37 Provisiens, Contingent Liabilities and Contingens Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies,
if incurred scparately, The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or [FRIC 21,
respectively, instead of the Conceprual Framework, 1o determine whether 2 present obligation exiss
at the acquisition date. At the same time, the amendments add 2 new paragraph o IFRS 3 to darify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

IAS 16 Amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the eos: of an ltem of property, plane
andq_mpnmt,m}-pmcmd:ofﬂunhufhmmpmdumdwhhhnnsi.ngt.lutmmli:zlumﬂnn
and condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such frems, and the coss of producing those
iterns, in profit or los

IAS 37 Amendments gpecify which costs an entity needs 1o include when assessing whether a conerac
is onerous of loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs
that relzte directly o a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental cosis and
an dllocation of costs directly relared o comiract activitics. General and adminismrative costs do not
relare directly to a coneracy and are excluded unless they are explicidy chargeable o the counterparcy
under the contract,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Deveraber 2012
[Eproascd 41 talllions iof Renesiuibi, walem cehcraies seemd)

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED

158

1

Basis of preparation (coorinued)

1.1

12

Swandards, amendments and Interpretations effective In 2022 (rontinoed)

Annual Improversents vo [FRSs 2018-2020 were issued in May 2020, including an amendment 10
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which clarifies the fecs that an entity indludes when ausessing whesher
the terms of a new or modified fnancial lizbility are subsmantially different from the terms of the
ariginal financial liability by conducting the "10 per cent™ test for derecognition of financial liabilities.
These fees Inchade only these paid or received berween the barrower and the lender, Including fees
paid or received by cither the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. The improvemenss also
indude an amendment to kease incentives, which removes the illustration of paymentss from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements in lustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 Leases, so as
to remove potential confusion regarding the treament of lease Incentives when applying IFRS 16.

The adoption of the sbove amendments does mot have any significant impace on the operating
resules, financial posiion and comprehensive Income of the Group,

Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group in 2022

Effective for annnal

periods beginning
on or after
IFRS 17 and Irpurance Contracty 1 January 2023
Amendments
Amendments o 145 & Diefinition of Accounting Enttrier I January 2023
Amendmens m IAS Mhm#&mumﬁgpnﬁna 1 j:.nu:.q.- 223
1 and IFRS Practice
Srarement 2
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred rax relaved o Aswerr and Liabilicier I January 2023
arining from & Single Transacrion
Amendments o IAS 1 Classificasion of Liakiliies a2 Current ov 1 January 2024
Nor-curremt
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leare Liability in & Saly and Leasebark I January 2024
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Conmribusion of Awetr bertoern an Effective date has
and TAS 28 Trvestor and it Awoctare or Joint Vimtwre been deferred
indefinitely

As a consequence of the amendments 1 [FRS 17 issued in June 2020, the effective date of IFRS
17 was deferred to 1 Jamary 2023, and IFRS 4 was amended to exiend

the temporary cxemption thar permits insurers o apply IAS 39 racher than IFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023,

The amendments w IAS 8 introduce 3 new definition of ‘accounting estimaney’, The amendments

are designed 1o carify the distincdon berween changes in accounting estimares and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of erron.
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1 Basls of proparation (continaed)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yer effective and have not been carly adopted by
the Group in 2022 (coninued)

The amendments o IAS | Presentarion of Financial Starements and 1FRS Practice Statement 2 provide
guidance and examples ta help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting palicy disclosures,
This amendments replace the requirement for entities 1o disclose their ‘significant’ accounting polices
with a requirement 1o disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies; and add guidance on how entlties
apply the concept of matedafity in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to [AS 12 narrow the scope of the iniial ﬂauﬂmpdmsudmltmlmpn
applies © transcdons thar give rise o oqual table and deductible emporary differences, such

o leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required o recognise 2 deferred
tax asset and 3 deferred tx lisbility for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual repomning perods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
Mhﬂdlnmﬂmﬁm&mhﬂmddﬁmmﬂmﬂnﬁﬂgﬁumu&chﬁmﬁ
e e e gt o it s g st
0] rofis or uity a5 at
haﬂmrufb:mmdmumphappﬂdw ::I.nu[:thm ather than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlicr application is permiteed.

IAS 1 Amendments spectly the requirements for classifying liabilitkes as current or non-current. The
amendments clatify what is meant by a dght to defer settlement, that a right to defer muse exist at
the end of the reponting peried, that dawification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will
cxcrcise it deferral right, and thar only if an embedded derivative in a converdble labiliny jmedf is
an equity fnstrument, would the rerms of a labiline ot impace it classificarion.

The amendment to IFRS 146 specifies the requirements thar a seller-lesser uses in messuring the lease
liabilicy arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, 1o ensure the seller-lessee does not recopnise any
amount of the gain or los that relates to the right of wse it remins.

The amendmenss w [FRS 10 and [AS 28 address an inconsistency berween the mequirements in
IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assers between an Investar and
its associate of joint venmune. Th:amuu{mmnrqqiﬂnﬂ;ﬂrm:pﬁliﬁhnfnﬁiuntbnwhmlhz
sale or contribution between an investor and its sssociate or joint venmure constitutes 3 business,
For a eransaction invalving assews thar do not constinate a business, 2 gain or loss resulting from the
trniaction is recognised in the imveitar’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that emociate or joint venture,

The adoption of the above amendments will have no material impact on the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Devember 2012
[Eproased 41 taillions iof Renanisibi, walem ceboraies sexmd)

I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMNUED

2 Consolidation
2.1 Subsldiasies

Subsidiaries are all entties {including corporates, divided pans of associares, and structused ensities
contralled by cotporates) over which the Group has control. That is the Group controls an entiry
when it is exposed, or has rights, to varishle retwrns from its imvolvement with the entity and has
the abilicy to affect those reourns through its power over the entty. The existence and effect of
potential votng rights thar are currently exercisable or comvertble and rights arising from other
eontractual arrangements ane considened when asscasing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiarics are fully consolidated from the date on which congol is transferred to the Group, They
are de-comsolidated from the date thar control ceasss, IF changes In faces and circumstances result
in changes in elements involved in the definition of control, the Group will re-evaluste whether it
saill has control over subsidiaries,

The Group wses the soquisidon method of sccounting 1o account for business combinatons, The
muddmrhmumﬁmdﬁﬂrhcqmuhn&dhryumnﬁnﬂuuﬁmtmunﬂmd
the labilities incurred and the equity interests isued by the Group, The consideragion transf
includes the fair value of any asser or Hability repulting from a comingent considerstion arranpgement.
Idenifiable assers scquired and Habilities and eontingen: Babiliies sssumed in a business combinadon
are measured initially at their fair values at the soquisition date. The cxcess of the consideration
transferred, the amoun: of any non-contolling interest in the acquiree and the scquisition-date fir
value of any previous equity interest In the acquiree over the fair value of the identfisble net assens
acquised it recorded as goodwill. 1F this is lest than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised disectly in the statement of
profit or loss,

If the Group acquires 3 subsidiary through a memger of companics under common control, the
difference berween the book value of the net amens scquired by the merping parties and the book
wvalue of the merger consideration paid (or the total par value of shares lssued) is adjusted 1w capiral
surplus; if capital surplus is not sulficient to offier the difference, retained earnings are adjusted.

All inzra-group assers and liabilivies, equity, income, expenses and cash flows reladng o mansactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Where neceisary, aceounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensune consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group,

In the Bank's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are sccounted for at cost Jews
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments, bur does not include acquisition-related costs, which are expensed as incurred. The
dividends ar prafits declared 1o distribute by the invested entity shall be recognised by the Bank as
the current investment income of subsidiaries.
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2  Consolidation (continued)

2.2 Jolnt Ventures

Joint venmres exist where the Group has & comractual arrangement with one or more panies 10
undettake economic activities which are subject 1o joint control.

Investments in joint ventures are initally recognised at cost and are accounted for using the equicy
method of acecunting, The Group's “Investments in associares and joint venmures” includes goodwill,

Unrealised gains on trznsactions beoween the Group and it jeint veniures ane eliminated o the
extent of the Group's interests in the joint ventures: unrealised losses are also elimimaced unless the
trngction provides evidence of impairment of the amer transerred. Accounting policies of join:
ventures have been changed where necessary o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The Group assesses at cach financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
investments in joint venmures are impaired, Impairment bosses are recognised for the amounts by
which the investments in joint venures' carrying amounts exceed their recoverable amounts. The
recoverahle amounts are the higher of investments in awociares and joint venwures' fair valoe less
costs o sell and value in use.

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cath and cush equivalents comprise cath on hand, non-restriceed balinces with central banks, shore-
term deposits and placernents with benks and other Anandal institutions, and highly liquid short-term
investments which are readily converdble into known amounts of cash and are subject w an insignificant
tisk of change in value.

§ Foreign currency translation

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is rranslated 1o Renminbi
a1t the spot exchange rate on the date of receipe. Other foreign currency transactions are, on indtial
recognition, translated 1o Renminbi at the spot exchange rates or the rates that approximace the spot
exchange races at the daxes of transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the financial reporting date are
wrznslared at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Chanpes in the fair vabee of monetary securities
denominared in forelgn currency classified a5 financial assews ar fair value through other comprehensive
income are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the camying amount of the security. Transation differences related
changes in the amornised cost are recognised in the satement of profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recopnised in “Other compeehensive income”. Translarion differences on all other
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the starement of profit or loss.

Mon-monetary assets and Habilites that are measured ar historical cost in foreign curmencies are ranslazed
uting the foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary asets and lisbilities chat
are measured ot fir value in foreign currencies are cranslaced wsing the foreign exchange rates as the dame
the fair value ks determined. Transdation differences on non-monciary financial assets dassified as financial
assers at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in “Other compaehenaive income”
Translation differences on non-manetary financial assets and liabilivies held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised as "Mer trading gains” in the starement of profit or los.
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4

Foreign currency translation (continced)

Assens and lishilities of foreign operations are eranslated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates ae the end
of the year. Equity ivems, excluding “Retained Earnings™, are translated oo Renminki ag the spot exchange
rates 4t the transacrion dates. Income and expenses of foreign operation are cranslated to Renminbi ar che
rates that approximate the spot exchange rares at the transaction daes. The resulting transbuton differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. The tranlation differences accumulbated in shareholders®
equity with respect to 2 foreign operation are transferred 1o profit or loss in the year when the forgign
operation is disposed.

I'Iiﬂi.ﬂd.l! i.l'l!“'l.ll'l!tnu

A financial instrument is any contract thar gives rise 1o 3 financial asser of one enterprise and a financial
liabiliey ar equity insrument of anather enterprise,

5.1 Recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments

The Group shall recognise a Anancial astet of a financial liability in it statement of fnanclal position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assens (or a part of a financlal asser or group of financial assers) ase derecognised when the
financial awets meet one of the following conditions:

(1)} the concracwal rights to the cash flows from the financial ssset explre; or

{2} the contraciual rights o the cash flows from the financial assex are transferred, or the Group
undertake the obligation to pay the cash flows collected to a third party in full and on time
under the “pass-through agreesnent” and the Group (a) transfers substantally all the risks and
mﬂ;nfam:hlpnf&:fmuﬁdmnr{h}w}m:mhmﬂﬂrnﬂ:h:ﬂhmﬂm
of ownership of & financial asser are neither retsined nor transterred, the control over thar asset

is relinquished.

The Group recognises and de-recognises financial assets on the tading day when trading finencial
aspews in @ conventional way. Trading financial asew in 2 conventional way refers to collecting or
delivering financial sssets within the dme limit prescribed by laws o common practices in accordance
with contract provisions. The trading day refers to the date on which the Group undertakes to bay
or sell financial assecs.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation is

discharged or cancelled, or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the de-recognized
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the mawement of profic or boss,
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5 Financial instruments (contirued]

5.2 Classificarion and measurement of Ananclal assets

The Group classifies financial assers as at amordsed coss, fair valwe through other comprehensive
income or far value through profit or los on the basis of both the Group's business model for

the financial amets and the contractual cwsh flow characteristics of the Anancial aset.
Only if when the Group changes the business model for managing financlal assets, the Group shall
reclassify the affected financial asses,

For financial asets az fair value through profic or loss, tansction costs are directly recognissd in
profit or loss. For other financial assets, transaction costs are recognised in the inivial measurement,

Buriners models

The Group's business mesdel refers to how the Group manages fes fimancial sssers in onder to generare
cash flows. Thar is, the Group's business model determines whether cash Aows will result from
collecting contracmal cash flows, selling financial assers or both. IF financial assers are not held within
2 business model whose ebjective is to hold amets 1o collecr contracrual cash flows or within a business
modd whose objective ts achieved by both collecting contractual cash fows and sclling financial
assets, the business model of the financial assets is “other”. The Group's asestment of the business
model is performed on a financisl asset porefolio basis, and determined on 3 reasonable cxpected
scenario, into account: how cash fows were in the pass, how the of
th:hnhs:“n!modd md&%ﬂdmﬂdﬁ&%nm mncldm hmm&
o the Group's key management personnel; how risks are evaluated and managed; and how managers
of the business are compenzaed.

The contractual cash flow characterintics

The assessrnent of contractual cash Aow charscreristics i to determine whesher the cash fows are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding. Principal is the Rir
value of the financial asser at initial recognition, However, thar principal amount may change over
the [ife of the financial asser (for example, if there are repayments of principal). Interest consises of
consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk asociated with the principal amount
ounstanding during a particular pericd of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, a5 well
25 2 profit margin,

The subsequen: measurement of financial assets depends on the dasification:

Financial aviciy ai amortized con
A financisl asset shall be messured st amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

= the financial swer i held within a business model whose objective 2 1o hold Anancial sssen
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

#  the contraceual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dares ro cash fows char are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the cffective interest method for such financial assets, The gains
of losses from derecognition, amendments or impairment on such financial assets are recognised in

profit or loss.
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5

Finuncial instruments (consinised)

5.2 Clasification and measurement of Ananclal sssets {continued)

Diebt instruments at fair value through other comprebensive income
A Bnancial asser shall be measured ar fir value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are mer:

= du&mthlm::hhddﬁ:hhahlﬁnmmnﬂﬂhmnbjmﬁuiaﬂﬁﬂhybﬂrbm&qﬂs
conwracruz] cash flows and selling financial assets; and

*  the contractual terms of the financial aser give rise on specified dares to cash flows that are
solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal ameunt outstanding.

A gain or loss on a financial asser measured ar the fadr value through other comprehensive income
should be recognised in "other comprehensive income”, except for interests caloubated wing effective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the financial asser is derecognised,
the cumubsive gain or less previously recognised in other comprehensive income Is reclassified from
other comprchensive income to profic or los.

Equity instruments ai fair value through ather comprebensive incoms

The Group has irevocably designared equity instruments thar are not held for trading as financial
asexs ar fair value through other comprehensive income. Only relevant dividend income (excluding
dividend income explicitdy recovered as pare of investment cost) i recognised in profic or lous, and
subsequent changes in fair valse are recognised in other comprehensive income without provision
for impairment. When financial assets are de-recognised, the accumulared gains or losses previowsly
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be reclasificd o rerained camings under equiny.

Financial assets at fair value drough profic or loss

A financial aset shall be measured ar fair value through profic or boss unbess It Is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Such financial asiets that the
Group holds are subsequently measured at fair valoe. Gains or losses on such financial assets are
recognised in profic or loss unless it is par of & hedping relatonship,

Gn&ﬁmﬂmﬂﬁhstﬂhﬂﬂmhﬂmﬁhﬂmwrﬂﬁ.wmm
be designated 2t fair value through profits or losses at initial recognition.

When an entity clissified 2 financial aset a5 a financial asset designared at fair value through profic
ar loss, it cannot be reclassified a5 other financial swset; nor can other financial asets be reclassified
as financial assers designared ar fair value through profic or loss after initial recognition,

In accordance with the above conditions, the financial asers designated at fair value through profic

or loss held by the Group mainly include fixed interest rae personal mongage loans for which the
Group used ineeress rane swaps to manage the asoclated inverese rare risk.
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5 Financial instruments (contirued]

5.3 Classificarion and measurement of Ananclal labilites

In addition to the issuance of financial gusrantee conzracs and financial liabilites arising from non-
compliance with the conditions for termination of recognition of the vansfer of financial wses o
continued imvolvement in the transferred financial assets, the Group classifies financial liahilities as
at fuir value through profit or Joss and financial lizhilities messured ar amonised cost, For financial
lisbilirhes ar fair value through profic or loss, transaction costs are directly recopnised in profic or
Inss. For financial Habilities meaared ar amorntised cost, transaction costs are recognised in the indrial
MELFUTEmENT,

The subsequen: messuremnent of fnancial Habilities depends on the cdasification:

Financial liabilities at fair value trrough profit or los

Financial liabilities at Rir value through profit or loss include Anancial liabilites held for trading
(including derivative financial instruments} and financial liabilities designated ax fair value through
profic or Joss ar Inital recogniton. Financial liabilives held for wading (including derivarive financial
instrumnents) arc subscquently measured at the fair value. A gain or boss on such financial lability i
recognived in profit or loss, unless it i part of hedging relationship. Financial babilities designated
at fair value through profit or los are subssquentdy messured a1 the fair value. A gain or loss on
such financial Habilivy b recognized In profiv or los, cvcept thar the changes in the fair value of
the Anancial lability arising fram changes in the Group's own credie risk should be recognised in
other comprehensive income, If the recognition of the impact asising from changes in the financial
liabiliches' own credie sk in other comprehensive income will create or enlarge the accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, the Group shall recognise the entire gain or loss of the financial Habilities
(including the impact of changes in its own credit risk} in profit or loss.

Financial Halilitier measired ot amortived cost
Financial liahilities messured ar amortised cost are measured wsing the effecrive interest method.
54 Impairment of fnancial instruments

The Group evaluzees and confirms relevant impairment allowance for financial assers measured ar
amortised eost, debe Instrument Investments at falr value through other comprehensive Income, loan
commitments and financial guamntes contracts based on ECL (Note V 50(a)).
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5

Finuncial instruments (consinised)

5.5

56

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guaranuee contracts ane those contraces thar require 2 payment to be made by the issuer o
reimburse the holder for a [oss it incurs becawse the specificd debtor fails 1o make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of 2 debt instrument. Financial grarantee contracts are measured
at fair value at initial recognition. For financial guarentee contracts which are not designated as at
falr value through profit or loss subsequently measured ar the higher of the expendinne determined
bry the ECL model that is required to sertle any financial obligation arising ar the financial reparting
date, and the value inisally recognised less the scoumulaced amaortisation recognised in accordance
with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Loan commitments are commitments pravided by the Group to the customers to grant loans under
the established contract terms during 2 cermin period. The impairment losses of loan commitments
are measured using the ECL model.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group wcs derivative financial instruments, for cample, o hedge cxchange-rate rigks and
interest rate risks through foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps, which are
initdally recognised ar fair value on the date a derivative contract s entered into and are subsequendly
remcasurcd ar their fair value. All derivarives are carried as assers when the fair value is positive and
as liahilitics when the fir value 1s negarve.

Changes in the falr value of these derivatives are recopnised in profic or los unless v is relared 0
hedge aceounting.

In tezms of the hedge accounting method, the Group's hedge is dassified as:

(1) Fair value hedge, refers ta a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of 2 recognised assct
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment (excepe the exchange rate risk);

(2) Cash flow bedge, refers 1o a hedge of the exposure to varability in cash flows chat is anriburable

to @ particular risk associated with a recognised assce or lisbility or a highly probable forecast
wznsaction, or the exchange rate risk contained in 2n unrecognised definitive commitment.

At the beginning of the hedging relationship, the Group has formally designated the hedging
redationship and prepancd 2 fumdmdm:nmmlb:hdgugrdmp,mkmmm
mmgrﬂl:ﬂkipﬂil]ﬂﬂ}: inmrument, the hedged

method for evaluating the effectivencss

dr.pn: to which the Fir value or cash flow

g
L
B
B

mmmﬂuupdlwdmkmobm.urmm th.ﬁ.lmml:mfut

2721425

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

wiiflyg ey FEOS

II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5 Financial instruments (contirued]
5.6 Derivative Bnancial instroments and hedge accounting {continued)

If a hedging relationship ceases w0 meer the hedge effectivencss requirement relaring 1o the hedge
ratin but the rsk management objective for that designared hedging relationship remaina the same,
the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship so that it meets the qualifying criteria
again,

If the condition of the hedge accounting method is satisfied, it should be troated as follows:

Fair value bedge

Gains or losses arising from hedging instruments are recognised in profit or loss. The gains or losies
of the hedged irem dus w the hedging risk exposure shall be recognised in profic or los, and the
book value of the hedged ftem nor be measured ar fae value shall be sdjusted ar the same time.

the book value of the hedged item should be amortised by the effective intenest rare method during
the remaining period of the hedge and recognised in profit or loss. The amortization in accordance
ith the effective interest mte method may commence immediately after the adjustment of beok
uc and shall not be later than the termination of the adjuszment of the hedged item based on

fadr the hedging risk. If the hedged ftem is a debt tnsmument ar faie
value through other comprehensive income, the accumuolared recognised hedge gaing or losses are
amantised in the same way and recognised in profic or boss, but the book value of financial asets
is mot adjused. IF vhe hedged item is rerminared, the unamordsed fair value 5 recognised in profic

If the hedged item is an unrccognised firm commitment, the subsequent cumudative change in the
fair value of the firm commiment aniburable ro the hedged risk is recognised as an asser or labiliy
with a cortesponding gain of loss recognised in prafit or loss. The changes in the Fair value of the
hedging instrument are also recognised in profit or loss.

The gain or loss of the bedging instrument that bebongs 1o the cffective pant should be direaly
recognised In other compeehensive income, and the ineffective part shall be recognised in profit ar

lass.

If the hedged forecast mansscrion subsequently confirmed &5 3 non-financial asser or non-financial
liabilicy, or the forecass transaction of 2 non-fimancial asset or non-Anancial lishiliey form a fiem
commitment for the applicable fair value hadge, cash flow hedge reserve original recognised in ocher
comprehensive income shall be reclassified o the inidally amount of the assets and Habilites. The
remaining cash flow hedge reserve rocognised in other comprchensive income shall be rochassified o
profit ar lods in the same periods when the hedged future cash fows affect profit or loss, such as
the expecied mles accur,

When the Group discontinues hedge accoundng for a cash flow hedge, i the hedged fature cash
flows are sill expected o occur, that amount sccumulaced in the cash flow hedge reserve shall
remain in equity uniil the expected wanssction scoaally occurs or the commimmen: b confirmed w
be fulfilled. If the hedged funure cash flows are no longer expected vo occur, that amount shall be
immediately reclassified from the cash fow hedge reserve to profit or los.
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5

Finuncial instruments (consinised)

57

5.8

Canvertible corporate bonids

Convertible bonds comprise the Habiliy and equity components. The lisbility component,
representing the obligation 1o make fived paymems of principal and interes, s classificd 2 a Liabiliny
and initially recognised at the fair value, calculuted using the market interest rate of 2 similar liability
that dees not have an equity conversion option, and subsequendly messured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component, representing an embedded option w0 conven
the liability into ordinary shares, is initially recognised in "Equity™ as the difference between the
proceeds reczived from the convertible bonds a5 3 whele and the amoant of the lishilicy component,
Any directly arriburable transaction costs are allocared to the lisbiliey and equity components in
propartion 1o the allecation of procecds.

On conversion of the bonds into shares. the amount transferred 1o share capital is calculated 25 the
par value of the shares muhiplied by the number of shares converted. The difference berween the
carrying value of the related component of the converted bonds and the amount transferted to share
capital is recognised in share premium under “Capical reserve”,

Transfer of financlal asscts

IF the Group has wansferred substancially all the risks and rewards of owneeship of financial assews
to the ransferee, it shall de-recognise the financial assers; if iv retaine substantially all the risks and
rewards of awnership of financial assers, it shall not de-recognise the financial assers.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substancially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of
financial assets, it shall deal with the following situations separarely: if it abandons i control over
the financial assets, it should de-recognise the financial assets and recognise the assets and liabilities
that arose; if it does not abandon its control over the financial zesets, it shall recognise the relevant
financial assets in accordance with the extent to which it contines o be involved in the ransferred
financial assets, and relevant lishilities are recognited accordingly.

If the Group continues to be involved in the wansferred financial assess by providing a financial
puarantee, the assets thar arose from the continued involvement shall be determined ar the lower
of the book value of the financial amets and the amount of the financial guamntee. The amount
of the financial puarantes refers 1o the mazimum amount that will be required o be repaid among
the consideration recetved.

Offsetting financial instruoments

Financial assers and lkshilitics are offsct and the net amount is reported in the statement of Anancial
position when there is 2 current legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amounts and there
Is an intenzion 1o settle on 2 net basis, or realise the asser and serde the liability simultaneosly,
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Preclons metals

Precious metals that are not related to the Group's erading activities are initlally messired at aequisitian
et and subsequently measured at the bower of cost and net realismble value, Precious metals soquired
by the Group for vading purposes are initially measured st fair value bess costs to sell, and subsequent
changes In fair value less cosss o sell are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the change.

!:I-ﬂiﬂl.'jll [ 11224 }!IE]J und:r rtlI.IE Iﬂd. lEJ’!EIl’d’Im I.F"l'l:ltﬂu

Financial assets purchased under agreements to restll are not reported as purchases of the assew bur as
receivables and are carried in the statement of fAinancial position ar amortised cost.

Financial assets sold subject to a simulaneous sgreement oo repurchase these asses are rewained in the
statement of Anancial posirion and measured In accordance with their original messurement principles.
The procesds from the sale are reported as Liabilities and are carried at amortised cosz.

The difference berween purchase and sale price is recognised 23 *Interest expense™ or “Interest income”™ in
the statement of profit or loss over the lfe of the agreements wing the effective interest method.

E‘mptrqr and ﬁ]uipmtn'r
Property and equipment are assets held by the Group for aperadon and adminbiration purposes with
useful lives over one year.

The Group's propeny and equipment mainly comprise premises, elecronic equipment, aireraft and
construction in progress.

The assews purchased or consmuicted are initally meeasured a1 acquisivion cost or deemed coss, as approprise,
Such infefal cost includes expenditure thar b direcely arributable to the soquisidon of the assets,

Subsequens costs are included in an aset’s carrying amount, enly when it is probable thar furure economic
bencfits associated with the irem will flow o the Group and the cost of the lrem can be measured reliably.
All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Diepreciation s caleulared on the sralght-line method 1o write down the cost of such assers o their
residual values over their estimated usefu] lives, The residual valises and wseful lives of assets are seviewed,
and adjusced if appropriate, at each financial reporting, dane,

Gains and lomes on disposals are determined by the difference berween proceeds and carrying amount,
after deduction of relevant mxes and expenses. These are included in the statement of profit or loss.
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B

Property and equipment (continued)
B.1 Premises, electronle equipment and others

Property and equipment are depreciared using the sraight-fine method over their estimared useful
lives, after taking into account thelr cstimated residual values, The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation rates of each class of property and equipment are ax follows:

Estimated rate of
Estimated residual value Diepreciation
Assct category useful life {(ycars) (%) rate (%)
Prermises 30-35 3 2.8-3.2
Electronic equipment 35 35 19.0-32.3
Orhers 510 35 2.5-19.4

B2 Aircraft
Aireraft are wed in the Group's aireraft opetating leasing business.

Aircraft are depreciated using the siraight-line method over the expected useful life of 25 years, Jess
the years in service ax the dme of purchase ar an estimared residual value rate of 15%.

8.3 Construction in progress
Construction in progress consists of assers under construction or being insmalled and is stated at
cost. Cost includes equipment cost, cost of construction, installation and other direct costs, Items

classified a5 construction In progress are wransferred to propemy and equipment when such ssees are
ready for their intended use and the depreciation charge commences after such assers are transfermed

to property and equipment.
Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract i,
or consaing, a lease if the contracty comveys the right o concrol the use of an identified asset for o period
of ime in exchange for consideration,

9.1 As lessee

In addidon o shorr-term leases and leases of bow-value assets, the Group recognizes the right-of-use
mmd}mmlhhlﬂﬁufnrtﬁzhu.mddumun&uﬁhdmﬂninmVH and Note V' 34,

The incremental borrowing vate of lesee

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount nte w alculste the present value
of lease payment. When determining the Incremental borrowing rate, cach institution of the Group
uses {ex sconomic environment and the observable inrerest rare as the foundarion. On this basis, the
applicable incremental borrowing raze is caboulaced through the adjusiment of the reference interest
rate, which is desermined sccording to the sinaton of the inmitution and the underlying asser, the
lease rerm, the amount of the lease lkability and other specific conditions of the lease.
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Il SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
9 Leases (continued
9.1 As lessee {concioued)

Short-term Leases and leases of low-value avets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the lease, has 2 lease term of 12
months or less, and does not contain any purchass opdon 35 a shom-rerm leases and a lease for
which the value of the individusl underbying asset is relarively low when it Is new a3 & lease of a
lew-value aseet. The Group chooses not to recognise the right-of-use assets and lease Labilities for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assecs, and the renc is amortised on a suaighe-dine basis in
cach period of the lease term and included in the stement of profit or loss,

9.2 As lessor

A lease Is classified as a finamee lease IF le ransfers subsraneially all the risks and rewards Incidental
to awnership of an underlying asset, cxcept that a lease i classified as an operating lease at the
inception date.

When the Group i a lessor under fnance leases, at the commencement date of the lese, the Group
recognises finance lease receivable and derecognises finance lease asses, In the initial measuremens of
the finance bease receivable, the Group recognises the net imvestmens of the lease as the book value,
The net investment In 4 lease is the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the present value of
the unreceived minimum lease payment receivable at the commencement date, which i discounted
by the intevest rate implicit in the l=se. The Group calculstes and recognises the interest income in
cach period during the lease term wsing the constant perindic rate of interest, and recogrises such
interest expendes in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are not measured as part of the net
investment in the lease are mmgiim&i.qpmﬂtqr]nﬂuh‘mﬁnd.

When the Group Is a bessor under operating leases, the Group still refleces the underying assets as
the Group's assees. The rent income is amortised on a seraight-line basis in each period of the lease
term and recognised in the satement of profic or boss, or profic or loss a8 incurred.

9.3 Right-of-use assets

Ar the commencement dare of the lease, the Group recognises a righr-of-use asser, which is measured
sccording to the cost. The cost of the dApht-of-wse asset comprises: (1) the amount of the Inital
measurement of the lease lability; (2) any lease payments made at or before the com ement
date of the lesse less any bease incentives received: (3) any initil direct cost inowrred when the
Group is x lessee; and (4) an estimare of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underying asset, restoring the site on which it & located or restoring the underlying asser w
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. IF the Group remeasures the lease
liabiliry due 1o changes in the lease payment amount, the carrying amount of the right-of-use assens
shall be adjusted aceordingly.

The right-of-use amers are depreciared on 2 siraight-line basis subseguendy by the Group. If the
Group is ressonably certain that the ownership of the underlying asser will be transferred to the
Group at the end of the lease teem, the Group depreciates the asmset from the commencement date
to the end of the weful life of che sser. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the awets from the
commencement date to the carlier of the end of the uscful life of the asset and the end of the lease
term, whichever is shorter.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED

9 Leanes (cominund)

9.4 Lease liahility

Ar the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease [iability at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date, cxeept for short-term. leases and loases of low-
wvalue assets. Lease payments include fixed payments and substantial fixed payments after deduction
of bease incentives, variable lease payments depending on indexes or mtics, payments cxpected 1o
be made based on security balances, and abso Include the exesclse price of the purchase opron or
payments to exercise the option to terminate the lease, provided that the Group is reasonably certain
thas the option will be exercised or that the lease period reflects thas the Growp will exercise the
option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present valoe of the lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate of lesser s the discount rate. The Group calculates the interest expenses of the lease lishilicy in
cach peried during the lease rerm using the constant periodic rae of Interest, and recognises such
Interest expenses in profit or boss. Variable lease payments that are not Induded in the measurement
of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss a3 incurmed,

After the commencement date, the Group increases the carrying amount of the lease liabiliry when
recognizing interest and decreases the carrying amount of the lease liabilisy when paying the lease
payment. The Group remeasures che bease Eshilicy by discounting the revised lease paymenis using a
revised discount rate if either: (i) the acrual fixed payment has boen charged; (i) there is a change in
the amounts expected to be payable under a residual valoe guarantee; (iif) there i a change in fuuee
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or 2 e wsed to determine those payments; or
(i) there is 2 change in the assezsment of an option to purchase, exeend or rerminare the underlying
anset, assessed (n the convext of a purchase option.

10 Intangible assets
intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assers withour physical substance, including compuser

Compurer software and other intangible assews are stared ar scquisition cost less accumulazed amorisarion
and Impairment. These costs are amonised on 4 straighe-line basts over thelr estimated useful lives with
the amortisation recognised in the smtement of profit or loss.

The respective amondsation periods for inangible assers are as follows:

Estimated aseful
Assct category Lives (yezrs)
Computer softeare 5
Others 5-10
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the exeess of codt of acquisition over the Group's ineerest in the fair value of the
identifiable net asmets of the acquires under the business combination involving entities not under commaon
control, Goodwill is mor amorised and s scated 2t ot less sccumulated impairmens boss (Noge 11 13),
On disposal of the related cash-generating unie FCGU™) or group of CGUs, any anributable amount of

purchased goodwill it written off and included in the clculation of profit or los on disposal.
Repossessed asscts

Repossessed assets are physical asets or property rights obtained by the Group from debeors, wartantors ar
third parnies following the enforcement of its creditor’s rights, The repossessed assets should be reconded
at the fair value of the sbandoned creditor’s righo, and the relovant expenses payable for obaining
the repossessed assets should be included in the value of the repossessed assers. When there s an
indication that the net realizable value of the repostesied ausets is lower than the book value, the Group
will reduce the book value to the net realizshle valuz,

Provision for Impalrment losses on non-financlal sssets

The carrying amounts of the following assers are reviewed at the end of the year based on the internal
and extemnal sources of information o determine whether there is any indicasion of impairment: propercy
and equipment, tight-of-use assets, consruction in progress, intanglble ases, goodwill and investments
in joint ventures.

If any indicarion exiss that an asmer may be impaired, the recoverable amount of the asser Is estimared.
In addition, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts of goodwill ar no later than each year end,
irmespective of whether there is any indicadon of impairment or not. Goodwill is allocated to the CGL,
or group of CGUSs, thar s expecred m benefic from the synergics of the combinasion for the purpose of
impalrment esting,

A CGU is the smallest idenvifiable group of asses thar generates cash inflows thar are largely independent
of the cash inflows from ather asers or asser groups. A CGLU s compased of assets directly relating o
cath generation. ldentification of a CGU is based on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset
group are largely independent of the cash inflows from ocher assets or aset groups. In identifyring an asset
group, the Group also considers how management monitors the Group's operations and how management
makes declsdons about continuing or dispoting of the Group's assets.

The: recoversble amount of an aser or CGU, or a group of CGUs (hereinafier called “asser”) is the
higher of its falr value less coss w sell and i present value of expecred furure cah fows. If there Is any
indication thar an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual aser; if
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual aset, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the asset group 1o which the assets belongs.
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13

Provisddon for impairment losses on non-fnancial asscts (continsed]

If these is indication of impairment when testing for asset group of group of asset groups with goodwdll
for impairment, the Group shall fire test the amet group or group of aser groups exduding goodwill
for impairment and recognise the impairment loss in the starement of profic or loss. Then e Group
shall test the asser group or group of asser groups including goodwill for impairment, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. Any impairment logs shall be allocated 1o reduce the arrying
amouni of any goodwill allocated to the amet group or group of asset groups first and then pro miz on

the basis of carrying amount of each of the asser group or group of aser groups (excluding goodwill).

An impairment los in respect of goodwill s not reversed, If, in & subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss of the non-financial asser excepr for goodwill decrexses and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impalrment
loss i reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairmens loss been recognised in price periods.

The present value of expected furure cash Aows of an aset & determined by discounting the future cash
Hows, estimated 10 be derived from continuing use of the aset and from its uwlimate disposal, to their
present value wsing a pre-rax- discount rare thar reflects expected furare cash flows, the wseful life and the
discount rate specific to the asser.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an et exceeds i3 recoversble amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profic or loss. A provision for an impairment loss of the asser i

recognised socordingly.

For the purpose of goodwill impairment exing, goodwill arising from business combination is allocsred
to ageet group since the acquisidon date. If it cannot be reliably allocated mo an asser group, ic should be
:llocmmimrb:rdnm:mnfmw The asser group or group of asset groups is expected w
benefic from the synergies of the business combination and is not larger than 3 segment as defined by
the Group,

Employes benefits

Employes benefits refer o all forms of consideration and other related expenditure given by the Group
in exchange for services rendercd by employess. The benefite payable are recognised as Habilides during
the period in which the employees have rendered services to the Group. If the effect of discounting the
benefits payable which are payable after one year from the end of the reporting period is significant, the
Group will present them ar their present value.

14.1 Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security coneibutions such a5 medical insurance, work
injury fnsusmnce, maternity insurance and bousing funds, messured ar the amount incurred or at
the gpplicshle benchmarks and rates, are recognised a3 a liability 25 the employes provides services,
with a comresponding charge to profic or loss or incuded in the cost of assets where appropriate.

All eligible employees overseas pamicipate in local defined comribution schemes. The Group

contributes 1o these defined contribution schermes based on the requirements of the local regulatory
bodies.
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

14 Employee bencfits (contimed)
14.2 Past-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant baows and regulations of the PRC, the Group paricipates in 2 defined
contribution basie pension insurance in the social insurance system cstablished and managed by
government onganisations, The Group makes contributions to basic pension insurance plans based
on the applicable benchmarks and rates sipulated by the government. Basic pemsion insurance
contributions are recognised as pare of the cost of the assews o charged o profic or Joss as the relared

In addition, employees in Mainland China also paricipate in a defined conwribution retiremen
benefit plan esablished by the Group (the "Annuity Plan®). The Group and s employees are
required 1o contribute o centain percentage of the employees’ previous year busic mlaries w the
Annuity Plan. The contribution is charged to profit or loss when it is incurred. The Group pays 2
fized comeribution intw the Annuity Plan and has no obligation w pay funther contribudons if the
Annuity Plan does not hold sufficient assets to pay all emplayee benefits.

14.3 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable a5 a result of either the Group's decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal redremen: daze or an employee's decision 1o accept an offer of

benefits in exchange for the rermination of employment. The Group recognises rermination benefits
in profit or loss at the carlicr of:

—  When the Group can no longer withdraw an offer of those benefie; and

=  When the Group has a specific, formal restructuring plan imvolving payment of termination
benefits, and the plan has stared or the details of the plan have been notified to each affecied
party, so that cach parry has developed reasonable expecrations.

144 Early retirement benefits

According to the Group's policy on eardy retirement benefies, certain employees are entitled to ke
leave of ahsence and in retumn receive 2 cermin level of staff salaries and related benefits from the
Group. The salaries 2nd benefit payments are made from the date of early resirement to the normal
retirement date. Differences arising from changes in assumprons and estimares of the present value
of the lisbilities are recognised in profic or loss when it is incurred.

15  Orther provisions and contingent labilities

A provision is recognised for an obligation related 1 2 contingency if the Group has a present obligarion
that can be extimated reliably, and it is probable thar an cutflow of economic benefits will be required o
sentle the obligation. A provision is initially measured 2z the best cntimate of the expenditure required
settle the relaved present obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks, uncertaindes and
time value of money are taken into account as 4 whale in reaching the best estimate. Where the effece of
time value of monsy is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows,

For a possible obligation resulting from a past eranssction or event whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-ocowrence of uncertain future events or a presens obligation resulting from a
past transaction or evens, where it is not probable that the sextlement of the above obligation will cause
an outflow of econemic benefin, or the amount of the outflow cannot be estimared reliably, the possible

or present obligation is disclosed as 2 contingent liability.
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16 Fidociary activitics

18

The Group acts in a fiduciary activity a8 2 manager, a custodian, or an agene for customers. Astets held
by the Group and the related undertaldngs to return such assets to customers are recorded a5 off-balance
sheet items a5 the ritks and rewards of the assew reside with customers.

The Group enters into entrusted loan agreements with cus wherehy the o s provide fi g
(“entrusted funds”™) to the Group, and the Group grants loans wo thind parties (“entrusted lozns™) under
instructions af the customers. As the Group does not assume the rids and rewards of the entrusted loans
and the cormesponding entrusted funeds, the entrussed loans and funds are recorded as off-balance sheet
inems ar their principal amounts, Ne provision for impairment loss is made for entrusted loans.

Other equity instruments
Preference shares

Such preference shares o theit components are inisially recognised 25 financial assets, financial liabdlicies
ar e u!:ytﬂ.nmmmumdlmu to the terms of the contract, the economic substance and the definidon
of financial assews, financial ties and equity instruments,

When the issued preference shares contain equity and lishilicy components, the Group follows the same
mgpdqufwmmbkbmmth?utrmwmuFutlﬁ:ﬁmndpmmwhdl
do not conmin equity ment, the Group follows the accounting policy for the convertihle bonds
with lﬂﬂﬂwmw:j

The issued preference shares that should be classified a5 equity instruments will be recognised a5 cquicy
in the actual amount received, Mmﬁlrmmgnmdndmhmnﬂpmﬁmﬁquhr be
written down by the redemption price for any redemptions made before maturing in accordance with
contractial

EEfiig.

Perpetual bonds

The perpenual bonds issued by the Groap do not include the comracrual obligations e pay cash or other
financial zssets to other parties or exchange financial assets or Ainancial liabilitdes with other parties under
potential adverse conditions; and perperual bonds imued indudes no terms and armangement that the
bonds must or will alternatively be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments. The perpetual bonds
issued by the Group are divided Into equity instruments. The handling fees and commissions incurred in
lssulng the pe ulbmﬂmdhiﬂinmoquhylnﬂmmu.mdrbtmﬁuﬂnnmmdﬁhmd
from equity. inverest on perperual bond is recognized as profit distribution at the tme of declaration.

Revenue recognition

18.1 Interest income

Interest income for financial assets is recognised in profit or los as it is incurred, based on the
time for alienation of right to use cpital and effective interesr rates. Interest income includes the
amortisation of any discount or premium or diffcrences berween the inbal carrying ameunt of an
interest-bearing asser and i amount ar maturity caboulared wsing the effective interest rae.

The effective interest method is 2 method of clculating the amortised cost of 2 financial asset and of

allocating the interest income. The effective interest rate is the rate that exserly discounts estimated

future cash payments or reccipes through the expeened life of the financial instrument or, when

m:dﬂmwﬁm:hmunﬂngm:ﬂmsﬂnmddmm&m
ve

interest raze, h&mmﬁhw%mmﬁh
instrument but does not consider future credit losses, The includes all fees paid
oS

or reccived between partics to the contract, transaction and all other premiums or discounts
that are an Integral pare of the effective interest rate.
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II SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

18 Revenue recognition {cominued)

18,1 Interest income (continued)
For the purchased or originared credic-impaired financial assers, the Group caloulares the interess
income according 1o the amortised cost of the financial asscts and the ive interest rate after

credit adjustment since the initial recognition by the Group, The effective interest mie after credic
adjustment refers 1o the extimated future cash flows of the acquired or originated fnancial asets with
credit impairment in the expected duration, which s converted ineo the interest rate of amortised
cost of the financial assers.

For the financial amets acquired or originated without any credic impaioment, but incurred credit
impairment in the subsequent period, the Group alculates the interest income in accordance with
the amottised cost and the cfective interest rate of the financial assets.

18.2 Fee and commission income

The income should be recognised when the Group's performance obligadon in the conmac: &
Fulfilled, which refers the mu:hmhndnﬁinlh:mnmubdud::mnmlﬂghtuf
relevant goods or services, To obtain the right of conmol over related goods or services means o
be able to dominate the use of such goods or the provision of such services and obtain almost all
economic benefits therefrom.

The Group eams fee and commission income from 2 diverse range of services it provides w i
customers. For those services that are provided over a period of time, foc and commission income
is accrued in accondance with the terms 2nd conditions of the service agreement. For other services,
fee and commission income is recognised when the tansctions are completed.

18.3 Other income
Orher income i recopnised on an accrual basie

19 i‘.'l:llnz nses rﬂ;ngn'tl:inn

19.1 Interest expenses
Ingerest expenses from financial Habilisics are accroed on a tme proportion basis with reference o
the amortised cost and the applicable cffective interest mie.
19.2 Other expenses
Other expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.
20  Deferred tax

Dieferred rax is provided, wsing the labiliy method, on all emporary differences ar the end of the
reporting period between the mx bases of assers and lishilities and their carrying amounes for financial
TEpRTLing, purpeses.

Dieferred tax liabilives are recognised for all txable temporary differences, excepe:

= when the deferred tax lighilicy arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assee or liabilicy

in a transaction that is not 2 busines combination and, at the dme of the tanscion, affects neither
the aceounting profit nor taxable profit or lass and

- in respect of raxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable thar the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.
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0

21

22

23

Deferred max fcontnicd)

Dheferred tax atsers are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax loges. Defermed tax asets ane recognised o the extent that it is probable
thar tsxable profic will be available against which the deducible remporary differences, the carryforwand
of unused rax credits and unused tx losses can be wnilised, excepes

—  when the deferred tax asser relating to the deduciible temporary differences asises from the iniiial
ion of an asser or [abilicy in a wransscdon thar is not a business combination and, ax che
time of the transsetion, affects neither the aceounting profit nor mxable profit or loss; and

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred gax
asgets are only recognised to the extent thar it Is probable thar the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profie will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Dheferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply o the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on mx rares {and rax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Thzunﬂng:mmﬁd:&nuiu:mumﬂwﬂummdnfm:ﬁupmﬁnspuhdudmdm
to the extent thar it is po longer probable that sufficient tacable profic will be svailable w allow all or
part of the deferred tax asser vo be wrilised, Unrecognised deferred rax assers are reasseised an the end of
each reparting perbod and are recognisted to the extent that it has become probable thar sufficient taxahle
profit will be available w allow all or pare of the deferred tax asset to be recoversd.

Deferred tax assets and deferred rax [abilities are offser if a legally enforceable right exisn 1o ser off current
tax assets against current tax lishilities and the deferred taves relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority,

Dividenda

Dividends or distributions of profies proposed in the profit appropriation plan which will be sutherised
by the Group and declared afier the end of the reperting year are not recognised as a lisbility at the end
of the year bur disclosed separately in the motes o the financial starements,

Related parties

If & Group has the power 1o comrol, joimtly conmol or exercise significant influence over anather party,
or vice versa, of where the Group and one or more parties ane subject to common contrel or joint
control from another party, they are considered o be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
or enterprises. Enterprises with which the Group is under common conirel only from the Suate and that
have no other relared party relattonships are not regarded a3 relared parties,

Segment reporting

Reporable sepments are identified based on operating segments which are determined based on the
structure of the Group's Internal arganisarion, management requirements and internal reponting system,
whose operating rosults are regulardy reviewed by the Group's management o make decisions about
resources to be allocated o the scgment and assess its performance. Any segments which do not comply
with the repornting of segments by division of quantities are repored ar consolidarion level,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN hFl’L't'INGi
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial sarements requines managemnent to make estimares and asumpdons thas affect the
application of zccounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and cxpenser. Actual
resules may differ from these estimates. Esimares and underlying assumpions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimare s revised and in
any future periods affected.

Areas susceprible to changes in critical estimanes and judpements, which affect the carrying value of assets and
lishilities, are set out below. It is possible that acrual results may be materially different from the essimates and
judgements referred below.

1 Impairment losses oo financial asscts

The Group follows IFRS 9t measuse impairment losses of all financial assets. In this process, there are
many estimates and judgements, especially the determination of the amount of impairment losses, the
etimation of funere contract cash flows, the value of collareral, and the criteria for judging a significant
increase in eredit risk The Group's impairment measurement i impacted by many factors, which will
lead to different levels of allowance for impairment.

The Group's expected credir loss calouladon is the resule of model ourpur, which conmins many model

asamptions and parameter inputs. The accounting judgements and estimates wsed in the expected credit
loss maodel include:

+  criteria for judging a significane increase in credit risk
*  definition of credic impaired asew

*  parameters for the measurement of ECL

*  forward-locking information

+  modification of contractual cash Aews

2 Fair value of financial instruments

There are no quoted prices from an active market Ffor a number of fnancial instruments. The fir values
of these financial instruments are established by using valuation techniques. These techniques include
using recent arm's length market transacrions by referring 1o the currens fair value of similar insrumenis,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, The Group has established a work flow to ensure
that the vahuation techniques ane constructed by qualified personne]l and are validated and reviewed by
independent persannel. Valuation techniques are certified and calibrated before implementartion 1o ensure
thar the valuation result reflects the acrual marker condivons. Valuation models csablished by the Group
make maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as possible on the Group's specific dara. However,
it shoubd be noted that some inpuss, such as credit and counterparty risk, and risk correlations require
management'’s estimates, The Group reviews the above emimatons and sssumprons perisdically and
makes adjustment if necessary,
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180

lncome taxes

Dietermining income mx provisions iovolves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The CGroup carcfully evahexres the tax implications of eransactions and max provisions are set up accordinghy.
The tax weatment of such transactions i reconsidered periodically to ke into account all changes in
differences. As those deferred x ames can only be recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that
frrure taxable profits will be available against which the unused rax credics can be urilised, management’s
judgement Is required to atsess the probability of futuee taxable profis. Management's asessment it
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that fumre
caxable profits will allow the deferred ax assets o be recovered.

Impairment of non-financial asers

Mon-financial amets are reviewed regulady o determine whether the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount of the assers. IF any such indicarion exists, an impairment loss is provided.,

Since the market price of an asser (the asset group) cannot be obeined refiably, the fair value of the asser
cannot be emimated reliably, In assessing the presens valoe of funire cash flows, significans judgements
are exerciied over the asser’s selling price, relaved operating expenses and the discount rate to calculare
the present value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are used for estimation of the recoverable
amount, including the estimation of the selling price end relared operating expenses based on reasonable
and supportable assumprion.

DE?IT’\'JI'J“D I.I'Hl I.I'Dul.'f.:ll.d.lﬂn

Propeny and equipment and inangible assess are depreciaced and amormised wsing the sraightc-line method
over thelr estimated useful lives after aking into sccount residual values. The estimated useful lives are

Mmdmiududzpfﬁ:dnﬁmdtmﬂuﬂnumchﬂpﬁhﬂtmp&ini
The estimated useful lives are determined based on historical experiences of similar assets and the essimared
technical changes. If there Is an indication thar there has been a change in the factors wsed 1o derermine
the depreciation or amortisation, the amount of depreciation or amortsation will be revised.

Judgement in assesmsing control over structured entities

The Group i involved with stroctured entbtes in in normal business course, and the Group determines
whether or not to consolidase those stroctured entities depending on whether the Group has conerol
over them. When asesing control over structured entities, the Group takes into consideration the power
arising from righes bt direcly owns or indirecsly owns throsgh subsidiaries {incdluding controlled struciured
entitics], variable returns, and the link berween power and retuena,

The variable returns ehe Group b exposed to from its involvement with structured entities inchude decision
makers' remuneradon {much a3 management fecs and performance-relared fees), a3 well a8 other benefis
{such as investment income, remuneration and cxposure to boss from providing credie or Hquidity suppere,
and variable retums from transctions with structured entities). When assessing whether it controls 2
structured entity, the Group not only considers applicable legal or regulsory requiremenis, and contracrual
agreements, bur also other circumstances where the Group may have the obligation to absorb any loss of
the structured entity.

The Group resssesses whether it cantrols a stracrured encity if facts and circumanances indicate thar there
are changes to one ar mote of the relovant dlemenes of control,
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IV TAXATION

The Group's main applicable raxes and tax races are as follows:

(2} Value-added mx value-added tax is charged at 6% and 13% on tamble added value

{b} Ciry construction tax: elty construction tax bs calculated as 19%-7% of wrnover tax paid,

{c) Education surcharge: education surcharge is caloulated a5 3% of turnover tax paid.

{d) Imcome tax: the income tax is cabeulated on awahle income. Taxaden on the Bank and subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25%. Taxation on overseas operations i charged at the relevant local rates. Tax paid
on overseas operations is ser off w the coent allowed under the refevane income tx laws of the PRC.

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 MNet interest Income

Note L | r) 2021
Interest income arising fram
Deposits with the centmal bank 4,619 4,800
Depasits with banks and other financial insitutions 75 224
Placementz with banks and other financial
instirtions 3433 1,392
Loans and advances o customers {a)
— Corporate loans and advances 81,033 77042
— Personal boans and advances 89,442 B4.417
= Discounted bills 2350 2277
Finance lease reccivables 6,084 6,358
Financial assers held under resale agreements 915 551
Inveimens 53358 32,273
Interest expenses arising from
Dhue o the cenral bank 2,218 5,870
Depasits from banks and other financial
institutions 10,106 11,814
Placements from banks and other financial
instinuzions 4422 3,817
Dreposits from customers
= Corporaze customers 64,098 57.786
= Individual customers 22294 19,772
Financial assers sold under repunchase agreements 13% 598
Debe securite ised 23120 .52
Suboial B L 117,179
Met interest incame 113,655 112,155
Foic

fad T it s srisiny from imationd fimascial st fir iy g pnled 31 Decomber 2023 ammeionted de RAETRE million (203 RMBHOT
il
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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g ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2  Net fer and commission income

182

2022 2021
Fee and commision income
Bank card scrvice focs 13,067 13,084
Wealth management service fees 4677 3976
Agency services fees 3,149 3,725
Sertlement and clearing fees 1,303 1,681
Custody and other Aiduciary busines foes 2058 1,872
Acceptance and guamntes fes 1,486 1,500
Underwriting and sdvisory foes 1335 1,412
Orhiers 2002 1,881
Subroul 30077 0,131
Fee and commission expense
Bank card transaction fees 1,735 1,835
Serrlement and clearing fees 183 192
s 790
Subtotal S 3 _L81T
Net fee and commission income 26,744 27314
3 Net rrading gains
2002 2021
Trading financial instruments
= Dlerivatives 1% 40
— Dby securitics 2,155 2,139
Subrotal 2346 2,179
Precious metal contracs 124 14
Total 2470 2,193
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

4

5

Nex guins arising from investment securities
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2022 2021
Mex gains arising from financial investments ar fair value
through profit or los 5,642 10,219
et gains/(losses} ariving from debs instruments at fir value
through other comprchensive income 17 (483)
et paing arising from loans and advamces 1 customers at
fair value through other comprehensive income 1,531 230
Net revaluation {Josses)/gains reclassified from other
comprehensive income on disposal __(774) 126
Toeal G416 10,092
Operating expenses
Mot 2022 021
Staff costs
~ SBalarles and bonuses 15,249 15,378
- Pension and annuicy 2,382 1,156
~ Housing allowances 1,166 1,088
— Seaff welfares 714 677
- Supplementary retivement benefits 334 282
= Dthers - 2409
Subeoml ) 2037 21,990
Premises and equipment cxpenses
— Deprecistion of rght-of-use assers 2,760 2722
- Depreciation of property and equipment 2412 2,082
— Amortisation of intangible asers 850 G
— Rental and property management expenscs 541 516
— Interest expense on lease liabilivies 428 4652
= Amarisasion of other long-term assews 336 297
Hubaazal 7.327 6,743
Tax and surcharges 1,766 1.620
Ovther general and administrative expenses {a} 13,8597 15,187
Total 45,227 45,540

Nete:

) b praval and asimislerany apena inokelel aediver) semmmeresion of B 50 willon for ohe yar puded 1) Dvemiber X002 (025

R 0 s ).
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g ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 Directors’ and supervisors” emoluments

The emoluments before individual incame tax in reipect of the directors and supervisors who held office
during the reporting year are as follows:
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

6 Directors’ and supervisors' emoluments {continucd)

The emolurments before individual income tx in repect of the directors and supervisors who held offiee
during the reporting year are as follows: (continued)
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For the year ended 31 Devember 2012

g Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

xpressal i smillioes of Remminki, sl seherwise waced)
g ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

186

6

Directors’ and supervisors” envoluments (conrinued)

The emoluments before individusl incame tax in reipect of the directors and supervisors who held office

during the reporting year are a5 follows: (continued)
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 Directors’ and supervisors' emoluments {continucd)

The emolurments before individual income tax in repect of the directors and supervisors who held offiee
during the reposting year are as follows: (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 Directors’ and supervisors® envoluments (conrinued)
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The emoluments before individusl incame tax in respect of the directors and supervisors who held office

during the reporting year are as follows: (continued)
ek frimtimund]

fll O 09 Ay 203 i e Rk s Coworal Mloeaing 2021, My, Wang g war ool an & mow-asavntive devisee of ahe nighl Boand of

Dhireciers off the Bk And sn 20 May 2623 Mr. Wing fiang win chocie o sy Chairman aff the righil Bosral of Diirectors af the 158h meriing
of thy igheh Baced! of Dirocsory of the Hank, O 3 Aupuar J033, the CHI appravad Mr Wang fling’s qualification: a0 & diewciee and the
ohirman of s Soard’ o dirrvery of e Mank

M. X Fiangeal ) corm a3 an indepemdont divocror wdll cxpive in Frbrucey 2021, and e wil] comtiner 58 sweve a3 an imdepomdont direcior wnul
o gualiffvamions of b rrplsormesy are apprreed by e CIURC Tie Bank smeenond’ s 25 Marod 020 phar phe fior Fomserdinary Gramal
Morting of twr Crmpary basl sprovedd the circtiom gff Mr. Liw Shiping ar am inalrprnaen? mon-raretive dircter of thy Bamk On 18 fanwary
BUE she CHIR appreved M. Lise Shiping ar an indipwndras divecior of thr Bank, and M. Xa Hangeal na bongre sosk wp bis past

O 26 Awpust 2022 in the 21t mevting of tbr Eigha Board of Supervivers af the Bk, Mi (hon (ing war apgroved a the candlidae for
the putormal rparviser of tha mineh Baared of Suparvimey of she Bomk M. Wi Caalian’s vorm of ofice will ocpive v the dass af she slaciion of
Ml Ching e sl ecaernad Spereisee of e Bk by he provral mvting of shurebslders. (m 28 Sqpember X2, she Bl o 25T
iy Groeral morting f dharvbebims dcied My Chen Qing @ S ocirmal agervier of the Sant, and Mr, W Gaslin sorpped diwm
e bis o e

(O 19 Sopirwber 2022, in thy suff congers of the Bumk, v, Fing Wi amd M. L fiam were elociend o sl ngervisars of the minth Board
o Supervisers of sbe Famk M, X Krbuen amd M. St flamoni weacs! siep sloem an f 19 Sepormber 23

(O I Divcamiber 2020 duor b acfpuctmint of job. M. Fu Wimpen revipeed &1 m Exerative Divecier of ghe Band, (hairen aned momber of the
Kok (il Cammiscer of o aard gf Crevery, Chairman and seeber of dhe Commines ki Fimanr Drvsbpmens ond Casnamer
Rrghss Priticiion, and & mviesber of bt Sibuiigy Crmmities sl prodest of the Risd

a4 Mavoh J005 Mr. L3 Xisspany vesigesdd av phe Chairoen off she Boavd of Divecry, 8 wim-amenaive divsver;, @ hairman ana sssber of
i Sivatepic Lpmeitver of v Roand of Divevior. o o mredre o) dhe sronivianing Crerssiter of shr Ranb dir o b aufinrmeni.

Ve pasal compronation puichape i ches deevarey gnd rapereisery for shy poar wmied 1) Divoresdbere S50 dhaw win yov drem finslioed b svevidamay
with rrgulations of i PRC it smiberiie. The atunr of iy compensmion nol prsvided i & s oxperiad 1 b dpeificind dmgant s
by Grwagp s and 1 Bands fimancdel sistrmenis for dhe yoor emded 1) Divcrmbar 2022,

T abewr ievcie” ol ipervinen ' roslommn fir dy e e 3 Docrmber 2023 wwrr colrubiiod i scorrilomor wish shrir achond i

294/425



¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

T

Individuals with highest emoluments
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2022 2021
Salaries and other emoluments 2,749 2,974
Discretionary bonuses 23,275 24,674
Contributions to pension schemes 73 250
Orthers: __—_?_‘3_3.!__ 1.317
Toal 27,230 29,215

Mone of the five individuals with the highest emoluments are direcon or supervisors, The number of
these Individuals whose emoluments before individual ineome tax are within the following bands is set

our belows

2022

2021

FAEBS, 000, 001-3, 500,000
EMES, 500,001-4,000,000
RAB4,000,001-4,500,000
RMEA, 500,001-5,000,000
RMB3,000,001 and above

w4

wba | o

Mone of these individuals received any induc o o

emoluments during the reponing year.

Credit impairment losses

ign for lom of office, or waived amy

2022 202
Loans and advances to customers .
~ measured ar amaostised cost 47,366 50,766
— measured ax fair value through ether comprehensive
ineame 30z [z
Debe instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income 500 233
Financlal investments measured ar amortised cost 2,062 5,229
Finapee lease toecivabiles 815 619
Others L 43 (1.955)
Taal 50,600 54,772
189
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

154}

9  Incomo tax
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(a) Income taxs
Maoae V 2022 021
Current tax 22,286 10,371
Defereed tax 23(b) (11,607} (393
Adjusments for prios year Wby 247 (76)
Total 10,926 9,302
(b} Reconciliations between income tax and accounting profit are as follows:
Mooe vz 2021
Profit before tax 55,966 52,941
Smamtory max rate 25% 25%
Income tax caloulated at stamnory @ rate 13,992 13,235
Effect of different rax rates apphied by
i, subsidiasi @ =
Non-deductible expenses and others TS 2,111
Non-taxable gains
= Nen-taxable income L1 — - (5,964
Subsoml 7 9378
Adjustments for prios year v (76
Income tax 10,926 9,302
N

(0 Mewaeable incmer msindy inchue interret inceme of PR mosury benak snd divideask of flask
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUEL)

10 Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per share was compated by dividing the net profit actributable o the ordinary sharcholders
of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in isue during the year,

2022 2021
et profit anributable to equity holders of the Bank 44,807 43,407
Less: Diividends 1o other equity instruments holders 4,811 4,800
Met profic amrdbutable w erdinary sharcholders of the Bank 39,996 38,607
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in
Basic carnings per share {in RMB/share) 0.74 071
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in lssue (in million thares)
2022 2021
Bsued ordinary shates a¢ ae | January =~ M0 34,032
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in e
[in million shares) 54,032 54,032

Diluted earnings per share was computed by dividing the nee profic attributable to the ordinary sharcholders

of the Bank based on assuming conversion of all dilurive potential shares for the vear by the adjusted

welghted average number of ordinary shares in isue. The Bank had converible bonds as diluive potenial
shares.

ardinary
2022 2021
Met profit amributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Bank 35,996 38,607
Add: Inverest expense on convertible bonds, ner of 794 776
Met profic ussd 1o devermine dilared earnings per share 40,790 39,383
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in fasae
{in million shares) 54,032 54,032
Add: Weighted average number of crdinary shares asuming
conversion of all dilutive shares (in million shazes) 6,317 6,436
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluned
__ carnings per share (in million shares) P 60,468

Diluted eraiogs per shate {in RMB/share) 0.67 0.65

121
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 Cash and deposits with the central bank
31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
Cash on hand 4,022 4,005
Dreposits with the central bank
— Sunutery deposin reserves () 281,357 231,760
= Surplus deposit reserves (b} 67,141 90,164
= Foreign exchange risk reserves (<) 243 =
— Fiscal deposins Il 358 2,195
Subroral 356,285 378,128
Accrued interess RN ). 135
Total 356,426 378,263
L

fa) e Growp plaon sarcery doheit e with sbe Praple’ Pank of Ching (she FBOCT in acoondence with reinaond repulesions. At b end
o by v iy ity ipis roarey vt applicabir o oy Sand werr a fillees

31 Ihvormber 3P Detrwber

e ol

Rearrre ritéa v B depenit 7.50% Bo0%
Besrrvr ratle for foreipn carmescy dipanis E00N 2004

Ty tasutary dipasit reren o mot swablabls for the Growp'h daily durimen. The KA dopavit rewrve raiia of she Grongs ) mebiiarien i ifimonad
CRyma s et (m avvpediniy wish che rpbmamns ropelesiens of ke PR The amewnn of nanawey depais mvommes placed wark she conrval fumbs
The perplur depociy vesveen oy waimined ok ghe FROEC for dhe purpasy of slsaving

fil e fareipn-rochanpe risk resmer i ohe fernips-nohange visk roever gl by the Gowgs s the PBOM in acoprdanor wrinh she relrwot prevtion
An ar 31 Devemiber 2022 oy powparsion of fernigm-oonkavgy rish roerve hall be 0% (57 Disvemiber J0001) G95)
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

12 Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Analysed by type and locatlon of counterparty
31 Drecember 31 December
2022

2021
Dieposits in Mainland China
— Banks 17,552 25,855
= Other financial insticutions 1,022 418
Drepasits overscas

_ = Banks - 25348

32,489 51,621

Accrued interest | 15 7
Taual 32,508 51,648
Less: Provision for impairment Josses (435) {459}
Mex balances 32,073 51,189

13 Placements with banlis and other Ananclal tnstitiathons

Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Placements in Mainland China
~ Banks 6,068 11,795
= Drher financial inevicutions 85,049 78469
Placements overszas
— Banks _3B727 48,268
Subrotal 129,844 138,532
Accrued interest = 221
Toel 130,223 138,753
Less: Provision for impaiement loses 0 (404)
Met balanees 129,979 138,349
193
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 Derivatives and hedge sccounting
Derivative Anancial instruments included forward, swap, and option contracts underaken by

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
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the Group

in forcign currency and interess rate markets, The Group acts as an intermediary between a wide range

of customers for mructuring deals o provide risk

management solutions to meet customer needs, These
positions. are actively managed through entering into back-to-back deals with external parties

E0 cAfne

that the Group's net exposures zre within acceptable risk level. The Group also uses derhvative financial

instruments to manage its own asset and lishilicy portfolics and struciural positions,

The fol

tables provide an analyiis of the notonal amounts of derivative financisl instruments

of the Group and their corresponding fair values at the end of the year. The notional amounts of the

derivatives indicare the volume of mansctions ourstanding ar the end of the reporting year, while they
do not represent exposure ar risk.
(@) Analywed by nature of contract
31 Diecember 2022
B Fair value I
Motional amount Aszets Liahilities
Imceress rate derivatives
— Imterest rare swa 1,037,901 4. 768 (4,518)
= Trcasury bond futures 308 1 —
Currency derivatives
~ Foreign exchange forwards 22,844 540 (348)
~Forelgn exchange swap and
CTOE-CURTENCY iNferest mie swaps 659,026 10,130 (9,379}
= Foreipn exchange options 9,519 91 (16)
Credic debadves 160 - -
Taotal 1,729,758 15,730 (14,261)
31 December 2021
_ Fair value
Motanal ameunt Asvets Liahilities
Imterest rare derivatives
— Interest rate swaps 1,020,673 G470 (6,723)
Currency derivatives
- Foreign exchange forwards 38,778 Go2 {496)
- Fareign exchange swap and cross-
CUSTEnCY interest fate swaps 801,008 6,031 (6,077
= Foreign exchange opaions 22,829 601 (41)
Credic derivatives 30 1 -
Total 1,883,368 13,705 (13,337}
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

14 Derivatives and hedge accounting (costinucd)

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Councerpany default risk-weighved assers
— Ineerest rate desivatives 1,390 1,459
- Currency derivatives 2,652 2311
Credit value adjustment risk-weighted asers 4,443 1,882
Tosal 8,485 5,652

The risk-weighted amets for counterparty cedic risk ("CCR") of derivatives of the Group werz
calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and ocher
relevant eegulations under the advaneed eapital measurement Far derivative transactions,
risk-weighted asets for CCR include the risk-weighted assets for defauls risk, and the risk-weighted
assets for crediv valustion adjustment (SCVA™). The risk-weighted assets for CCR of derivatives of the
Group were calculated in accordance with the Assets Measurement Rules for Counterparry Defaule
Risks of Derivatives since 1 January 2019,

() Hedging accounting
The Group uses interest rate swaps o hodge fair value changes caused by intcrest rate changes,
and the hedged ftem is fixed interest bonds. As a1 31 December 2022, the notional amounr of the
derivarive fAnancial irssrumens used by the Group for the fair value hedging instrument in the
hedge accounting was RMBG,239 million (31 December 2021 RMB3,270 million), in the above
hedging instrument, derivative financial asets was RMB416 million (31 December 2021: RMB41
million), derivative financial liabilitics was RMB14 million (31 December 2021: RMBL1 million).

In 2021 and 2022, the fair value changes recognised in the profit or loss anributed o the ineffective
hedping were not significant.
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%E ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 Finencial assew held wnder resale agreements

(2) Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
In Mainknd China
— Banks - 2300
~ (Dther financial institutions - 28,731
Crverseas
— Banks 28 2
= Other financial institutions = 133
Subsoral b 31,166
Acersed interest - 2
Total 25 31,168
Less: Provision for impairment bosses - 4}
Mer balaneces 28 31,164
(b) Analysed by type of collateral held
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bands
= Government bonds - 7586
= Onher debt securites 28 13,580
Subtoral ] 31,166
Accrued interest = 2
Tatal i 31,168
Lessz Provision for impairment losses = (4]
Net balances 28 31,164
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

16 Loans and sdvances to cosomers

(a) Analysed by mature
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Loans and advances vo cusiomers measured at
arnortised cos
Corporate loans and advances 1,838,407 1,720,006
Discounted bills 497 901
Personal loans and advances
- Persanal housing mortgage Ioans SRD. 758 565,296
= Personal business loans 257,190 03,600
— Persanal consumpiion loans 208,442 214,068
= Credit cards = 463,729 447,786
_Subtotal o LEsae 1,430,750
Loans and advances 1o customers at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Farfaiting — domestic letter of credit 93,043 70813
Discounred bills 121210 B4.834
Subroral o 24253 155,647
Tozal 3,572,276 3,307,304
Accrued intereor 10,255 8,981
Gross loans and advanecs te customers 3,582,531 3,316,285
Lews: Provision for impairment losses of loans and
advances w cusomers measured at amonised
cost _(B3,180) (76,885}
Met boans and advances to customerns 3,499,351 3,239,396
Provision for impaiemens losses of loans and
advances to customers at fair vahue chrough other
comprehensive income (776 (474}

As at the end of the year, part of the abowe loans and advanees to cusomers was pledged for
repurchase agreements, See Mote V 25{a),
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% ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Loans and sdvances 1o customers (continued)

(b) Analysed by industry

31 Diecember 2022
Loans and
advances secured
Ameunt Percentage by collsteral
Manufacwuring 379,002 10.59% 78,769
Water, environment and publéc uiliry
management 320,176 B.96% 120,441
Lessing and commercial services 268,954 7.530% 65,021
Real esvare 178,649 5.00% 117,234
Wholesale and resail eade 160,716 £.50% 41,165
Canstruction 151,748 4,25% 47,185
Transporation, storage znd postal
aefvices 100,579 310% 38,971
Finance 85,008 2.38% B 739
Production and supply of elecariciny,
gas and water 73,531 2.09% 14,816
Agriculture, foreitry, hushandey and
fishery 65,622 1.84% 19,029
Crhers 138,465 3.88% 32,387
Subroral of corporate loans and
advances 1,931,450 54.06% 583,758
Personal loans and advances 1.519.11% 42.53% 832,781
Discounted bills 121,707 3.41% 118,279
Toital 3,572,276 100, 00%: 1,534,818
Accrued interest 10,255
Gross loans and advances o customers 3,582,531
Less: Provision ot impairment boases of
loans and advances o cusomers
measured at amortised cost (83,180)
Met loans and advanees 1o customers 3,499,351
Provision for impairment bosses of
loans and advances o canomers
at fair valoe through ather
comprehensive inoome (776)

304/425

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

widlg ey FEOZ

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

16 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(b) Analysed by industey (cntinued)

31 December 2021
Loans and
advances secured
Amoant Percentage by collageral
Manufacturing 331050 10.01% 91,670
Water, enviranment and public utility
MARAREMERT 316,576 9.58% 125,894
Leasing and commercial services 242,545 7.33% 70,162
Real estate 197,503 5.97% 132,710
Wholesale and retail rade 149,726 4.53% 55,563
Construction 131,822 3.99% 41,151
Transporation, storage and postal
services 95,893 2.90% 35,341
Finance 76,557 2.31% 6,585
Agriculrure, foresary, hushandry and
63,008 1.91% 21,597
Production and supply of dectricity,
gas and warer 55,328 1.67% 12,371
Others 130,721 3.95% 36,352
Subtorl of corparate loans and
advances 1,790,619 54.15% 629,396
Personal loans and advances 1,430,750 43.26%: 759,940
Disgcounted bills 85,733 L.50% 75,514
Toul 3,307,304 L00L00% 1,464,850
Accrued interest 8,981
Gross loans and advances to customers 3.316,285

Less: Provision for impairment lossss of
foans and advances 1o cusomers
~ measured at amartised cout (76.889)
Met loans and advances to customens 3,239,396
Provigion for impalement loses of

loans and adwances o customers
at fair value chrough other
comprehensive Income (474)
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%E ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and sdvances 1o customers (continued)

() Asalysed by indnstey (continued)

As at the end of the year and For the year ended 31 December 2022, demiled informasion of the

impaired leans and advances o customers as well s the corresponding

logses in respect of each economic sector which constitute 10% or mare

0 customess is a5 follows:

31 Decesnber 2022

for impalrment
gross loans and advances

Swage 1

Impaired Smge 2 Suaged
lpansand (12menth  (Lifetime  (Lifetinee
advances ECL) ECL) BCLY cheyear  che year

charged  Written-aff
duting  during

Manufacturing 8,578 {3.397) {1.386) {£.630) 5,505 5072
(¢} Analysed by type of collateral
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Unsecured loans 1,192,422 1,076,478
Guaranteed loans 845,036 TH5976
Secured loans
~ By cangible assets other than monetary amets 1,188,728 1,117,183
— By monetary assens 346,090 347.667
Tatal 3572276 3,307 304
Accrued interest 10,255 8381
Gross Joans and advances o customers 3,582,531 3,316,285
Less: Provision for impairment losses of loans and
sdvances o customers measured ar amortised
<ot . [(83.180) (76.883)
Met loars and advinees 1o customers 3,499,351 3,239,396
Provision For impairment bosses of loans and
advances to cumomers at fair value through other
campreheniive inoome {776} (474)
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

16 Loans and mdveances to customers (continued)

31 December 2022
Loans znd
advances secured
Loan balance Percentage by collazeral
Yanpue River Delra B41,441 23.56% 332,851
Central 610,286 17.08% 319,605
Pear] River Diedta 511,900 14.33% 303,254
Bohsi Rim 465,674 13.04% 251,536
Western 446,599 12.50% IX2310
Owerseas 116,267 3.2596 21,940
Mortheasterm 106,440 298% 74,881
Head Offce 473669 1326%  BAdl
Toal 3572276 100.00% 1,534,818

: 2 Dasmuturs A0
Loans znd
advances. secured
Loan babinee Percentage by collareral
Yangme River Delra 750,167 2268% 305,064
Cenrral 578,837 17.50% 318,941
Pear] River Diedea 455,150 13.76% 263,547
Western 431,443 13.05% 231,123
Bohai Rim 429,285 12.98% 136,217
Maortheastern 107,845 3.26% THGL6
Overseas 106,765 3.23% 12,320
Hezd Office 447,812 13.54% 12
Toul 3,307,304 DO, 00%: 1,464,850
201
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and sdvances 1o customers (continued)

(d) Analysed by geographical distribution (continued)
As ax the end of the year, demlled informazion of the impaired loans and advances o customers as
well a1 the corresponding impairment provision in repect of grographic secton which constitute
10% or mate of gross loans and advances to customers is as follows:

31 December 2022

Trmpaired Seage | Stage 2 Srage 3

loans and {12-month {Lifedme {Lifetime

advances ECL) ECL) ECL)
Pearl River Delea 9326 {6,261} (3,008) (5.213)
Central 6,009 {5,900 (3.496) (3.444)
Yangtze River Dielta 4,724 (10,567) (2,246) (3,570)
Bohai Rim 4,428 (3,252} (1,8300 (3270
Western 4,186 (4,734) {3:499) (2,398)
Tetal 28,763 30,714) (14,079) (17.895)

31 December 2021

Impaired Stage 1 Stage 2 3

g S s LR i o

advances ECL) ECL} ECL)
Pearl River Diclra 9845 {5,507} (2,344) (4,587)
Bahai Rim 4,902 {2.985) (1.733) (2919
Yangize River Delta 4.7H {5,303) (2,136) (2,900}
Cenral 4,148 15,396) (3,584) (2,463)
Westera 3,497 @09)  (3559) (1913)
Total 217216 (27,240) {13.351) (14,782)

For the definition of regional divisions, see Note ¥V §9{k).
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16 Loans and ndvances to customers (coninued)

() Overdue loans anslysed by overdue period
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31 December 2022
Owerdue
Owerdue  more than Crerdue
within three three  mose than
rnvonths or months  one year 1o Overdue
bess 1o ome year  chree years  more than
(inchwsive)  (inclusive)  (inclusive]  three years Total
Unsecured loans 18,061 10,778 1,456 55 30,590
Guarznteed Joans 2,881 5,094 1975 357 10,307
Secured loans
= By tangible awcty other
than monesary assers 11,121 7382 7.540 1,289 27,332
— By moneury asiers 19 w4 B L6
Subrotal 32,182 24,223 11,519 1,979 69,903
Accrued intereit 108 - = = 108
Toaal 32,250 24,223 11,519 1,979 70,011
As a pereentage of gros
loans and advances wo
CusTomers 0.90% 0.68%. 0.32% 0.06% 1.96%
31 December 2021
Owerdue
Chwerdue  more than Owerdue
within three three  more than
mnths or months  one year w Overdue
les 10 one year  three years  more than
L] {inclusive)  (inclusive)  (inclusive]  three years Toul
Unsecured loans 14,526 10,872 1323 176 26,903
Guarzntesd loans 2912 3,263 2,111 4 B.G30
Secured loans
- By tangible assers other
than monezary assers 7.985 9,295 5841 BG5S 23,986
- By mongsary assets 4416 209 8548 2 6,183
Subtota] 29,839 24,339 10,139 1387 65,704
Accrued interest 645 N .. .. _ B45
Tosal 30484 24,339 10,139 1,367 6,349
As a percentage of gross
loans and advances w
cussamens 0. 92% 0.73% 0.31% 0.04% 2 (%

Overdue loans represent Joans, of which the whele or part of the principal or interest was overdus

for one day or more.
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and sdvances 1o customers (continued)
() Loans and advances and provision for impairment losses
31 December 2022
Seage 3
lpans and
advances as
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 a peroentage
(12-monch (Lifesime {Lifegime of loans and
ECL) ECL) ECL) Toral advances
Loan principal 3,418,026 106,860 47390 3572376 1.33%
Accrued inceres 8,441 1,530 284 10,255
Gross loans and advances
o CUstamErs 3426467 108,39 7674 3581531
Less: Provision for
Im
losses of loans
and adhances
T CUSTOmERT
measured at
_ amonised cost (36,726)  (17.680)  (28774)  (83,180)
Net loans and advances
0 CUSTOFErS 3,389,741 90,710 18900 3499351
31 December 2021 -
Stage 3
loans and
advances as
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 4 percentage
{12-manth ({Lifesime {Lifetime of loans and
ECL} ECL) ECL) Total advances
Loan principal 3,130,304 131,030 45,880 3307304 1.3%%
Accrued interest 7,169 1,400 403 8,981
Gross loans and advances
o custanser 3,137,563 132,439 46,283 3,316,285
Less: Provision for
impaizment losses of
loans and advances o
customers mcasuned ab
amortised cost (31.363)  {19.935)  (25591)  (75.889)
Net loans and advances
T CUSIOMETS 3,106,200 112,504 0692 3,239,396
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Y NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTIMUED)
16 Loans and ndvances to cusomers (continued)

{g) Reconcliation of provisien for Impatrment losses

2022
Stage 1 2 Stage 3
s

{12-month {Lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Total
Az gt 1 January 2022 {31,363) {19,935} (25,591) (76,885)
Transfer to Stage 1 (2,847) 2,511 336 =
Transfer to Stage 2 1,180 (1.377) 197 -
Transfer to Sage 3 427 3,348 (3,775) -
Net charge for the year {4,117) (2,227 (41,022) (47, 366)
Write-off and - - 47,828 47,828
Recavery of loans and
sdvances wriven off - - (7,505) {7.505)
Unwinding of discount on
allowance - - 758 738
Exchange fluctuation and
others . {6). = i 1]
As ar 31 December 2022 (36,726) {17,680} (28,774) (83,180)
2021
Seage 1 Seapge 2 Srage 3
{12-month (Liferdeme {Liferime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Total
As gt | January 2021 (31,192) {21,037 (23,304) (75,533)
Transfer to Seage 1 (3,492 2,843 649 =
Transfer to Ssage 2 2 (1.293) 341 -
Transfer to Suage 3 574 4,340 (4,914} -
Net for the year 1,827 (4,787 (47,806) (50,766)
Wri and disposal - - 54,253 $4.253
Recovery of loans and
sdvances wrinen off - - (5,757} {(5,757)
Unwinding of discount on
allowance: - - 07 907
Exchange fluctustion amd
oithers. ] (1) = 7
As at 31 December 2021 (31,363) {19,935) (25,591) (76.889)
Wekt:

i) Ve abeve peaniianion of previien o impairarnl i saly s g for impairaens b of baw and ddesnon i sssmy
swrured at awsortiond dmi. Ar @t 31 Decembser 2023, the balenir of provicien for impairownt luoe of lams and sdvences 1 cusiwmar
& fuir valur chepsgh ather comprobumsivs incene wuy BMBTTS maillion (37 Decrmber 2031: RMIHPA milliom].
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and sdvances 1o customers (continued)

(k) Reschedaled loans and advances to castomers
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Rescheduled loans and advances o customers A0 4,634
OFf which: Rescheduled loans and sdvances w

customers overdise more than W0 days 19 70

17 Finance lease reccivables

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Finance lease receivables 126,223 127,150
Less: Unearned finance lease income (14,945} (15,556)
Present value of finance lease receivables 111278 111,594
Acerued Inveress 1,122 1,223
Lews: Impairment losses IR _(3.764)
Mer balance 108,012 109,053

Minimum Brance leaie receivables analysed by remaining period is listed a8 follows:
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Less than 1 year {inclusive) 39,200 36,337
1 year to 2 years (inclsive) 31,903 29,568
2 years to 3 years (inclusive) 24,685 24,301
3 years 1o 4 years (inclusive) 14,703 17,585
4 years 1o 5 years (Inclusive) 7428 10,763
_More than 3 years B33 B,596
Towl 126,223 127,150

18 Financial investments

31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
Financial assets ag fir value through profit or los (a} 403,617 383,606
Debr insruments ax fair value through other
eomprehensive incame (k) 449,596 325,695
Equity instruments at fair value through ather
comprehensive income i<} 1,126 1,125
Financial investrents measured a1 amorised cost (d) i 1,192,273 1,125,530
Toul 2,046,612 1,836,016
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Financial investments {cominued)

(a) Financlal assets at fair valoe through profit or loss
31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
[k inssuments held for wrading (i} 109,540 50,891
Other financial assets ar fair value through
_ profit of loss o 293977 33TV
Toul 403517 363,566

fil  Debt instruments beld for trading
31 December 31 Decembser

Motes w022 2021
Issued by the following governments
or knstitutions:
In Mainknd China
- Gaovernment 9,407 4,146
- Banks and other financial instinutions 79,658 33,520
= Orther institusions (1) 19479 11.243
Chrctacas
- Government 256 797
~ Banks and other financial instmicns 372 351
— Onher butimrions 468 534
Total {2) 109,540 30,821
Listed 3 1,542 2,051
Of which: lised in Hong Kong 570 881
Unlisted _ lozn9a 48,840
Toul 109,540 50,891
W
(i e b oo off el g, sl e i by saber ittt i Misinlind Chins matinly ipresiied] dobe sacsrinics bmid

by staie-umad enirmprises amal jrint dack smberprivn dn Mirinkond (hine

(A7 Lived deermes isnkely didy imaewemess maded 1u @ med kg
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% ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18

Finuncial investments {contimmied)
(2) PFinancial assets at falr valoe through profit or lass (continued)
{#)  Ovher financial amets st fair value through profit or L

31 December 31 December

2002 2021
Fund investments 214,031 253,537
Equity instruments 5,059 4,088
Others . 74,887 73130
Total 293,977 332,775

(b} Debt instruments at fair valoe through other comprehensive income
(i)  Analysed by type and location af coumterparty

31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
In Mainland China
= (Government 196,287 125286
= Banks and other fnancial instinstions () 143,053 98,420
— Orher Insthnurions (] 65,207 58,904
Cheerucas
= Government 4437 @3
— Banks and other financial institutions 17,852 15,835
— Osher intitutions — 22211
Suboaal 442,914 320,749
Accrued interest G682 4,946
Toal (3104} 449,596 325,695
Listed (5 55,718 56,394
O which: lisied in Hong Kong 33,248 38,665
Unlised 387,196 264,355
Subrosal 442,014 320,749
Accrued Inuerest _ 6,682 4,946
Toal 449,59 325,695
Lo

i

dnrvrasiens i Masndind Cibing

vkt fotramres inard by other ousinmsey maisly apenear dele e ol Y me-ouned meeprie o jeial ok
sasrrprier im Alinlind Ching

A ar 51 Dvoreber J0EL dhe provisian for impairnons b of o debt incorammsy az fabr valee shrouph scher compretoser
s appraimated W RMAT2IE millien (1) Dvoresber 202). FMBGRT milion

apereeuran and niv depaiin, s Nowe 000

Fizesd imwpmmman it drby imremaan maded o8 @ ok pechangy.
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18 Financlal investments {continued)

(b) Debt instraments at fair value through other comprehensive Income (continued)
(i) Reconciliztion of provirion for tmpairment losses on debi insirumenis af fair value through
ober comprebensive income

022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
{12-month (Lifetime {Lifecime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Toal
As ar 1 January 2022 4o (104) {173} (BET)
Transfer 1o Stage 2 10 (300 20 -
Transfer 1o Srage 3 31 104 {135) -
Net charge for the year (33) (103) (302) {500)
Exchange Rucrustion
and athers . A6) (25) = (31
As at 31 December
2022 (470) (158) (590) {1,218)
021
Seage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
{12-month (Lifetime (Lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Tozal
As at 1 January 221 (420) - {36} (456)
Transfer w Suge 2 7 [} - -
Transfer to Stage 3 & - (i) =
Net charge for the year i3 on (131} [233)
Exchange Buctustion
and others 2 - - 2
As ar 31 December
2021 410) (104) (173 (6E7)

(e} Eguity instruments at falr value throogh ether comprehensive Incame
31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
Liszed (i} 24 23
l.._fn1|.gmd 1,102 1,102
Toeal (i 1,126 1,125
Peoter
i L o imaludy ppuiry madrd 4 merk eohengy

The (irewp diviprsied the oquizy inroramenn mer bold for frading o meanced o foir rabur ibrough sthe cmprofeanie moeme Fre she
o emled N1 Dhoopmbor 020, phe Girongy b myvriond dividond) o RAMNED williom from ghe whivy apuity imirwmmenss (01 RARID
i,
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%E V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18

Finuncial investments {contirmed)

{d) Plnancial Investments measured ot amortised cost

31 Decernber 31 December

Nows 202 2021

Db securities and asser-backed insruments (i 1,105,621 978,630
Chhers M TATER 139,573
Submoeal 1185410 1,118,203
Accrued interess 17,745 17,652
Total 1,203,155 1,135,855
et balance 1,192,373 1,125,530
Listed (it 217.335 157,553
O which: listed in Hong Kong 29,541 15,725
Unlisted 957,193 950,325
Subzoeal 1,174,528 1,107,878
Accrued intecest RS 7 - 17652
Met balance 1,192,373 1,125,530

type and location of counterparty a follews:

31 December 31 December
Motes 2022 2021
In Mainland China
= Gévernment 405,772 364,017
— Banks and other finangial institutions 385,852 405,557
— Oher instirutions (1) 242,040 187,762
Ohverseas
= Government 29,524 5,260
— Banks and other financial instinetions 31,001 6,572
_~ Other institutions B 9462
Subtotal 1,105,621 978,630
Accrued Interest 1730 16,823
Toeal () 1,122,951 995,453
Less: Provision for impairment Josses I e (3981}
Mex balance 1,118,734 991,472
Fair value 1,135,161 1,003,770
Moisi:
(1) Chuer dnminesiens mainly represens i and foims suwck ensreprives in Mainband (hina

(2 A e ot of iy paar; pare o ohe b et st o e e weee plalged o reparchass agrevesas, s depnn

| devisativs amiderian, S Mo V 250
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15

Financial Investments (continusd)

(d} Financhal investments measured at amortied cost (continued)
i) Other fingncisl investmenis mearured ai amortived cost mainly include irasis and other

riplits fo earmings.

fifi) Lirted investments include debt instruments traded on o stock exchange.
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fiw) Recomciliarion of prowiriom for impairmens loeses om fimamcial investments measured ar
amortised cost:

317/425

3!}2]
5 1 2 3
Cmh (e
ECL) ECL) ECL) Total
As ar 1 January 2022 {1,361} (1.315) [T549) (10,325)
Transfer m -S'hp 2 36 {.m - -
Transfer w Smage 3 162 1,314 (1476) -
Ner charge for the year (88) (19) (1,955) (2,062)
Write-off and disposal - - 1,579 1,579
Exchange Ructuation
and athers (74) - = (74)
As a1 31 December
2022 (1.325) (56) (9.501) (10.882)
2021
Seage 1 Srapge 2 Suage 3
{12-month {Lifetirne {Lifetime
[ —— _ECL) B _Tosd
As ar | January 2021 (1,932} [472) (2,734) {5,138)
Transfer 1o Suage 2 104 (104) - e
Transfer o Suge 3 e 195 {297) -
Net charge for the year 323 (o34) (4,618) {5.229)
Exchange Huctuation
and others 42 = - 2
As ar 31 December
2021 (1,361) (1,315) (7.649) (10,325)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Deveber 2012
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g ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19 lovestment in subsidizries and joint ventares

(a) Inwestments ln sabsdiaries

2022 2021
Everbright Financial Lessing Co., Lud. 4,680 4,680
CEB Intemnational Investment Co., Lud. 2,267 2267
Shacshan Everbright Rural Bank Co., Led. 105 105
Jiangsn Huai'an Everbright Rural Bank Co., Led, 70 70
China Everbright Bank Compary Limited (Europe) 156 156
Jiangxi Ruijin Everbright Rural Bank Co., Led. 105 105
Everbright Wealth Ca., Led. 5,000 5,000
Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Ca., Led. — 600
Total 12,983 12,983

The desails of the subsidiaries are presented as follows:

[ — Regmond  Lovemmet  Vodag Ecosomic
Carporms mame whdrmy apnl  pepoie peporien  Muin buine  mtwrefiype
Erebeight Fraschl Lacing G, Wkun, Hbel ™ % W% Louing fre—
Led (Ereririghe Fisaecil ey gy
Leaiieg)

CER Tnternatione] lotment Hoog Koag 1367 10ie 10 leemene Limeited
G Led (CES Tosormstions]) by gy
Shahn Brbeighe R Stambin 150 "% 7% Busking busioen  Incrpovid
Bosk o, Lo, (Thoostan Haan ey
Esabeigh Buak}

s Hasfin g Rl Hawis,Jings 10 " 7% Duking buine  Icupend
Bask G, Lad (Heain L
Everbeighe Buak}

(hizg Eresbeighe Buck Compuay  Linembony 1% 10 1% Bonking bosinen  Inceepomnied
Limited (Zxewge) {CEB SRR
B

Fangel Reijin Everbight ol R, Jaog 15 T Ttk Basking basinen  Tncerposiced
Bask Co., Lad. (R e
Eebegh bl

Everbeighs Wealth o, Lol Cagdan, 1] T W% Cpialpeii Limid
[Everxigha Wedlib! Shancbey Biieey s

Beijing Sussbine Cormnz Beifeg Lo Bl e Busking besizen  nceeponund
Feunce Ca., L (Sesdbine B
Coemsner)
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19 Investment in subsidinries and joint ventures {continucd)

(b) Investments In jolnt ventires

2022 021
As at | January 256 257
Incressed Investment (47 93
Investment louses under the equity method (B3} (&)
Foreign currency conversion difference N 4y
As ar 31 December 165 256

0 Pmpert}' and equ.iprnzni

Mot [ Mo
Comt
A ae | Jasvpary 2022 13529 10,134 2,656 9,151 4818 40,288
Ndditions 59 1 30 1373 EL] 2714
Transfers in{out) 690 < 750 : - [
Dispoeals = - = (556} (198) {754
Foregn cusrency
_ comveeicn Efevence = 2] - - - 92
As 3t 3] Dlecember 2012 14378 11,057 2531 9558 4971 43,106
Accumubiced depreciasos
sz | Jasary 2022 {4,895) (=) - {5.582) {3611 {14,970y
Charpe for the year (442} 3) - (1213} {364) 241
Dispisals - = - 525 182 7
Forcign asrency
cammesion deference = M = = = {4
_ Asat 31 December 2022 {5,357 (1.370) - (6,265} (3793 (L6768}
et
Azt | Jaoary 2002 (163) - - - - (163}
A 2t 31 Dieoember 2022 {163) e = = - {163}
Hex book walue
As 2t 31 Diecember 2022 8,778 9,587 53 3659 1178 26,174
213
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Devemnber 2012
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g Y NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
20 Properiy and equipment [continsed)
Consroctin  Eleczroaic

Promises Aweraft  fnprogres equipmest Onhers Total
Moe {i))  (Mote (i)
Coat
As a1 January 2021 13526 815 231 8240 4790 37007
Additices 43 117 %6 1,353 m 4,192
Tansde in/oe) 15 - (15 - - -
Dspesals i3] - - {451 (145) (ot
Foezign carency
conversion difference - (210 - - - 2
A3 ut 31 Deceber 2021 13529 10,134 LA%6 151 4815 40233
Ascursubued depeeciasion
As a1 January 2021 [4.506) (562) - 15,101} (3,350 (13,540
Charge for the yer (424 317 - (g1} () (082)
Disposals ' - - 40 170 635
eumeney
st 31 Decemmber 2001 [4893) (B4} - 5.562) 13609 (ed.5mm)
Peovisian for Empairment
A ar | January 2021 {163) = - = = 163
As st 31 Decesrber 2021 (163 = - = & 163)
Mer bool valae
As at 31 Decerber 2021 EATL 9252 LE3 3,560 1507 X155
T

i e AT Deveder 2022, tiole devale woere it prt flnilived for i poveminis svith 4 cobrping asmrmnt of RMBYS millen (31 Dcormber 2020
RMBIA i), Adamaprmnt of the Fresp ogperied sy theer weald fe me npuficont o n ehisiving the fitle devds,

f0 e 5 Dacimaley JATE. Boarbeight Finsacial Lining, shi Grusag's saleiilary tissid sarsidne aivengh and aivingh cagins sibick i tachaded

i “Airera” in phind pursin wmaer sprasing: dasw arangenres, wish o we bosk nalr of RAERSET sullion (31 Decemiber 2001 RARD, 253
madien]. Ai o oty el o b e poeT o il fimtnie e rercivaliey i plvalpedd for dberrewingy frem Bamds, Ser Newar 250

The net book values of premises ot the end of the reporting period are analysed by the remaining rerms

of leases as follows:
31 December 31 December
022 2021
Held in Mainland China
= Medium term leases (10 1o 50 years) 8173 8,002
— Shor verm leases (Jess than 10 years) 605 469
Tonl B.778 8471
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Right-of-use Asscin
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Premises and others Total
Cost
As at 1 Jamuary 2022 17,302 3] 17,363
Charge for the year 2,250 8 2,258
Deductions (1,406) (18) {1.422)
__Foreign currency conversion difference 47 E 4
As at 31 December 2022 18,193 53 18,246
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2022 (6,361} (29 (6,410
for the year (2,749) {11} {2,760)
Reduction for the year 1,205 14 1,219
Foreign cumency convension difference {14) =t (4)
As at 31 December 2022 (7.939) (25} {7.965)
Net book value
As ar 31 December 2022 10,254 7 10,281
Transportation
Premises and others Toral
Comt
As ar 1 Jameary 2021 15,658 e 15,722
Additions 2,760 4 2,764
Charge for the year {1,103) ¥ {1,110}
Foreign currency conversion difference 3 = L]
_As at 31 December 2021 17,302 61 17,363
Accumulated
As 3 1 January 2021 (4,521) 23 {4,544)
Charge for the year {2,710) (12} {2,728
Reduction for the year B4 [ a4
As ar 31 December 2021 {8,381) 29 (6.410)
MNet book valuee
As ar 31 December 2021 10,5921 32 10,953
213
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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22 Goodwill
31 December 31 December
222 221
Gross amoant 6,019 6019
Less: Provision for impairment losses B | . (4.738)
Met balancs 1281 1,281

As approved by the FBOC, the Bank and China Development Bank ("CIDHB") jointly signed the "Agreement
berween China Development Bank and China Everbright Bank for the mansfer of assers, labilities and

premises of China Investment Bank” (the “Agreement”) on 18 March 1999, According to the
Agreement, CDB transferred the assers, liabilities, equity and 137 outless of 29 branches of the former
China Invessment Bank ("CIB"} o the Bank. The Agreement became effective on 18 March 1999,
The Bank assessed the fair valse of the vransferred assers and liabilitics, and recognised the cxcess of the
purchase cout over the sum of the fair valse of the net asets transferred and deferred tx assers as goodwill.

The goodwill is subjecy 1o annual impairment testing. The Bank makes provision for impaimment if
mmmmmmmhmﬂmmummmwmm
Bank's cash flow forecase is 11% (2021: 11‘!1} Th:dm.mm:u:duﬂnmwwﬁ:mhr:lmﬂngw
the relevant segmenis,

Based on the result of the impairment texting, no additional impairment lowses on goodwill were recognised
for the year.

Deferred tax assets and Habilivies

{a) Analysed by nature
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Deferred

Defereed tax assers/

Temporary tax assets’ Temparary difference

difference (lishilizies) difference (liabilities)

Deferred income tax aisets 130,811 32,703 T9.583 19,895
Deferred income rax

_ liabilicies = = . ...

Total 130,811 35,703 79,583 19,895
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23 Deferred tax gsscts and liabilities {continucd)
(b)) Movements of deferved vax

Fair vahse Mer balance

Provision for changes of  Acorued saff  of deferred

impairment financial costs tax amsets/

Motedi) Moedii)

As at 1 January 2022 17,847 (953) 3,001 19,895

Recognised in profit or loss 10,827 379 401 11,607
Recopnised in ather

comprehensive income (229) 1,430 - 1,201

As ar 31 December 2022 28,445 B30 3402 32,703

Fair wvalue Wet balance

Provision for changes of  Acorwed sff of deferred

impairment firanclal codEs rax assers

ossses instruments and athers {liahilicies)

(Bdote () (Mote ()

As at | January 2021 17,324 137 2,126 19,587

Recognised in profit or los 507 (385 875 993
Recopnised in other

comprehensive income 16 (ro1) = (685)

As ar 31 December 2021 17,847 (B53) 3,001 19,895

Paare
) The Grwup made provivion for dmpanirerns b om brawe dud advasies 19 csstemen and sbey mss. The poviision fiv dmpaireny Lo

s drvwrminad v s she ecpacred recorerable amennt of dhi redreent e @ dbe ond of whe pear, Brvides, che amounts deduerible for
iy v g ary sknieal ar |9 of dlv e cerrying ameenr o qealifving s & dhe mal of gy e, gy woh wnere-af§
bk ] el il e i A i o PR W el aad v agpeeend By e 1an i,

i Fair el chawpe af Sl incoremenn ey pebge g wlew raliodd
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

218

24 Other asscis

31 December 31 December
Mot 2022 02
Other reccivables {a} 17,229 25,058
Accrued interest 6,539 5713
Inmngible assets 3475 2,684
Refundabde Deposits 1,542 2,148
Property and equipment purchase prepayment 1.334 1,004
Long-term deferred expense 97 950
assETs 238 327
Land use right s 83
Others ® 3,147 3,001
Totd 508 40,9648
Nase:
{n)  Cber necrivaibden suninly daoledr ity fn by privess of clnming el sonk Ty wssinnt of rops - s met il

Ll

25 Pledged amsets

()

(b

Assets pledged as collareral

The Group's financial assers as collateral for Habilities include discounted bills, debt securities and
property and equipment, which are mainly used as collateral for repurchase sgreements, time depaosits,
derivative contracts and borrowings from banks, The amount of the financial asses pledged
a8 securities a8 ar 31 December 2022 is RMB183.853 billion (as at 31 December 2021: RMB160.10
billien).

Collareral received

The Group sccepted securities a5 collateral for those which are permitied to be sold or re-pledged
in connection with reverse repurchase ts with banks and other insti

year ended 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no collaeral recetved
fram banks and other fnancial institutions (31 December 2021 nil), As st 31 Decemnber 2022,
the Group had no collareral thar was sold or re-pledped, bur was obligared o rerurn (31 December
2021: nil). These trarsactbons are conducved under standard werms in the normal course of basines.

26 Due o the central bank

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Due 1o the central bank 63,142 100,143
_Acrrued interess. I, . 1,037
Total 53,386 101,180
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

27 Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Analysed by type and locatlon of counterparty
31 Drecember 31 December

2022 2021
Dieposits in Mainland China
— Banks 160,959 163,919
~ Other financial insttutions 376,763 359,030
Dreposits overscas
= Banks S 1526
Subsosal 539,741 524475
Accrued Interest 927 1,784
Teual 540,668 526,259

28 Placements from banks and other financial instimtions

Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Placements in Mainland China
avoarse 115,365 111,353
= Other financial insttutions 6,605 12,102
Placements overseas
— Banks _ GhT4T 55,464
Subeoal 187,715 178919
Accrued [nuerest If _BBG oz
Taral 188,601 179,626

29 Financial lHabilities at fair valoe through profit or loss
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Short pasition in debe securities i &7

Taeal 27 &7
219
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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EL

Finuncial assets sold under repurchase agreements

(2) Analysed by type and location of counterparty
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
In Mainkand China
— Banks T4624 72,963
- Oither financial instirutions T4 .
Chrverseas
- Banks 17,947 7439
= Orther financial institutions 215 183
Subtotal 92,860 80,585
Acersed interes 120 15
Total 92,980 B0,500
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Diche securities 89,892 78,170
Bank scceprances 1968 1,415
Subroral 92,860 80,585
Accrued interest 120 15
Toral 92,980 80,600
Deposits from customers
31 December 31 December
22 2021
Demand deposits
— Corpotite Sistoqmiens 822,387 843252
= Individual customers 254209 251,609
Subtotal 1076626 1,094,851
Time deposits
— Corporate customers 1,552,167 1,606,347
= Individial customens . BOT03T _ 602,576
Subtotal R 2,208,923
Fledped deposits 409,978 313,623
Other deposits 2,086 2915
Subtetal deposies from eustomers 3847894 3,620,322
Accrued Enterest 69,274 55,421
Toaal 3,917,168 3,675,743
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

32 Accrucd staff cosc
31 December 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
Salary and welfare payable 15,528 13,845
Pension and annuity payable {2} 39 30
Supplementary retirement L]
benefits payable R b mnz
Total 19,006 16,777
oot
o) Fmslew oo

Furmurni s the erdmatn Lo and repulerions i she PR she G b jined i defimed comtribution scheme fBr the ropleyars arvanged by locel
prevrmmenr Libowr amd sial wowriry arpemiasions The Grrep malys consbssisar 0 phe sroisrmens whiosy & che applucably ratey dsed o che
ey jpmbeind fy dhe mrinami el Frpoisstion

The Gonsip prowider am awwsiay plaw sx she Aipihls ropleyers. The (Froap muke swwsiry omiribsnions s proportion s (5 pepleer gros wage
i i prier o, awhich arr ogpeund e profin o loo when v comribwtionl ey s

T Gromp paye SR8 fior pligibir omployer: The st erpevsnsy ghe pevens saler off v i simaios st f finery bemafin dhay ol
Cirvap U rommmisied b pary for ligible romplipess av dhe v f vhe repariny joie. The Grvap h ehlipaviras dn pvgpars of sl KRB wese drvavind, miimg
preecnd waiy erealiy weaboal by spaalifond sl fa member af wiirty of Acuarien in America) of an coenal indeprndient aeveery, Wil Towar
Wimew Monagrees Conminng Jibrmoken) 0, fad

) The sl & the Girosg§ sppsbomoninry rrviremens begiier v o fallows:

I Devemibir ] Dasember

e a0

Prover walss of vapplrmensary revrememr benfin Sabiliny A FEy

i Mvermes off SEF of e Groap are @ follrwn:

ok 20

A i ] famaany 7R 3]
Currems srreler roxiy i e
Tprves yoiy .- L3
Bopalrularion pard o she diefined bengfin plan FLLd 2
Pugpmts I . ]
At 31 Dacemiber L 27Ir

Rrmssnermont of dhe deSned beaic play we ey iv siber comprebranine s Sor Nadr VA0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
32 Accrued saff costs (zontimad)
Naier: frimiiorund)
(N Sepplrmcasary resivemeat benefin (5N fomtvand)
(4 Principal aomarisl smpiises of sbe Crrep v folloun:

B} [ecrmdar 3P Dievrmiber
B ]
Dusrei roir LHE 350N
Mypdical cpar growh vy 6.0 e
Avrrags eprrsed fnee bieume AT e
fll  Srmslsieiey st
Bocrmmably ponibdy chango ot dhe rud of sy your o e af dhe evlmand actearisd , weith pilber npne being oo, wwald’
b fovind che difinsd bengls sbiipusion by vhe amownn shewn bele:
3 Decrmber 2023
ncree Derenn
Erisciuns vaze (1% mevre—segl [icmi] L
Mirdical cond grewié raie (1% mevrmm Lo ()
31 Diexwmber 2021
Aacraases Bagveny
Fsevenr xeie (% mer——") 78 L)
Advalicat owar sl vave {19 e &y [ ]

Akt faddpis din wev Ly B full opeiited davribaiin AS Aiieal i3 U faluiy dib e Wb, AR R d S
cim b il whemi e wrmuBrfr ir e fir bt

Eiepy a0 smaeed i () anal (5) sbwwe. shy CGromp b me wohev mue erpesvibiluin o pay rmpler retisomrar bingfin and sebev poe-
Fritrreen P
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

33 Taxes payable
31 December 31 Decermber

2022 2021

L -
ax A

Crthers e e 481

Toul 11,141 6,535

3  Lease liabilities
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Within 1 year (inclusive) 2,723 2,541
1 year 1o 2 years (inclusive) A 2,340
2 years to 3 years {inclusive) 1,724 1.851
3 years to 5 years (inclusive) 2,539 2,601
Total undiscounted lease lishilities 143 12,179
Lease lishilities 10,151 10,736

35 Dbt securities lssued
31 December 31 Decembser

Notes 2022 2021
Subsrdinated debts isued (&) - 6,700
Financial bonds issued {b) 130,346 42,174
Tier-two capiral bends lsswed el 46,596 41434
Convertible bonds issued i) 24,082 23,498
Interbank deposits isued 0] 604,319 586,331
Certificares of deposly issued {f 46,798 35,300
Medium term notes (g 0476 25,127
Subtosal 872617 T60,573
Accrued Inucrest | 3354 2,959
Toal 875,971 763,532

223
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35  Debi secuwrities Baned {continued)

(2) Subordinated debts lssued

31 December 31 December
bl i)

Note 2021
Subordinared fized rare debos mamring in
Total - 6,700
Naves:

o

il

Fitd sate rmberdinatedd debrr of RABE 70 billiom wrich 4 v of fiflern pran worr demnd’ o 7 fame J0U2 The covpom il b 5259
o amwam. The (irewg bun wedeemad he debts am & June 2O ai the meminal amsacmi.

it 3] Dioemder 2002, b i il of whe sotad meboralinasicnl dobis doreind s il (1 Deoromber 2031 PMBE FET million).

(k) Financial bonds issued

31 December 31 December

MNote 202 21
Finanicial fixed rate bonds mltu.riug in
January 2022 i = 800
Plru:ﬂ‘lhﬁl rate bonds maruring in
March 2024 i) 39,993 39,988
Financlal floasing rare bonds manuring in
May 2024 i 1415 1386
Financial floating rate bonds matwring in
August 2024 (i) 944 -
Financial fixed rate bonds maruring in
February 2025 ¥ 39,598 -
Financial fived rae bonds maruring in
October 2025 ) 47,996 -
Total 130,346 42,174
Notea:
0 R s fasaalsl bade & RVE0 80 billss sk & e o e e aer dowald by Seedephi Al Lisig i 8 feney

R The compom raie i 1AM por anmum,

Fiurad waie oviatl i o somall Somall sl Midors Eierpriner Liwm iy RABS0.00 buillion wenh o b o e sty ey el by il
Bank an 23 Marck 221, The coupem rate s 1455 por cmnm.

Flsating rave fimancial bondi of AUT 0.3 billiom wish u v of dbone oars weve dvsed by the Bk Spibncy branch om 18 Mgy 2021
Thy imitial praupoms rair is (A% por ammems

Flasming ra Guncial domds o AUD 0.2 billion: aniah o tevem g L.7F poars ey imaeel| by iy Sty Synry dbramck o 11 Niwwmber
HED The owiled cogpom w0 SABRTW: MARF por amem,

Band om [ 7 Febracry 2022 The roapen rair i1 2734 per ouvem.

Fixrd et finamcial bimds off RABEO0 billien wich & drrem of shere poure wrer fmend by albe Plamk o 18 Ohcrodber 3022 The imisial
e, pa i JATH v

i w31 Davemir X008 phe ok salar o thr sl finnclnl bomads froa smer RAEEI30VED meillion (3] Db 2021 BB 224
=il
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

35 Dbt securitics lsswed (continsed)
(e} Tier-two capital bonds lssned

31 December 31 December
MNotes 2022 2021

Tier-ren capital fixed rare bonds macuring in

March 2027 {1 - 27,992

Tier-twn capital fixed rate bonds maturing in
027

August L] - 11,996
Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds maruring in

September 2030 () 1596 1446
Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds maturing in

Auvgusc 2032 (i) 40,000 -
Tier-two capital fived rate bonds maturing in

_August 2037 o 5000 =
Total 46,596 41,424
Noare
{0 Fined vt sk copisal bend o AMEDR00 billion i i deve of i praier worr doward' s 2 March 207, The coupam ratir s ol 608

por . At she e off e {50 e, she draers edrmgiion. aption st estached umal the Frop redirmed the bend at the mawinal
i an  Maoh N2

(i) Find rate ciee-fu caprital bonds of RAE12 00 billion with & frem of e g weve drwed om 35 At 3017, The coupen rate is 4 70%
Jre v, A syl o sy ik pear, ahy et erdrepeien ey e amached gnd sy (resy rermad phe el ar sy peminal
amrand w28 Mgt X022

(i P e v rpinal bewals wf BMNG0 biliow sk e o v youry vt ined am 16 Sapeemiber 2000 by Vwrrbriphs Finolal
Landrimg, The coupen vt it 35796 for ammmm. Thy Girowp bty it opiion i vl ity bty o [ Scpirmder 2075 ar sl apmimal
e

i e e Girr-rure ogital beonl of RADSH0.00' billivn wat o e f i s wrrr e v 25 gt 2022 Thv cowpen iy in 2 109
e awven, The Growp bay o spsion i radere s Zrbin pw 29 Aupunt 2007 ar she smina v,

(¥ Fiued ras e copital bonal of BMES.00 killian with o jren off ffern gy weer e en 35 Awpat 2022 The crgpem ratr i
2350 por oovem, The Groap oty i gpiion 9 redares oy b o 39 Awpant 000 ar she i’ amsamt

(il An i ) Decrmber J2E, the fiie sathor of the tntaf siertion copival bondd) ievued sipprocimuted 1o RVEA5, 119 milkinn (3] Dircresber
SN R TR mullem)
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

£~
35 Debo securitics bsued (continued)

(d) Convertible bonds lssned
31 December 31 December

022 2021
Fized rate six years comventible bonds issued in March
2007 24,082 23,498
The converdble corporate bonds Isswed have been splic ine the lability and equity componenis as
follows:
Equiry
Liabiliny component Total
Now COMpONERt Note ¥V 38
Mominal value of converdble
bands 24,926 5174 30,000
Direer ransaction coss (54) (3} {77
Balance a5 ar the isuance dar 24,762 5,161 29,923
Accumulited amorisation as ar 1
January 2022 4,183 - 4,183
Ac Lated conversi Fe]
2t | January 2022 {5.447) (or9E) (65,445)
Balance as ax 1 January 2022 23,498 4,163 27,661
Amortisation duting the yes 584 - 584
Conversion amount during the
year {iv) = = =
Balance as ar 31 December 2022 24,082 4,163 28,245

Mo

W Pt o the appreval by relvost FRC swsborian, en |7 Mach 2017, de Sonk sl A-dbrs conwernible brnds wich @ mial seminal
el of AMARD Hillen. The memveraibly bosdi bave & manelsy im & iin pois fresm 17 Massh 2017 @ 16 Masch 200, anid beaw
i fond tmirrer e f CLA0 for e firs e, (2 5096 for iby miond poar, 100 for by thivad poe, 1500 for she foarsh peer, |80
Jfor dhy fifth yrar and 2 O0W for chy gk g The pomervibly bewal baldery may st dhele riphts oo by ety e jne
chy famb’s A daivey o0ty miputimra oonvrricn privy alsming the prar (Chmroies Prsnd ) pinsing iin meiathe giies phe it of iosimee
sl iy marriry dese Wiskin § srasling dley afier maniry, the Hank ihall roderm she swtsending corvernible bonds a0 1058 of the
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

35 Dbt securitics isswed (continued)

(d} Convertlble bonds lssued {contnued)
Wotre frwmsbaued)

i Dering by Comerrsbem Prriosd, 3f o alming pricr of the Sank's A Saver @ e brwer chan o sl @ [ 69 o sl prevesiling, crmrsion
i i aF et (% Ddaling i il 3 dmy WY cémierialvee ey i, skt & the dpgrivdl by kel PR annbivitin (3 avedal, the
Bumit bur sy right 0 redeee il or purt of by puationaling conprriible om0 pur vader plo acorwed inteer an v it diey on which
oy redipmprion riia avy wav. o cay dham oy famby oomvervien prive in sdfwusd dey ge ghe orngit o ordeldred o dher rading
ey she preafy e iy asdeulaned a5 ahe s jprice dnad the clowing price a0 iy ivaialing ey hefbre by aifammens, and by
pect-ady e is cadraluied at he price and she claskny pricy ot she rading dey afier the st The Bank abs b
sy ight 29 redoen &l chy omiernible bamd) o1 por saler plat scoreed insrey showld ole sl pemanding s by bn than JAER
ey

i) B e gy cudralasion st im oy progperias of she pmvereibly bk, ghr iminis! pemwervion peiee b RMEL 3G por share, wae b chaw
e verge iraing prive of by Bamk} A shares wrihin 30 or 20 weading diye Befere e dattr o iy prwgy T
price bt aurind s g thy re-right o ox-dividemd wihin shesr 30 v 0 mrading deye, ghe pre-adfummrt price i ceiuizied v thy relmd
adbunind privl che svrage wasding prue of she Bonkh A shae ar e previrs orading day, @ el @ by Loy sudived we s waler
oo skt e b face veidet. Ao a0 A1 Dvermber 2023, phe comerriem price it RMB3IS por shave (30 Diecewvber 2031: RAMB3SS per
shae].

fi) v an 31 Dvormdber 032, & wial of RABT 80 millien (31 Decemiber 20027 RAES 50 million) somveriible bonel bave born omveriod
imm rlinary sliarey, obr nesnekenipy cowprnibl smmiber of dhorer i 1SS 090 dhee (30 Dvormber 207 1 SUEE2E 1S share,

iw P by s ended A1 Divocmsber 2007, & st of RABASS million fmirvests on sbe commeriible bunads Aae born paia by the Band (2021
RAHAET muliam)

(e} Interbank deposits bssued

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 223 inter-bank deposits were issued by the Bank and
measured a1 amonised cosr with a carrying amount of RMBTS6,570 million (2021: RMBG23,770
million). The carrying amount of interbank deposies due in 2022 was RMB7E1,630 million (2021
RMB346,860 million). As ac 31 December 2022, the fir value of its outstanding interbank depasits
issusd was RMB596,629 million (31 December 2021: RMBS79,510 million).

() Cerificates of deposit issued

As a1 31 December 2022, the cenificates of depoain were issued by the Bank’s Hong Kong branch,
Seoul branch, Sydney branch and Luxembourg Branch measured at amortised cost. The Bir value
of the certificates of deposit issued approximated to their camrying amount.
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

£~
35  Debt secwrities Baued {continued)

() Medium term notes
31 December 31 December

Mores 2022 2021
Medium term notes with floating race
maturing on 24 June 2022 1] - 3182
Medium term notes with Hoating rare
maturing on §1 December 2022 (i} = 3,182
Medium term notes with floating race
maturing on 3 August 20235 i) 4,863 4455
Medium term notes with fied rate maturing
an 11 March 2024 (i) 3619 3,500
Medium term notes with fined raze mamuring
on 15 June 2024 i) 4.165 3818
Medium term notes with fixed rase maturing
on 14 Seprember 2024 (i) 3471 EAL )
Moedium term notes with fised rate maturing
on 1 December 2024 (vid) 2,081 1509
Medium term notes with fized raze manuring
on 15 December 2024 {viil) 2,077 1,900
Total 20,476 25,127
Mot

W Feming vy slives wres meury o L0300 sillion wish o sorem of sbere e wove dovasdd by vhe By Homg Komg deamcks om [7 fame
2015 Tie inivial cosgon wate 0 3. L9 Ser snmiom

(il Flsmony rasr malem o mein of USDS00 millien wisk o terw of shevr oy were il by by Bandy Momg Koy bramck om 4
Divrmiber J01%. The imisial cougern ratir it 2 799 por smawm.

(i Flamimy s sl s mite of DR millen with o deve off sheer poaes e dvwnd by vhe Maky Noag Kong loamch on 27 July
2000, T snitinl ergpon wie & L, [0 prr s,

(il i ey i pev matey gy DR milliee weitd o wve o heer peary weve dad by ake Bambh Momg Koag drumal am d Mok
203, The compon raie @ 0.93% por snmum.

(e} P v sl wew ey g DSIME0 sillin ek o v o iber poury worr e By abe Bl Moy Kang bruinck o B fne
202, The coupon raie & O.B9% por anmum.

ol e v i v maby of LEDA00 milies wisk & v o il e weer il by il Pk Lasmbairy bmimah sw 14 Sap
I0F], The coupen vate i AT for v

(ol P vy i g muite " LS00 mmillion wich o e o abeer praer wer dovd by ity ks Miong Nimg lvaok om [ [vormber
HHL. The cowpon s i [ 379 por nmuem.

(i) P i el e iy o LS01300 milkien weith o e f e ity werr dvmed’ by sy Bumby iy CER Sninmationadl o
9 Devemiber 2030, Th coupen racie is 2009 por ammmem.

fi) s 3 Devrmber 022, e fiir maler of tht moeliem e msee s MBI 3574 millivs (31 Deorber 2007 : MBI 409 millin).
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

36 Other liahilities
31 December 31 Decermber

Moges 2022 2021
Bank boans {a) 20,718 10,841
Payment and collsction dearance scoounts 13,436 4,885
Finance leases payable 5,680 &, 100
Provistons {b) 1,883 2213
Diotmant accounts 865 408
Dhividend payables 23 22
Others 13532 18,842
Toal 57,137 43301

) Ar a5 Deermber 2032, aly Benky rebaldiarn. Sebeiph Finssial Loasing, beresied bagsrm bums with s of | i 10 poars. Kuerlrighe
Fanamcial Loaving shondal repary capital’ with imterest quatrieriy.

B Ara A Deveeber 2058 ahy davrnall for Drganien bows emimaned by ohe Grvap baied o pbe v of sumiasling Snpariss i naf abe
Mifhdh RMBIST muillem (1] December 220 RMBIET million}

37 Share capiial
The Bank's sharcholding strocture as at the cnd of the year is as follows
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Ordinary shares listed in Mainkind China (A share) 41,353 41,353
Chedinary shares listed In Hong Kong (H share) 12,679 12,679
Taeal 54,032 54,032

The H shares rank pari passu in all respects with the A shares including the right to all dividend
distributions declared, paid or made.
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§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3
Z Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 Ouher equity inmtraments

31 December 31 December
2023

Mo W w21
Preference shares (Motes (), (b, (c), (c)) 54,206 64,906
Equity of convertible bonds 35(d) 4,163 4,163
Perpenual bonds (Nowes{d), (<)) 39995 38,993
Teoaal 109,062 109,062
(@) Preference shares at the end of the year
lisue Dividend Lasue Number of lwue  Coaversion
daie reiz price  shares isrned emount  condition
(R B/ share} {million)  (RMBEmillion)
Everbrighs F1 445% [ b.c ] 000 Masdstory
015-6-19 convershn
irifgering crencs
Evesheight P2 401% 10 100 10,000 Mazdstory
2016-5-8 conversion
teiggrring, crents
Everbeighs F3 4.B0% 10 330 35000 Maadaory
We-7-15 converdan
Subtosal 45,000
Less:
Book value A 506
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

38 Other equity instruments (contineed)
(b) Maln elanses
{8 Dividend
Fixed rate for the frst 5 years after isuance.

Dividend Is reset every 5 years thereafier 1o the sum of the benchmark rate and the fived spread.

The fixed spread equals to the spread berween the dividend mte ar the time of Bsuance and
the benchmark rate, The fived spread will remain unchanged throughout the werm of the

preference shares.

(i) Conditions to distribution of dividends

The Group could pay dividends while the Group still has distributsble afier-tax profic after
making up previous years' losses, contributing to the stmutory reserve and making general
teserve, and the Group's capinal adequacy mato meets regubaory requirement. The Group
may elect o cancel any dividend, but such cancelliion requires a shareholder's resolution to
be passed.

fiid) Dvividend blocker

IF the Group cancels all or part of the dividends to the preference sharcholders, the Group
shall not make any dividend disribution o erdinary sharcholders before the Group pays the
dividends for the current dividend year o the preference sharehalders in full

fiv) Order of diveritnsion and Egquidation method

The preference shareholders are subordinated oo the depositors, ordinary creditors, holders of
subordinated debt, holders of Tier-owo capital bonds, holders of convertble bonds and holders
of perperual bonds bur have a higher priofity in shares” disribution than te the ordinary
sharcholders.

)  Mandaiory conpersion IFger soenti
Upan the sccurrence of an Additional Tier-one Capieal Triggering Event (Common equity wer-
onc capital Adequacy Ratio of the Group flling w0 5.125% or below), the Group shall have
the right to convere all or part of the preference shares inte A shares, in order o restore the
common equity tier-one capital Adequacy Ratio of the Group to above 5.125%; If preference
shares were converted 1o A shares, they could not be convesed to preference shares again,

Upon the occurrence of a non-viability triggering event (Earlier of the two sinsations: (1)
CBIRC has determined that the Group would become non-viable if there is no conversion ar
write-down of capital; and (2) the relevant authosities have determined thar a public secror
injection of capital or equivalent suppor is nocessary, withour which the Group would become
non-vidhle), the Group shall have the right to convere all preference shares into A shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38 Ouber cquity instruments {costisucd)

(v} Redemspiion
Subject to the prior approval of the CBIRC and the satisfaction of the rel redqui its, the
Group shall have the right e redeem all or par of che preference shanes on any redeemable day
{the payment date for dividends of the preference shares cach year) after the fifth year following
mwm&mm&mmwmw&wmg
the redemprion period shall be determined by the Board in line with market conditions, subject
w anthorisdon ar a sharcholders” general meeting (the autheristion can be further delegared).
The redemption period for the preference shates shall commence on such commencement date
of the redemption period and end on the compleation date of the redemption or conversion of
all the preference shares. Where redemption is in pary, the preference shares ghall be redeemed
based on the same proportion and condidons. Preference shares shall be redeemed In cash.
The redemprion price shall be the par value plus the dividend declared but unpaid for the
relevany year,

(c) Changes in preference shares outstanding
1 January 2022 Addizions for the year 31 Degember 2022

Fhe Gy wde Cop e ok
(millon)  valuc (miliion) valse  (million) value

Preference
Shares 650 64,906 - - 650 64,906
1 January 2021 .!M_dihmfw'lhcyw: _Slﬂmhu 021

Mumber Number Number
of shares  Carrying  of shares  Camying  of shares  Canrying
{milBoo) vale  {odliRe) vilse  (million) walise

Preference

Shares 650 64,506 - - (5] 64,906

(d) Main clauses of perpetual bonds

With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank isawed BMBAD billion
of non-dated capital bonds (the “Bonds”) which are wrinen down in the domestic incerbank bond
market on 18 September 2020, and completed the issuance on 22 Seprember 2020, The denominarion
of the Bands is RMBI100 each, and the annual coupon rate of the Bonds for the fine five years is
4.60%, which is reser every 5 yeams,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

38 Other equity instrument (eominued)

(d) Main clanses of perpetual bonds {coatinued)

The durstion of the abave bonds is the same as the period of conrinuing operation of the Bank.
Subjeet to the satisfaction of the redemption conditions and having obtained the prior approval of
the CRIRC, the Bank may redeem the above bonds in whole or in part on each distribution payment
date 5 years after the issuance dae of the above bonds. Upon the occurmence of a wrigger event
for the write-downs, with the consent of the CBIRC and without the consent of the bondhalders,
the Bank has the right to write dewn all or part of the above bonds issued and oristing at thar
time in sccordance with the toml par value, The claims of the holders of the above bonds will be
subordinated 1o che claims of depositors, general ereditors and subordinated credivors; and shall rank
in priority m the claims of sharcholders and will rank pari passu with the claims under any other
additional tier 1 capital instruments of the Bank that rank pari passu with the above bonds.

The ahove bonds are paid with pon-cumulative interess. The Bank shall have the rght w cancel
distributions on the above bonds in whole or In part and sich cancellation shall not constitute a
defaule, The Bank may at ity discretion utilise the proceeds from the cencelled distributions o meet
other obligations of maturing debas. Buz the Bank shall not distribure profis 1w ordinary shareholders

untl the resumprion of full interest payment.

Capital raised from the issuance of the above bonds, after deduction of transmaction costs, was whally
used 1o replenish the Bank's addivonal der one capital and to increase itz capiral adequacy rate.

(e} Interests attributable to equity instruments’ holders
31 December 31 December

leems 2022 2021
Tozal equity arriburable 1o equity sharehalders of the
Baxk 507,883 482,489

= Equity strributsble o ordinary sharcholders of the

Bank 402,984 377,500
— Equity arributable to preference shareholders of the

Bank 64,906 64,906
~ Equiry atrributable to Perpenzal bonds holders of the

Bank 39,993 39,993
Tosal equity ancribuble w non- conmalling intereses 2,130 1,877

— Equity arrrdbutable to non-conwelling interems of
ordinary shares 2,130 1877

233

339/425



For the yeur ended 31 December 2012

-4
=
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Epremmet 4 llliofs of Rssssiibd, il selvermes. satel)

§ ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39 Capiml rescrve

31 December 31 December
022 w21
Share premium 5844 58,434
40 Other comprehensive income
31 December 31 December
bl i re] w021
Trems that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
Fair value changes on equity instruments ar fair value
through other comprehensive income 16 16
Remeasurement of a defined benefit plan B - (568)
Subeewal R ) (552)
Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Dbt inpruments ag fir value through other comprehensive
income 81 3,863
— Met change in fair value [1.463) 2,979
-Nﬂd:.nrgeinu.?ﬁttﬂ‘ln‘tdﬂllm 1.544 939
Exchange differences on translation of financial magemenss 16 _(164)
Subrotal vt 5,704
Toul {590} 3,152
Orher comprehensive income awributable 1o equity sharcholders of the Bank in the consolidated starement
of financial positbon:
Fulr valne
Fair valac Nt change in changs Exchange
change on debt  ECL on debt o equity  differences on
Bstrumesty  istumens  jwtrements cruadeion
whirveder whirvalee  athiwis  of feancil Remeasare
thivagh other  throagh odder  throogh o mawmemn - mestof s
grebess ki conpichind o defined beackt
imcnm incame isome  mbwidiaria plas Toul
P -l st Bl 1§ 1) 1) 138
Changs: in smor fee the
pevies yras Ll ] - Lol 28 LT
Auat | Jamsary 2022 15 w9 13 (e} (%g) EALY
(hanges in smoanr fer the year 3 s} - 1] {135 (37608
Asat 31 December 2022 {1463 L5 3 16 ] (i)

340/425

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

wiiflyg ey FEOZ

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

41 Surplus reserve and general reserve

(a) Sarplos reserve

The surplus reserve at the end of the neponing year represented samory surphss reserve fund, The
Bank iz required to allecate 10% of it net profit, after making good prior year's sccumulated losecs,
to statutory surplus reserve fund until the reerve fund balance reaches 50% of it registered capiral,

(b} General reserve:

Pursuant o the Measures for Managing the Appropriation of Provisions of Financial Enterprises (Cai
Jin [2012] Mo, 20) issued by the Minkstry of Finance, the Bank & required w provide for impaiement
losses of s assets and set aside a general reserve through the appropriation of net profis o cover
potential losses against its assets. The general reserve is pant of the equity sharcholders” interests and
should not be less than 1.5% of the year-end balance of risk-bearing sssers.

The Bank's subsidiaries appropeiated their profits to the general reserve according to the applicable
local regulations.

The Group appropriated RMBS5,805 million of profits 1o the gencral rescrve for the year ended 31
Diecember 2022 (2021: RMB7.894 million).

The Bank appropriated RMB4,608 million of profis w the general reserve for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMBG,BOG millian).
42 Appropristion of profits

{a) Ar the Board Meeting held on 24 March 2023, the Board of Directors approved the

following profit appropristions for the year ended 31 December 2022

—  The accumulated ameunt of withdrawal has reached 50% of the Bank reglstered capiral;
Anrrdiugmﬂurdmmmnfﬂumm@uyhmrhenuphummmhnﬁh
withdrawn in this profic disrriburion;

—  Appropriated RMB4,608 million to general reserve

- The 2023 annual dividend of RMBI1,680 million should be paid to the Third preference
sharcholders in cash dividend RMEB4.30 per share before rax base on the coupon dividend yicld
af 4.6%:;

—  Dedared cash dividends of RMB11,185 million o all ordinary shareholders ar 31 December
2022, representing RMB2.0T per 10 shares before txe.

{b} The Bank distributed the interest on the Undated Capital Bonds amounting to RMB1,840
million on 22 Seprember 2022,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
42 Appropriation of profits (contimued]

(g} At the Annual General Mecting of shareholders held on 19 May 2022, the shareholders
approved the following profit appropriations for the year ended 31 December 2021:

= Under the Company Law of the FRC, the bank's satutory surplus rescrve has reached 50%
of its registered capital, no Further provision shall be made for this profic disributon;

- Appropriated RMBG.806 million to general reserve; and

= Declared cash dividends of RMBE10,860 million to all ordinary shareholders ar 31 December
2021, representing RMB2.10 per 10 shares before e

(d) At the Board Meeting held on 25 March 2022, the dividend distribution of the Everbright
P3 for the year ended 2021 was approved by the Board of Directors:

= Declared cash dividends to preference shareholders of RMB1 680 million before tax, representing
RMB4.B0 per share before tax, accruing from 1 January 2021, and are calculated using the
4.80% of dividend yicld ratde for the Everbrighs P3,

{e) At the Board Meeting held on 27 May 2022, the dividend distribotion of the Everbright
Pl was approved by the Board of Directors:

= Declared cash dividends to preference shareholders of RMBE®0 million before tax, representing

RMB4.45 per share before tx, sccruing from 25 June 2021, and are caboulared wsing 4.45%
of dividend yield ratio for the Everbrighe P1.

(f At the Board Meeting held on 27 May 2022, the dividend distribution of the Everbright
P2 was approved by the Board of Directors:
- Dnduﬂid&hdividmdlmmﬂumbnld:nnfmml million before tax, representing
RMEBE4.00 per share before tax, scoruing from 11 August 2021, and are calculated using 4,01%
of dividend yield ratio for the Everbrighe P2,

43  lovolvement with structored entities

(a) Structured entities sponsored by third party institutions in which the Group holds an
Interest:

The types of stractured entities thas the Group does not consalidate but in which it holds an
inmerest include fund investments and asser management plans ar &Jr\':l\.vtlhnmghpmﬁtmlm
asset management plans and assct-backed securities at amortised cost. The nature and purpose of
these structured entities are to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of third party investors,
These wehicles are financed through the issue of unis 10 invesoors.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43 Involvement with structured entities (continued)

(a) Stroctured entities sponsared by third party institutions in which the Group holds an
interest: {continued)

The following table sctz out an analysis of the canrying amounts and maximum copesure of interests
held by the Group in unconsolidated strisctured entities sponsared by third party institutions as at

the end of the year:
31 December 2022 31 Drecember 2021
Carrying Maxirmum Carrying Maximum
amount exposire amount expodinre
Financisl sssets ar fair value
through profit or loss
= Fund investments 214,031 214,031 252,528 250,528
— Asser management plans 52,909 52,909 56,578 56,578
Financial investments
mezsured 2t amortised cost
— Asset management plans 73,539 73,339 133,980 133,980
— Asset-backed socurites 145,276 145,276 143,736 143,736
Tiozal 485,755 485,755 86,8202 586,822

(b} Seructured entities sponsored by the Group which the Group does not consalidate but
holds an interest in:

The types of unconsolidared seructured entifies sponsored by the Group include non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products. The nature and purpese of these structured entities are
o gencrate fess from managing assews on behalf of invessors, These structured entities are financed
through the issue of units to investors. Interest held by the Group inchudes investments in wnits tsaed
by these structured entities and Feudmguihypmﬂih;maqmﬁﬂml:ﬁ.hu&l Drecember
2022, the carrying amounts of the investments in the noves isuwed by these structured encities and
management fec receivables being recognised are not material in the statemem of finandal positiona.

As at 31 Diecemnber 2022, the amount of assets held by the unconsalidated non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products, which are sponsored by the Group is RMB1,185,241 million (31
Diecember 2021: RMB1,067.464 million). The aggregated amount of the non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products sponsored and issued by the Group after | January 2021 bur marured
before 31 December 2022 was REMB3,42] million (2021: RMB3,001 million).

In 2022, the amount of fee and commission ncome received from the unconsolidated strocrured
entities by the Growp was RMBA.677 million (2021: RMB3,976 million).

237

343/425



CHINA EVERBRICHT RANK

EDINETOOOO

O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 December 2012
(Eproascd th coilliots of Ressnisbi, wales cehcraies send)

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43

Involvement with structared entities (conginsod

(k) Struetured entities sponsored by the Group which the Gronp does not consolidate bue
holds an interest ing (continued)

Far the purpoes of assct-liability management, wealth mansgement products may cause shor-term
financing needs to the Group and other banks. The Groap is not contractually obliged w0 provide
financing, After internal risk assessment, the Group may enter into transactions with these wealth
management products in accordance with marker principles. As ar 31 December 2022, the balance of
abeve transactions was ndl (31 December 2021: nil). In 20232, the amount of Interest receivables from
the above financing transactions was not material for the Group in the statement of profit or loss.

In addition, please refer 1o More V44 for the interests in the uncorsalidared structured entties of
asset securitization transactions held by the Group as at 31 December 2022, In 2022, the Group's
income from these sructured entites was immarerial.

(e} Consalidated structured entities

The consolidated structured entides of the Group are primarily the principal guarancced wealth
management products and cerain aser management plans and trust plans. Principal guaranteed
wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group represent products o which
the Group has guaranteed the investor’s principal investment, regardless of their 2omal performance.
Investrnents macde by these produces and the carresponding Habilities 1o the Investors of these producs
are preseated in the rospective finandal asser and Anancial liabdlity items based on the narure of the
assets and liabilities, The Group controls these enitics when the Group has power over, is exposed
tw, or has rights 1o, variable rerurns from its involvement with these enities and has the ability 10
use ity power over these entities 1o affect the amount of the Group's rerurns.

44 Transferred Anancial saseis

The Group enters into rransscdons in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised
fnancial assets 1o thied parties of to sructured entities. In some cascs, these transfers may give rise to
full or partial de-recognition of the financial assets concerned in accordance with IFRSs. In other cases
where the wansferred assets do not qualify for de-recognition 35 the Group has rewined substancially all
the risks and rewards of these amers, the Group continues o secognise the ransferred assets.

Credit asseis backed securitization

The Group enters into credit asets transfers in the normal course of business during which it transfers

credit assets w structured entities which in turn issue asset-backed securities 1o investors. The Group may

soquire some aser-backed securities ar the subordinated wranche level and sccosdingly, may remainm pars

of the risks and rewards of the transferred credis assets, The Group would determine whether or not o

wmmﬁmm:mwmm@ﬂummmmnmmmmm
assens,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

44 Transferred fAnancial wssety (continued)

Credit assets backed securitizaton {continued)

With respect w0 the credit assets thar were securidsed and qualified for de-recognition, the Group
derecognised the transferred credit asses in their emtirery. The corraponding ol carrying amount of
asset-backed securities held by the Group in the securitimtion transactions was nil as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: nil).

For those in which the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the tmansferred credic assets, and remained control of the credit assets, the transferred credit asets ane
recognised on the statement of financial positdon 1o the enent of the Group's cominuing imvalvemnent,
As a1 31 December 2022, the Group has no continuing involvement in credic asser-backed securities{31
December 2021: nil).

Transfer of right to carnings

The Group enters into transactions of transfer of right to earnings of credit assets in the normal course
of business by which it wransfers the rght o eamings 1o strucnered entities which sell share of trust
imvestons,

With respect 1o the credit assets chat were wansferred and qualified for de-recognition, the Group
derecognised the transferred crodit assews in their endrery. As ar 31 Diecember 2022, the Group held no
share in corresponding transaction.

As the Group neither vransfers nor retaing substanially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets and bt has rerained contral on them, these financial assors are recognised on the swatemen:
of financial position to the extent of the Group's continuing involverment. The extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the exent 1o which the Group is exposed to changes in the value of the
wransferred assems, As ar 31 December 2022, loans with an origina carrying amount of RMB1,998 millian
{31 December 2021: RMB1,998 million) had been transferred by the Group under arrangements in
which the Group retains a continuing involvement in such assers in the form of subordinared ranches,
which were accounted for in other assers and other lisbiliies. As ar 31 December 2022, the
amount of assets thar the Group continues to recognise amounted w AMB251 million (31 December
2021: RMB251 million).
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

240

45

Capiml management

The Group's capital mansgement includes eapital adequacy matia management, capital Anancing
maw:m:ntmdmmnﬂcwlwlmt.ufwh&hﬁ:pmwﬁw&uunqpmndqnqm

t. The Group caleubares the capical adequacy rario in scoordance with guidelines. The capiral of
the Group s divided int commen equity ter-one capleal, additional der-one capial and ter-rwo capiral.

Capital adequacy ratio management is the key in capital management. The capital adequacy ragie reflecs
the soundness of the Group's operations and rigk management capabilities. The main objective in capital
aidequacy ratio management i 1o set an optimal eapital adequacy ratio that meets the regulatory requisements
by benchmarking against the capital adequacy mtic level of lading global banks with reference o the
Group's own business environment and conditions.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and risk variables when
conducting scenario anahysis and stress testing and executing other measures to forecast, plan and manage
its capiral adequacy ratio. The required information is filed widh the CBIRC by the Group and the Bank

With effect from | Janwary 2003, the Group has starved compuring i capival adequacy ratics in sccordance
with “Regulstion Geverning Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)” and other relevant regulations.

The CBIRC requires commercial banks to meer the requirements of capital adequacy ratios by the end
of 2018 in accordance with “Reguladon Goveming Capiral of Commercial Banks {provisional)®, For
sysemically important banks, each bank is required to maintain the common equity ter-one capital
sdequacy ratio, ter-one capital adequacy mtio and capital adeguacy miio of ai lesst B.50%, 9.50% and
11.50%, respectively, For non-sysiemically impomant banks, the minimum rados for commaon equicy der-
one capitl adequacy rato, der-one capital adequscy ratio and capieal adequacy rado are 7.50%, B.50%
and 10.50%, respectively. In addition, those individual banking subsidiacies or branches incorporated
overseas are abo directly regulated and supervised by cheir respective local banking supervisors. There are
certain differences In the capinal adequacy requirements of different countries.

The on-balance sheet risk-weighted assets are measured using different risk weights, which are determined
sccording, 1o the crediz, marker and other risks associated with cach asset and counterpary, taking into
account any eligible collareral or guarantees. Simitar trearment is adopred for off-balance sheet exposure,
with adjustments made to reflecz the more contingent nature of any potential losses. The counterparty
credit risk-weighted sssets for over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are the summasion of defauk risk-
wugl!mdummdubdhwhuad;lmumﬂmh} Marhuli;k—mt]gltcdmmcdﬂhmduﬂqdw

The Group has computed i capiwl adequacy rarios and related dara in accordance with “Regulation

Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)™. During the reporting year, the Group complicd
with the capital requirements imposed by the regulatory authoritien.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUED)

45 Capital management [cantnued)

mﬂwﬂkuhﬂﬁcapm}ﬂquuylﬂmm accardance with “Regulition Governing Capital of

Commercial Banks (p donal)™ and requi arg as follows:
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Towl common equity der-one capial 404,205 378,813
Share capital 54,032 54,032
Qrualifying portions of cagpital reserve, other equicty
instruments and other comprehensive income G2,007 65,749
Surplus reserve 26,245 26,245
General reserve B1.401 75,596
Retsined carnings 179,293 155,968
Qualifying pordons of non-controlling inceress 1,227 1,223
Common equity tier-one capital deductions {4,809 {4,021)
Goodwill {1,281) {1,281)
nher intangible assers ather than land use rghs {3475) {2.684)
Met deferred tax assets arising from operating losses that
depend on Future profits (53) (563
Net common equity ter-one capital 399,396 374,792
Addidonal ter-one capital 105,063 105,062
Additonal ter-one capital intruments 104,899 104,899
_ Qualifying partions of nen-centralling interests 1 163
Tiez-one capital net 504459 479,854
Tier-two capital BE,759 B2.400
Quulifying pordons of der-rwo capital Instrumenes fssued
and share premium 45,000 42,258
Excess loan loss provisions 42,287 3677
Cualifying pordons of non-centrolling incerests 1,472 1,465
Net capital basc 393,218 62,254
Total risk-welghted asmscts 4,579,772 4,204,733
Commaon equity ter-one capital adequacy ratio 8.7 2% 8.91%
Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 11.01% 11.41%
Capleal adoquacy ratic 12.95% 13.37%
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

46 Notes 1o consolldated cash fow stavements

(a) Net Inercase in cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

2022 Flirs]
Cash and cash equivalents as ar 31 December 136,664 222,583
Lessz Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 222,583 145,076
Wet (decrease) fincrease bn cash and cash equivalents (85.919) T7.507

(b} Cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

022 021

Cash on hand 4,022 4,005
with the central bank 67,141 90,168

Deposits with banks and other financial instirutions 31,084 50,029
Placements with banks and other financial institutions MALT 78381
Total 136,664 222,583

'i‘jl “L[Il:d. Fi.l'tr ﬁ]]r_‘iﬂl‘llhlpl Ind ‘ﬂﬂﬂu.‘iﬂl'lﬂ

{(a) Related parity rclationships
(i) The witinmate parent company and its subsnidiaries
The ultimare patent of the Group ls China Investment Corporadon (“CIC™) sex up in China.

Approved by the Sate Coundl of the FRC, CIC was established on 29 Seprember 2007 with
registered capinal of USD200 billion, Ceneral Huijin Investment Lid, (*Huijin®) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CIC and cxerclses its rights and obligations as an investor on behalfl of
CIC o ulamately control the Bank through the China Everbright Group.

Huijin was established as 2 wholly state-owned investment company on 16 Diecember 2003, It
was registered in Beifing with registered capinal of RMBS28. 209 million. Apart from holding
equity investments a5 authorised by the Scace Coundil of the PRC, it does not engage in any
other commercial operations,

The Group's transactions with CIC, Huijin and its affiliates mainly include deposic mking
purchases and sales of debt securities, money markes transactions and inter-bank clearing. These
transactions are priced based on markes prices and conducted under mormal commercial rerms.

The Group has isued subordinated debes, financial bonds, convertible bonds, interbank
depasits and cenificates of deposit which are bearer bonds tradsble In the secomndary marker.

¥ the Group has no information in respeet of the amount of the debs held by
these banks and other financial institutions s at the end of the pear, The amount and balance
of related parties and transactions between the group and the ultimate parent company and is
subsidiaries are lisved in Note V47(b).
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47 Relawed parnty relationships snd transactions (coatinucd)
{a) Related parity relationships {continued)
f#) Affilizted companies
The immediate parent of the Group is China Everbright Group Led. ("China Everbright
Group™}). The uniform secial crediv code of China Everbright Group is 91100000102063897],
The affiliated companies refer 1o China Everbright Group and its affiliared companies. The
transactions and balances with China Everbeight Group and its aFfiliates are listed in Note V'
47(b).

The affiliated companics thar have refaved party ransacrions with the Group are as follows:

Related party
China Everbright Group Limived
China Everbright Limited (Everbright Limited)
Everbright Securities Co., Led. (Ewerbright Securities)
China Everbrighe Indusery (Group) Co., Lud.
Everbright Financial Holdings Asser Mamagement Co., Lid,
Ewerbrighe Life Insurance Co., Led.
Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Led.
Eveshright Prudential Fund Management Co., Lud.
Futures Co,, Ltd.

Ewesbright Fornane Investment Co,, Led.
Eveshright tal Inwesement Co., Lud
Sun Light E&vgihﬁgh: Asset Management Co., Lid.
China Everbright international Trust and Investment Cosporation
Everbright Jinou Asset Management Co., Lid.
China CYTS Group Corporation
Cacher Pharmaceatical Co., Lid.
Everbright Technology Co., Lad.

t Happiness Internarional Lessing Co., Lrd.
Everbright Sunshine Asser Management Ca., Led.
Hangzhou Jinou Asser Management Co., Lud.
Guokaitai Industrial Development Co,, Lid.
Zhongging Chisangyl Investment Management Co., Led.
Shenzhen Qianhai Everbright Investment Management Co., Led.
Everbright Securities Asset Management Co., Lad.
Everbright Guangei Investment Management Cou, Lid.
Shanghai Guiyun Asset Management Ca., Lad.
Everbright Senior Healthcare Industry Dievelopment Cao., Ld.
Ewvesbright Culture Investment Co,, Led.
Everbright ent Invesement Co., Led,
Beijing Everbright Huichen Pension Service Co., Lud.
CYTS Helding Co., Lid.
Beijing Damei Parent-Child Invesyment Group Co., Lud.
Shanghai Guangkong Zhongsheng Health Asser Management Ca., Led.
Shenzhen Qianhai Ruida Innotive Buyout Fund

L R L e T e e L o T T B et et e o Lo Wl s o e
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47 Related pamy relationships and transsctions {eonsiniscd)
(8) Related parity relationships (continued)
{#) Affilisted companies (rantinued)
Related party {continued)

Zhongguang Holding Co., Led,

CYTS Indistry Development Cou, Lud.

Zhuohai Guangkong Zhongheng Investment Management Co., Lod,
Ewerbright Prestige Capital Asser Management Co., Led

D Cheng Fund Management Co., Lid.

Shanghai Guangkong Jiaxin Equity Investment Management Co., Led.
Beifing Financial Assets Ca., Led.

Thanjin Guangkong Chengfa [nvessmens Managemens Parnership {Limited Parmexship)
Photocontrol Finanee (Shaanxd) Advanced Manufscruring Investment Parnership (Limited
Parmership)

CDB Jinzhan Economic and Trade Co., Led.

Huadian Financial Leasing Co., Lid,

China Everbright Real Estate Co,, Led,

Qingdao Light Control Low Carbon Xinneng Equity Investrment Co., Led,
Chengdu Rongjign MEDICINE &TRADE Ca,, Led.

China Everbeight Environment Group Limdred.

Shanghai Jiashi Minglun Medical Equipment Co., Led,

Gansu Equity Trading Center Co., Lud,

Heyuan Capital Management Co,, Led.

Qingdan Everhright Water Operating Limited

Songhuang Ecological Tes Co., Led.

Suzhou Hulyang Investment Management Co., Lid

Suzhou Hulyang Capiral Mansgement Co., Lid.

Wixi Guangkong Halyin Enterprise Management Co., Lad.

Wi Guolian Venture Capital Co,, Lod,

Zhangjiakou Guanghe Xiangda Propery Service Co., Lid.

(i} Cther relased parties
Other related pardes include key management personnel (directors, supervisors, senior

peronnel of the head office) and their close Bamily members, enterprises

management
camralled, joimdy contolled or exerted significant influsnce by key management personne or
thelr clase family members, shareholdess holding mare than 5% shares of the Group and the

key management personnel in direct coneral parry.
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47 Relawed party relationships snd transactions (coatinucd)
{a) Related parity relationships {continued)
i) Other related parties (comtinued)
The other related parties that have related party transactions with the Group are as follows:

Other related partes

LT T A T b et et e o R M e e e B e Ty e |

Orverseas Chinese Town Holding Company

Henan Zhongyuan Chemical Co., Lad.

Jilin TuwoCheng Construction Engineering Co., Led.

China UnionPay Co., Led.

Konka Group Co., Lid.

China Pacific Propeny Insunance Ca,, Ltd,

China Pacific Life Insurance Co., Led.

CDZCO SHIPPING Development Co., Led.

China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company

Shenzhen welpin Zhiyusn Information Technology Co., Lid.
Shanghai Zhongbo Enterprise Management Dievelopment Co., Lad
Shanghai Insurance Exchange Co,, Led.

Beijing Jingneng clean enegy power Co., Lod,

Shijiazhuang Hualin Food Co., Ld.

Fujian Bofang Technology Co., Led.

China Cinda Asset Management Ca,, Led.

Zhongke Zhiyuan Technology Co., Lud.

Huayang Gongji Investment Management Co., Lud,
Lankaoguang Huinongtong M. 1 Equity Investment Fund Partnership (limited Partmership)
Xinjiang Guangshi Hanhong Equity Investment Management Co., Led.
COSCO Shipping Group Finance Co., Lud.

COSC0 Shipping Container Transportation Ca., Led.
Zhongfei Leasing Finance Leasing Co., Lid.

Shenzhen Owerseas Chinese Town Co., Lid.

Orlenr Securities Co., Lad

Wuban Cingshan Ancient Town Real Estate Co., Led.
Shenneng Group Finance Co., Lad.

Shenzhen Zhaohua Exhibivon Industry Co,, Lid.

Kiangyang OCT Culture and Tourism Development Co., Ld.
Telian Technology Group Co., Led.

CIMC Finance Leasing Co,, Lud.

Bejing Gubel Warer Town Tourism Ca., Led.

Hunan OCT Cultural Teurism Investment Co,, Led.

The amount and balanee of ransactions berween the Group and ather related parties are shown
in Motes V47(h).
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47 Relaied pamy relationships and transsctions {eonsiniscd)
() Related party transactions
) The wltimate parent company and ite subridiaries
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The Groups material transactions with CIC, Huijin and i affiliaces during the reporting

pesiod are summarised as follows:

22 021
Interest income 730 1,034
Interest expense 5.902 4,112

The Group's material balances with CIC, Huijin and i affiliates during the reporing period

are summarised a5 follows:

31 December 31 Drecember
2022 2021
Depoasits with banks and other financial
instinugions 8,143 13,788
Precious metal 3 -
Placemenis with banks and other financial
Instinations 23,419 26,467
Desivative Gnancial assess 3,128 2338
Financial assets held under resale agreements 8 1,73
Loane and sdvances 1o customens 100 2,228
Financlal investments 340,056 298,941
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 122,064 81369
Diebs instraments ac fair vahse through other
comprehensive income 51,592 44,614
Financial invetments measured at amortised coie 166,400 172,958
Crther assets N P 14227
Taal 386,276 359,721
Drepasits from banks and ether fnancial
instiuzions 121,788 56,181
Placementz from banks and other financial
instinutions 64,165 §7.899
Dierivative financial labilities 3215 3,020
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 17,281 27478
Deposits from cusomers 108,483 101,898
_Orther liabilicies L1oL 1
Tatal 316,033 246,487
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47 Relawed parnty relationships snd transactions (coatinucd)

(b) Related party transactions (consinued)
i) Tramsactions with other PRC staie-owned entities

The Group of in an economic regime currently predominated by entities directly or
indirectdy owned by the PRC povernment through s government authorivies, sgencics,
affiliations and ather onganisation: (“rate-owned entties™). Transactions with other state-owned
entities include but are not limited to: lending and deposit mking taking and placing of inter-
bank balances; enousted lending and other custody services; insurance and sscurities agency,
and other Intermediary services; sale, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by
other state-owned entities; purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and rendering
and receiving of wtilities and other services.

These vransactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's banking business an
terms similar to those that would have been entered ineo with non-state-owned encities. The
Group's pricing strategy and approval processes for major products and services, such as loans,
depesits and commision Income, do not depend on whether or not the customers are stare-
owned entitics. Having considered the substance of the relationships, the Group iz of the
opinion that none of these transactions are muaterizl related party transctions that require
separate disclosure.

(i) Affiliated companies and other related parties
The Group's material mmdhhﬂmwﬂ:hﬂiﬁmﬂrﬂbf%h:{:mpuuddum
related parties during the reporting year are summarised as follows:

China Other
Everhright affilianed
Group companies Otthers Total
Transacrions with
telated parties for
year ended 31
December 2022:
Interest income - 4,289 407 4,696
Interest expense 105 TOB 1,136 1,949

247

353/425



EVERBRICHT RANK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenrs
For the year ended 31 December 2012
Epremmed th llliog of Rssssiihd, il sebvsrmes. sitel)
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() Related party transactions {continued)
() Affilisted companies and other related pariies (continued)
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China Orther
Everhright affiliared
Group  companies Orhers Tatal
Balances with relared panies
as at 31 December 2022
Placements with banks and
other Anascial imnhutdons 3,100 2,000 5,100
Deetivative financial awets = 13 13
Loans and advances to
CUSOmErs = 3,822 9,528 13,350
Financil investmerns 72 43,876 06 44,854
Financial amets ar fir valoe
through profit cr los 72 21,356 - 21,4628
Db inuruments a1 fir
value through other
ive Income = 41 7 118
Financial investmenn
messured ar amortised cost - 22479 629 23,108
Oriher asiets = 53 3,537 4,071
Tonl 7 51,332 15,784 67,388
Diepesties fram barks and
other financil irstitations - 20,058 16,448 37,606
Deerivarive financizl [abilinies - - 20 0
Depasits fram customens 5064 10,387 22,138 37489
Diber liabilitic - 118 168 226
Toul 5064 31463 38,074 75601
Significant other sdheet frems
with related partics as at
31 Diecomber 2022:
Guaramee granned (Note) 180 - - 180
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47 Relawed parnty relationships snd transactions (costinucd)
(b) Related party transactions (consinued)
(idd) Affiliated companier and otber related parties (cominued)

China Onthier
Everhright affiliared
Group companies Others Toml
Transacions with relawed
et far the ended

31 December 2021
Inerest income - 1,934 636 2,570
Interest expense n mn 659 1,102
Balances with related parties

w xt 31 December 2021
PMacements with banks znd

other financial instinstions - 1300 - 3300
Derivative Bnancial asets - - L 1%
Fimzncial asseos held wnder

resle apeements - 114 - 114
Loans and advinces o

custmery = B89 14,514 23413
Fimanclal invesrent 104 46,963 1514 48,581
Financial assers a1 fair valse

through prafit or loss - 15,763 1.514 17.283
Db Enseruments ar fair

value through other

comprehensive income 104 41 - 145
Fimancizl investments at

amortised con - 31,153 - 31,153
Oeheer assers - 3 2317 3048
Totl 104 &0,007 18373 78484
Deposits from banks and

other financial inssinsions - 15511 14,905 30416
Macements from banks and

other financial instinuions - ] - ]
Dierivative Brancial labilide - - 23 28
Financial ageets sold ander

reparchase sgreementy = & = 6
Depotin from castamen: 3,137 T.2M 25,044 39,407
Other lisbiliies - 115 1122 1237
Total 137 23,288 45,059 71,524
Significant ocher sheer fvems

with relited parties a8 at

31 Decerber 2021;
Guannree granted (Note) 180 - - 180

Naw: Ao ar 3T Dvorombor 2022 dh Rush bar prasvansse sblipacions rolazing oo Uhing Bravbrigly onpup | putmanading tmurer sblipunion
of RAETS0 mmillaen [3) Dvocronber 2020; RAMBIS0 willion) dior w0 wis of by stahrvwnsel commperial banks.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
47 Related pamy relationships and transsctions {consiniscd)

() Related party transactions {continued)
{¥e) Remuneraiion of directors, rupervisers and senior managpement

022 2021

RMB 000 RMEB'000

Rermuneration 24427 28,887
Retirement benefits 1,903 3360
= Basic social pension insurance 587 618

The total compensation packages for senior management of the Group as at 31 December 2022
have not been finalised in accordance with the repulstions of the PRC relevant auchorities, The
remuneration net yet accrued s not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's and
the Bank's financial statements as at 31 December 2022,

(v} Loans to related natural persons
The aggregate amount of relevant loans oustanding as at 31 December 2021 to related natural
persons amounted to RMBS million (As ar 31 December 2021: RMB10 millicn).

Of which the aggregate amount of relevant loans cutstanding to directors, supervisors and
senior management, are as follows:

The aggregate amount of relevant loans outstanding o directors, supervisars, senior management
or their associates of the Group disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 o the new
Hong Kong Companies Ovdinance, with reference wo section 161 of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), are s follows:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
RMBN) RMB"000
Agpregare amount of relevant loans cuntnding as
at the year end 8199 9,041
Maximum aggregare amount of relevant loans
outstanding during the year 8308 9,100
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)

48 Stasement of financial position of the Bank

Mote V 31 December 31 December
2022 021
Assets
Cash and depasits with the central bank 356,253 377 846
Drepasits with banks and other financial
instimuzions 28279 49,555
Precious mezals 7187 6,426
Placements with banks and ather financial
instirutions 137,450 149,588
Dietivarive fnanctal asets 15,726 13,705
Financial assets held under resale
agreemients: - 32,507
Loans and advances w customers 3,489,051 3,231,445
Finaneal investments 2,031,064 1,822,297
= Financial aspets ag fair value through
profic or loss 398,106 378,113
— Diebe instruments at fair value through
other comprchensive income 443,869 318,343
— Equity instruments 2t fair value
through other comprehensive income 1,121 1,120
= Finanedal investments measured at
amortised cost 1,187,968 1,124,721
Investment in subsidiaries 19 12,983 12,983
Praperty and equipment 16,403 15,836
Right-of-use assets 10,122 10,780
Goodwill 1,281 1.281
Drefeered rax assens 31,146 18,517
Orther assets - - - ]
Total assers 6,169,066 5,781,399
251
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

48 Stmement of Anancial position of the Bank (eontinsed)
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31 December 31 December
222 21
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Dhse 1o the cenreal bank 63,231 101,036
Dicposis from banks and other fnancial instinions 544,410 £28,061
Placements frem banks and other financial institutions 105321 98,520
Deerivative financial liabilites 14,257 13,336
Financial assers sold under repurchase agreements 89,959 79,382
Deposits from customers 3,915,781 3,674,204
Accrued saff costs 18473 16,385
Taxes payable 9,836 5,362
Lease liabilities 9,993 10,562
Diebts secwrities iswed 872,278 759,340
Other lisbilites e e 19,953
Total liabilices 5,670,690 5,306,141
Equity
Share capital 54,032 54,032
Oither equity instrument 109,062 109,062
af which: Preference shares 64,906 64,9046
Perpetizs] bonds 39,993 39,993
Capital reserve 58434 SBAM
Orther comprehensive income (453) 3,390
Surphss reserve 26,245 26,245
General reserve 77429 TrE2
Reained eamings 173,627 151,274
_Total equity i i 498,376 _ 475258
Total liabilicics and cquity 6,169,066 5,781,399
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

49 Scgment reporting
The Group manages i butiness by business lines and geographical aress. Consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s mast senior executive managensent for the purpases
of resource allecation and performance assessment, the Group defines reporting segments based on the
following operating sepments:

Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a mnge of fAnancial products and services o corporations and
EGVEITUTIENE Agencics, Th:wpmdummdmmdud:wrpumlwmudm trade financing

Retail banking

This segment represenes the provision of a range of financial produces and services 1 remil customers,
These products and services include personal loans, deposit taking activities, bank card business, personal
wealth manspement services, remimance services and securities agency services.

Financial market business

This segrnent covers the Group's financial marker business. The financial market busines enters into inter-
h&mmm@mummup;ﬂmmﬁdnmmdmuﬁhﬁkmmluhmmm
securities, derivatives and foreign currency trading for is own accouncs The financial marker business
scgment also covers customer-driven derivatives and foreign currency trading, as well as management of
the Group's overall liguidity position, including the isuance of debs.

Orthers
These represent equity iovestments and related income,

Measurement of segment assets and liabilities and measurement of segment income, cxpenses and resules
are based on the Group's accounting policies.

Internal charges and transfer prices are determined with reference to marker rares and have been reflected
in the performance of each segment. Interest income and expense earned from third parties are referred
oy as “external net interest income”. Net interest income and expense arising from internal changes and
wznsfer pricing adjustments are referred (o a3 "incernal et interest incomedexpense”,

Segment income, cxpenses, asiets and liabilities include ftems diseety anributable o a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on 2 ressonable basis. Segment income, experves, assets and labilities
are devermined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated &5 part of the
consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure b the toal cour incurred to acquire property and
equipment, intangible assets and other long-term assers.
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%E ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

49 Scgment reporting (costnucd)

(2) Segment results, assets and Habilities

022
Financial
Corponte Retail market
banking basniking business Orthers Total
Bl s s
incame 20,821 67,033 25801 - 113,655
Imternal met inceress
income! {expense) 2754 (19,537) (8,007) = =
Met interest income 48,365 47 A% 17,794 - 113,655
et fee and commission
incommse T 18,399 823 = 26,744
Net trading gairs - = 2,470 = 2,470
Dividend income - - - 49 49
Net gains arising from
investiment securities 438 - 5912 [ 6AlG
et gains on
derecognition of
financial xssets
measyred ar amartised
ot - - 858 558
Forelgn exchanpe gain 245 48 191 - 484
Onher net operating
__income 1,049 55 3 82 1,189
Operating income 57619 65,998 23,051 197 151,865
expenses {18,176} 125,006) (1.899) (146) (45.227)
Credic impairment logses {13,5%4) (2,374) - (50,500)
Crther impairment lossss 3 (4} (2) - (=)
Losses on investmenis of
joint ventures = = = (63) (63}
Profic before wax 25,844 6,358 23,776 (12) 55,966
Orcher
informarion
~ Deepreciation and
amartisticn 2,866 3,206 266 - 6,358
~ Capital expendinure 1,819 2672 176 - 4,667
31 December 2022
Corporate Retail market
banking banking business Others Tol
Segment assers 2453436 1673743 2133844 5703 6266526
Segment labilitics 2977717 LIT63ET 1632788 3582 S57MA4TH
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUEL)

49 Scgment reporting (contnied)
(a) Segment results, asscts and Habilities (continued)

2021
Financial
Corparate Rerail market
banking hu.n.lrhig bussiness Orhers Tozal
Olperating income
External net inecrest
income 23,337 64,538 24,280 - 112,155
Internal nex Inverest
income/{expense) 7,132 (19,792} {7.340) = -
Met interest income 50,469 44,746 16,940 - 112,155
Met fee and commission
Income 7947 18,493 874 - 27,314
Met trading gains - = 2,193 - 2,193
Dividend income - - - 24 24
Met gains/(logscs) arising
from Invesment
securitles - - 10,134 (429 10,092
Met gains on
derecognition of
ial aspcty
measured at amoreised
[ - - 115 - 115
Foreign exchange galna'
(fosses) 33 47 (357) = 3
Other net opemating
_ incdme 964 M L] 358 _L47a
Operating Income 59,693 63,380 25,953 340 153,366
(perating expensss (18,901) (2, 644) {1,853) (142) (45,540)
Credit impairment losses (21,103 (28,136) {3,53%) - (#7725
Other impairment Josses (1 (2} i) - (23
Losses on investments of
Joime
ventures - - - (50) (50
Profit before mx 19,672 10,598 22563 108 52,941
Qiher segment
. &
— Depreciation and
amoreisation 1,671 2,865 229 - 5,765
— Capital expenditure 1,162 2,993 197 - 5332
31 December 3021
Fimancial
Corporate Reeail market
banking banking business Crthers Total
Segment assets 2,302,005 1,555,303 2,023,110 475 5,BB0.B93
Segment lizhilities L912L,1053 927,093 1,575,081 3404 5417681
255
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

49 Scgment reporting (costnucd)
Reconcillarion berween segment assers, lishilivies and wocal assers and woeal labilites

31 December 31 December

Mo ¥V 2022 2021
Segment assets 6,266,526 5,880,893
Goodwill 2 1,281 1,281
Dieferred tax asies 23 32,703 19,895
Total assets 6,300,510 5,002,069
Segment lishilites 5,790,471 5,417,681
Dividend payables 36 i 23 2
Total liabilisies 5,790,497 5417.703

(b} Geographical information
The Group operates principally in China with branches located in main provinces, autonomaous
regions and municipalites directly under the central government. Also, the Group has set up branches
in Hong Kong, Luxembourg, Sceul, Sydncy and Macao, with subsidaries located in Beijing, Wuhan
city of Hubei Province, Shaothan city of Hunan Province, Hual'an dity of Jiangsu Provinee, Ruijin
city of Jiangal Provings, Qingdao city of Shandong Province, Hong Kong and Luxembourg,

Mon-current assets include property and equipment, rght-ofuse assews, land wse rights and
intangible assets. In presenting of geographical information, non-current assets are allocated based on
hical bocarions of the underlying asse1s. Operating Income s allocated based on the locations

Beograp
of the branches which generate income. Geographical arcas, as defined for management reparing
purpases, are s follows

- “Yangme River Deha” refers to the following arcas serviced by the following branches of the
Bank and Huai'an Everbright Bank: Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangshou, Suzhou, Mingbo and
W i

-  “Pearl River Delta™ eefers 1o the arcs serdeed by the following branches of the Bamk:
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Fuzhouo, Xiamen and Haikow;

—  “Bohai Rim" refers to the aress serviced by the following branches of the Bank, E
Wealth and Sunshine Consumer: Beljing, Tianjin, Shijlazhuang, Jinan, Qingdso and Yantai;

—  “Cenwal” refers 1o the areas serviced by the following subsidizries and branches of the
Bank, Everbright Financial Leasing, Shaoshan Everbright Bank and Ruijin Everbright Bank:
Zhengzhon, Taiyuan, Changsha, Wohan, Hefei and MNanchang;
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

49 Scgment reporting (contnied)

(b) Geographical Information (continued)
—  "Wemern" refers wo the areas serviced by the following branches of the Bank: Xi'an, Chengdu,
Chongging, Kunming, Manning, Hohbot, Uramchi, Guiyang, Lanthou, Xining, Yinchian and

- "Momheastern” refers w the ancas serviced by the following branches of the Bank: Hellongjlang
Changehun, Shenyang and Dalian;

—  "Owemseas™ refers 1 the areas serviced by the Bank and the following branches, CEB
Intermational, CEB Europe: Hong Kong, Seoul, Luxembourg, Sydney, Macao; and

= "Head Office™ refers wo the head office of the Bank.

Ozt I

Yoy Hed Pad Mok
TooDeh Bebifin  Ofiz ol Bhelds  Wem  amm O Tod
an b LA . S ) (R %L B T T 1 bt e 15186
xnl TEY ®B% MWH B N BT b5 0 155

oo Ao el

Head TP Neh
FoDel BekiiBin Ofir  Coml Bl Wemt  com O Tedd
1 Diegember 2022 37 Moam onE M W 1 L I
0 Dezesher M1 E T S & v S [ v LR R I F L W RIS

fil lackeatong preperry and spaipme, righe-alase son mumpbl s s Lowd wr mgha.
50 Risk Management
The Group's primary risk manzgement objectives are to maximise value for equity holders while maintining
rigk within acceprable parameters, oprimising capital allocation and sarisfying the requirements of the
regulatory authorities, the Group's deposinors and other stakeholders for the Group's pradent and stable
development.

The Group has expasure o the following risks from i use of fnancal inssruments: credit risk, marker
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

This now presenas information about the Group's exposure to cach of the above risks and their sources,
and the Group's objectives, policies and procedures for measuring and managing these risks.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

258

50 Risk Management {continucd)

The Group's fk management policies wete established to identify and analyse the risks to which the
Group is exposed, to set appropriate sisk limits, and to design relevant internal contrel policies and systems
for monitoring risks and adhering wo risk limits. Risk management policies and relevant internal contol
sysems are reviewed regulary o reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activitdes. The
Internal Audit Depariment of the Group undertakes both reguler and ad hoe reviews of the compliance
of internal control implementation with risk management policies,

{a) Credit risk

Credit risk represenis the potential loss thas may arise from the failure of 2 debior or counterpany
to meet ins contractual obligation or commitment to the Group. It arises primarily from eredit and
bond investment portfolios and guarantees granted.

Credir busines

The board of directors is responsible for setting the Group’s risk management strategy and the
overall risk twlerance level The board abo monitors the Group's risk management process and
regularly amesses the Group's rsk position and risk management strategics. The board gives
advice on internal controls relating to risk manspement. Senior management is responsible for the
implementtion of the devalopment strategy, risk scravegy and risk managemen: policies set by the
board of directors. Senbor management i responsible for the tmprovement of the risk

and curablish of risk mansgement policies and rules. Senior management is responsible
Fnrmbhdwmtnfprnmdmnmdmﬂuﬂuudmuﬁ messure, evaluate, monitor and control
credit risks. And senior managemen: Is responsible for the t of all wpes of risks and
ensute thar the business activities of the Bank are consistent with i risk sraregy, risk appetite and
risk policies adopted by the board of directors.

The busines lines of the Group are direardy respensible for the management of eredic risk. The
Risk Mansgement Department is responsible for the develapment of risk management palicies and
procedures, and the monitoring and management of credis risks. The Internal Audit Department
is rezponsible for auditng the performance of duries of business lines and the Risk Management
Dicpartment, specifically as follows:

~  The Corporace Finance Deparcment, Invesment Banking Depanmen:, Inclusive Finance
Deparument, Credit Card Cenere, Retail Credit Depammenr, Digital Finanes Department
and other business lines carry out corporate and retail business in accordance with the risk
management policies and procedures of the Bank The busines lines are direczly responsible
fordumm.ﬁmtnfundhrlﬂ.md Mmlh:ﬁml]mnfd:ﬁnuofhmnﬂm‘uml
control the customer relasionship and the whole proces of
specific business in it dl.natlnﬁ.and they are firstly responsible for the compliance and sccurisy

of the business.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk Management (contnucd)
(&) Credie flak {comiinued)
Credii businees (eonsinued)

= The Bank's main responsible departments for credit risk management are the Risk Management
Department, Credit Approval Depanmenr, Risk Monitoring Department, and Special Asser
Management Deparment/Asser Management Depanment. They are the sccond line of defence
afﬂeinunﬂmnﬂinnuﬂi:ﬂ:kmmwnnmdduymmpwuibkfmdmmmﬂ
supervision of credix risk management. The functicnsl departments of credic risk managemen:
determine their functional positioning in accordance with the basic procedures of “Policy and
technology — Investigation and approval — During and pose-lending monitaring — Collection
and Resolution®.

—  The Internal Audit Deparmene is the third line of defence of credic risk management, and
undertakes the responsibility of supervision and performance evaluadon,

The Group contimscusly improves the Internal control mechanisen and srenprhens the management
of the eredit business, The Group has cstablished comprehensive assesment and ingquiry mechanisms,
amigning the credit management accountshility o the relevant departments and individuals.

For corporate businesses, the Group has esablished Industry-specific limits for credit and investment
approval. It has pur in place dynamic monitoring mechanism, with regular reporting of credis
cxposures to the board, The Group's credit risk management covers key operational phases, induding
pre-lending evaluations, crediv approval, loan payment and pest-lending monitoring. With respect 1o
pre-lending evaluations, the Group asenes customer credic ratings and performs ingegrated anabyss
on the risk and return of the loan. In the credit approval phase, the Group has sablished standardized
system and procedures for credit evaluation and approval in accordance with the principle of separation
of duties for approval and lending as well as the hierarchical approval principle. All eredit applications
are approved by designated eredit officers. In the loan payment phase, an independent responsible
department has been established 1o manage and control the payment of the loan, ensuring that the
payment conforms with the intended use of the loan approved. During the post-lending moniwring,
the Group continually monitors outstanding loans and other eredit refated businesses. Any adverse
events that may significantly affect 2 borrowers repayment ability are reported immediately, and
actions are taken o mitigase the risks,

For personal eredit operation business, the Group implemented control processes of “separation
of review and approval, separation of approval and lending, sepamtion of approval and morgage
registration, and separaton of loan managemen: and archival keep w effectively conerol the
operational sk, Dusing the pre-loan pw,:ﬂmwmﬁdﬁmwkhﬂm
level, credie history, and repayment ability of the applicant to strengthen the credit cvaluation of the
applicant. During the review and approval process, the clisnt managers forward the application and
their recommendations o the loan-approval depanments for further approval, and a sandardized
review and approval palicies and process in accordance with the principle of “scparation of nevicw and
approval” and “hicrarchical approval® have been esmblished for chis process. The Group monitors
borrowers' mmymulhmw.ﬂtmnfmlhmdm.d:nydmztmlhm“h:dmﬂnpm-
lending phase. Once a loan becomes averdue, the Group starts the recovery process in aceardance
with its standardized loan recovery procedures.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management {continucd)

(a) Credir risk (contioued)
Credit buriness (continued)
The Group adopes 2 loan risk dassification approach to mansge its loan portolio rsk. Loans are
generally classified a5 normal, special mention, substandard, doubtful and boss according o their
h&afdﬂ&uhmdﬂdﬂbﬁﬂmdhﬂhﬂummdﬂdwb{Impl&adlummdm
qu:mmsmdmmuptheqﬂhyufduuuinmﬁﬂuﬂmuphwm
the Guidelines of the Risk Clasification of Loans,

The care definitions of the five categories of loans and advances are set out below:

Mormal: Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans, There s no reason w0 doubt
their ability to repay principal and interest in full on a imely basis.

Special mention:  Bormrowers are currendy able w0 service their Joans and incerest, although
repayment may be adversely affecied by specific faciors.

Subseandard: Borrowers' ahility to secvice their loans is in question and they cannot rely
entirely on normal business revenues to repay principal and inceres. Losses may
ensue oven when collateral or guarantess are ivvaked.

Borrowers cannos repay principal and interest in full and significant losses will
need w be recognised even when collareral or puaranises are invoked.

'

Principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered or only 2 small portion
of them can be recovered after taking all possible messures or resorting to all

Bank implemented a customer oredic rating sysem based on the PD) model. The PD model
the P for customers In the coming year, The risk raring of the cumomer s obrained
rn:ppinﬁrd::lnn.dﬂp The Group conducts rechieck and optimization testing of the model
to the customer’s acnual defanlt each year o better identify the credit risk.

7

| HE

customer credit ratings In the internal model are based on four catcgories of A, B, C and D
which are furthet classified into twenty four grades as AL+, AAA, AAA-, Ale, AR, AR, A, A&, A,
BEEB+, BBB, BBB-, BB+, BB, BB-, B+, B, B-, OCCs, COC, OOC., CC, € and D, Credit grading
[ equares to defauleed customens while the others are assigned w performing customers.

Management pericdically rovicws various cements of the Group's credic risk management process, in
the context of losn portfolio growth, the changing mix and concentration of assets, and the evolving
risk profile of the eredit pordolio. From time w time, in this regard, refinements are made to the
Group's credit sk management processes to most effectively manage the effects of these changes on
the Group’s credix risk. These refinements include, among other dhings, adjustments to pordolio level
contrals, such as revisions o liss of approved borrowers, industry limits and underwriting criveria.
Where circumstances related o epecific loans or a group of loans increase the Bank's eredie risk,
actions are wmken, to the extent posible, to wrengthen the Group's sccurity position.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUEL)

50 Risk Management (continucd)
(a) Credie sk {continued)
Fingncial market busines
The Group implemented differentiated risk access standards of investmenss, and ensured the credit
risk exposure of financial marker business 10 be conerolled within 2 ressonable ange 1w meer the
Group's risk preference. At the same time, the Group has incegrated the financial markers busimess
ﬁ::mmsqe&tﬂkhm&euiﬁdﬂdﬂmtm.m&ﬂuﬂ:ppmlﬁe

customer credit limit and crediz line for the subject wmking credic risks, and carry out financial marker
business within the line of credit.

Mﬂm:

Mearement of ECL

The BECL is a weighted average of credit losses on financial instruments weighted at the probabilicy
of defanlt, Credit loss is the difference beoween all receivable contracnal cash Bows sccording o the
contract and all cash Aows expected to be received by the Group discounted to present value ar the
original effective interest rate, e the pretent value of all cash shorefalls.

According 1w the changes of credix risk of financial insruments since the inigial recognidon, the
Group caleulares the ECL by three stages:

*  Stage 1: The financial inscruments without significant incresses in oredic risk after indcial
recognition are included in Stage 1 o calculate their impalrment allowanc: ar an
amount equivalent to the ECL of the financtal instrument for the next 12 months;

*  Suage 2: Fipancial insoruments thar have had 2 significant incresse in credin risk since inirial
recognition bur have no objective evidence of impairment are included in Seage 2,
with their impairment allowance measured ar an amount equivalent o the ECL over
the liferime of the financial instruments;

*  Swage 3: Financial assets with objective evidence of impairment ae the end of the reporting year
are included in Stage 3, with their impairment allowance measured ot the ameoun:
equivalent to the ECL for the lifetime of the financial instrument,

For the previous accounting yeas, the impalrment allowance was measured at the amount equivalent
w the ECL over the entire lifetime of the financial instrument, However, at the end of the reporting
periad, if the financial instrument no longer belongs o the sinzation of there being a significane
increase in credit risk since initial recognivion, the Group measures the impairment allowance of the
financial inscruments at the end of the reporting period according to the ECL in the next 12 monshs,
For purchased or originated eredit-impaired financial assets, the Group only recognises the liferime
cumulative change in ECL after inftial recognition at the end of the reporting period 25 impaiement
allowance, At the end of each reponing period, the Group recognises the amount of the changes in
ECL a3 an impairment loss or gain In profit or ko,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continucd)
(a) Credir Ak {continued)
Credit risk meanurement {continued)

A, aof ECL {caminued)
The Group shall messure ECL of a financial insument in 2 way that reflects:

*  An unbissed and probabilisy-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating 2 range of
possible outcomes;

*  The dme value of money:

*  Ressonsble and supporable information thar is svailable withous undue cos or effors g the
reporting date about past events, current condidons and forecasts of furure economic conditons.

When messuring ECL, an entity need not necessarily identify every possible scenario. Howewer, the
Group shall corsider the risk or probability thar a crediv loss eccurs by reflecring the possibiliy thas
a credit loss cccurs and the posibility that no eredit loss ocours, oven if the possibility of a credit
logs accurring is very low.

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according w forward-looking information and used
complex models and asumptions in s expected measurement of credit losses. These models and
assumptions relace 1o the future macrosconomic conditions and borrower's creditworthiness (e.g,,
the likelihood of default by cusmomers and the corresponding losses). The Group adeprs judgement,
assumpions and cstimation techniques in order to measure ECL according 1o the requirements of
accounting standands such ax

*  Criceria for judging significant Increases In eredir risk

*  Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

*  Parameters for measuring ECL

#  Forward-locking information

*  Modifiction of contract cash flows

Criteria for judging significant incresses in credin risk

The Group assesses whether o0 not the credit risk of the relevant finandial instruments has increased
significantdy since the initial recognition az the end of each reporting period. While determining
whether the credic risk has significantly increased since Initial recognition or not, the Group rakes into
acoount the reasonable and substantiated information that is accessible without cxerting unnecessary
cost or effort, including qualitative and quandeative anzlysis based on the hiswoical dama of the
Gieoup and external credin risk rasing, Based on the single financial instrument or the combination of
financtal instruments with similar characueristics of eredit rigk, the Group compares the sk of default

of financial ingtruments at the end of the reporting period with that on the initial recognition date
in order o figure out the chanpes of defaule risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUEL)

50 Risk Management (continued)
() Credit rsk (continued)
Creait ritk mearurement (continued)

Measurement of ECL {continued)
Criteria for judging significant increases in crediv risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increass in credie risk
when one or more of the following quantizasive, qualicative or backsiop criteria have been mer:

Cluantitative eriteria

*  Ax the reporting dace, the decrease in customer rating is considered significant, comparing with
the one at initdal recognition

Cualitive criteria
*  Significant adverse change in debtors’ operation or financial same
*  Be dasified into Special Mention cavegory within five-tier loan dasification

Backstop criteria
*  The debror's contracrual payments (including principal and interest) ane more than 30 days
past due

The Group continued to make judgments based on substantive risk assessment and comprchensively
considered the operations and repayment capacity of barrowers, and 1o assess whether the eredin fsk
of relevant fAinancial instruments had inereased significantly since indtial recognition.

Definition of credit-impaired assets

The standard adopted by the Group to determine whether o credic impairment accurs under [FRS 9
is consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives of the relevant finandial instrument,
taking into account quantitative and qualitative criteria, When the Group assesses whether the credin
mw:nrwm.ﬁe%&mum mainly considened:

*  Significane financial difficulty of the isuer or the debior;

*  Debtors are in brach of contrect, smch as defaulting on interest or becoming overdus an
interest or principal payments overdue:

*  The creditor of the debtor, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial
difficuley, having granted o the debror 3 concession that the creditor would not otherwise

consider;
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management {continued)
(a) Credic fsk {contioued)
Credit risk mesrurement {continued)
Measuremens of ECL {eoninsed)
Definition of credic-impaired assess (continued)
= Ithhemmhgpmhﬂedﬂ:h:@*ﬂmhﬁhumwmwmw
*  The purchase or origination of a financial et ar a deep discount thar reflecos the incured
credit losses;

#  The debror leaves any of the principal, advancss, inerest or investments in corporate bonds of
the Group overduc for more than 90 days.

The credit impairment on 2 financial asset may be caused by the combined effect of multiple evenis
and may not be necessarily due 1w 2 single event.

Parameters of ECL measurement

According ro whether there is a significant inceease in credit risk and whether there is an lmpalrment
of asets, the Group measures the impairment loss for different assets with BCL of 12 months or
the entire lifetime. The key measwring parameters of ECL indude probability of defauk (PD), loss
given defaule (LGD) and exposure xt default (EAD), Mainly based on the requiremenn of IFRS
9, the Group takes into account the historical statistics (such as ratings of counterpartics, manners
of guarantess and types of collateral and repayments) and forward-Jooking information in order to
establish the model of PD, LGD and ECL.

Relative definitions are listed as follows:

*  PD refers to the possibility thae the debeor will not be sble o fulfil it shligarions of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughout the entire temaining Bferime. The Group's FD is
adjusted based on the result of the credit risk rating of customers, taking into account the
foreard-looking information and deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect the debior's
point-in-time (FIT) PO under the current macroeconemic environment.

= LGD refers o the Group's expectation of the extens of the los resulting from the default

expoaure. Depending on the wype of counterpary, the difference of credic producss, and the
type of collateral, the LGD varies. The LGD is the percentage of loss of risk exposure afier the

time of defanlt, based on historical statistics, che loss rate may be different in various coconomic

environmenis,

*  EAD is the amount that the Group should be reimbursed ar the tme of the default in the
next 12 months or throughour the entire remaining lifetime.

Farward-looking informatian

The caloulation of ECL involves forward-looking information. Through the analysis of historical
dara, the Group identifics the key economic indicators thar affect the credit risk and ECL of varlous
business types, such as GDF, CPL, investrnent in property and equipment.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk Management (contnucd)
(a) Credie fak {continued)
Credit ritk mearurement (coninucd)

Measurement of ECL {contimued)
Forward-looking information (continued)

Thhwﬁdmmmuﬁnindhmmduﬂmdﬂmﬂﬂmhmdﬁqmdiﬁqaﬂw
of business. The Group combined smtistic model and expers’ judgement in this process, sccording
o the resule of model and cxperns’ judgement, the Group predics these economic indicators on 2
quarterly basis and determines the impact of these economic indicators on the PD and the LGD

by conducting regression analyss.

In 2022, the key assumptions the Group has whken include the GDP growth rate, the CPI growth
rate, the investment in property and equipment growth rre. The GDP growth rate: the prediceed
value under the base economic scenario during the year of 2023 is 4.6%, the optimistic predicted
value is 6.19%, the pessimistic predicted value ks 3.1%.

In sddition to providing a baseline economic scenario, the Group combines statistic model with
cxpers” judgement to determine the weight of the other possible socnarios. The Group measures
the welghted average ECL of 12 months (Stage 1) oe lifetdme (Stage 2 and Stage 3). The weighted
average credit boss above is caleulared by muldplying the ECL for each scenario by the weight of
the comesponding scenario.

The Group conducts sensitivity analysis on the main economic indicarors uwed in fo
information. When the predicted value of the main economic indicators changes by 10%, the
difference between the hypothetical expected credit loss and the curemt expected credic loss
measurement does not exceed 5%,

Mudification of contractual cash flows

A modificiion or re-negotiation of a contract berween the Group and a counterparty may reule
in a change to the contractal cash flows without resulting in the de-recognition of the financial
assets. Such revtructuring activisies include exvended payment term armangements, repayment schedule
madifications and changes to the interest senfement method. The risk of defauls of such assew after
modification i assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original terms at
initial pecognition, when the modification s not substantial and so does not result in de-recognition
of the original asser and the book value of the financial asser is recalculaved and the relared gain
or loss s included In current profit or loss. The recaleulared book walue of the financial amer is
determined based on the present value of the contrciual cash flows fallowing the rencgatiation or
modification, a5 calcularsd using the original effective intevest rate of the financial zsset.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (contincd)

(&) Credie risk (continued)
{f)  Mavimums credit risk exporsre

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the net carrying amount of each type
of financial assews, inchuding derivative financial struments. The maximum expasure o credit
ik in respoct of the statement of financial posithon items as ar the end of the reporting period

is disclosed in Mote V' 53(2).
Lo ERAE
Snage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3 WA Tzl
Assens
Cash and deposits with
Dot B = = =
wil

and other financial

institutions 32073 - - - 32,073
Placements with banks

and other fimancial

Instinitions 129,845 - 134 - 129,979
E ARBELE

held under resale 5 o

nLE - - -

Lowas and sdvances 10

customers 3,389,741 20710 18.900 - 3499351
Finance lease

reectvalios 104,043 3,505 64 - 108,012
Financial investments 1,618,886 5,192 17,791 129,863 1,771,732
Orhers (Note) . 2338 6538 - 15730 43,607
Toal 5,652,380 105,546 37,289 145,593 5941208

31 December 2021
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 WA Total

Asscts
Cash and deposics with

the central hank 378,263 - - - 378,263
Dreposits with banks

and other financial

Instinurions 51,189 - - - 51,189
Placements with barlks

and other financial

instisuzions 138,215 - 134 - 138,349
Financial assets

er-ﬂd L 31,164 30,164

o . L = 2 .

Loans and advances o

CUSIOTETS 3,106,200 112,504 20,6592 - 3,239,396
Finance lexse

receivables 106,003 2,858 192 - 109,053
Financial investments 1,436,541 3,519 11,165 68,084 1,519409
Orthers (Mo 27,347 5712 e 13705 46,764
Toeal 5,274,922 124,593 32,183 B1,889 5,513,587

aiher porimaklnn recovdled b wohee scwe,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk Management (continued)
() Credit sk (continued)
{#)  Credit rating

The distribution acconding to the credit qualicy of amounts due from banks and non-bank
financial instinutions (induding deposits with banks and other financial insinstions, placements
with banks and other Anancal insdrutions, and financial assews held under resale agreements
for which counterparties are banks and non-bank financial institutions) i as follows:

31 December 31 December
2022

2021
Carrying amount 300 300
Provision for impairment bosses (166) (6]
Subrocal — | 134
Neither overdue mor impaived
- grade A m AAA 158,470 208,720
= grade B o BBB 900 1,118
- unrated (Note) 7/ 0
Subeoeal T 220,568
Total 162,080 220,702
N Mamip repromr dsan wid fevk and’ eober finesnie] e
The Group adopts a coedit racing approach in the credin risk of the debr securities
partfalio. Diebt secutities are rated with reference to Composite, of the major rating

agencies where the isucrs of the securities are located. The carrying amounts of debe securitics
investmenits analysed by the rating agency designations as ar the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2022

2021
Impaired
Carrying amount 27,292 18,814
Provision for impairment bosses Lo {7.649)
Subtmcal 17.731 11165
Bloombery
= grade AAA 5,217 -
— grade AA- w AA4 9,355 3,599
- prade A- o A+ 33,794 20,275
= grade bower than A~ E— 1 12790
Subtatal 74,517 36,664
Clrher apency ratings
~ grade AN 1,384,698 e, 608
- grade AA- o0 Ads 208,649 310,143
- grade A- o A+ 15,561 25,168
- grade bower than A 6,924 17,619
- unmased o 63592 150,042
Subrocal 1,679,424 1,471,580
Tonal 1,771,732 1,519,409
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management {continucd)
(b) Marker rlak

Marker risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group's activities, arising from adverse movements
in market rates including interest rates, foreign cechange rates, commeodity prices, sock prices and
ather prices,

The board of direcrors is ultimarely responsible for monitoring the Group’s marker risk w ensure
thar the Group has effectively identified, measured, monirored and controlled all rypes of marker risk.
The Risk Management Commitiee monitors the market risk management process within the scope
authorised by the board of directors, which include review and approval of marker risk management
srategies, policies and procedures as well ar the marker risk olerance level recommended by senior
management. The Group is primarily exposed to market risk in its treasury business. The Financial
Marker Department is responsible for the Group's investments and proprictary trading business.
The Asses and Liabilicy ruible for monitoring and
&th&ﬂﬁﬁuﬁ@%&:ﬁ&ﬁ:hﬁﬁhhﬂbﬁqﬂw
Management Department is responsible for formulating the market risk management policies and
procedures, 35 well a3 identifying, measuring and monitoring the Group's market risk.

The Group dassified the tranmetions as the banking book transactions and treding book transmctions,
The idencification, measurement, menitoring and controls over the relerant market risks are based on
the namee and characreristics of these books. The wrading book transscions consise of the Group's
imvestments which are scquired of incurred primarily for the purpose of selling in the near term, or
for the purpose of short-term profit tking. The banking book transactions represent non-trading
businesses. Sensitivity analysis, scenario analysis and foreign cwrrency gap analysis are the main wols
employed by the Group to measure and monitor the marker risk In i rading book transacriomns.
Sensitivity gap analysis, effective dumtion analysis and soenario simulation analysis are the main ials
used by the Group to measure and monitor the marker risk of its non-rrading businesses.

Sersitivity analysis is 2 technique which assesses the sensitivity of the Group's overall risk profile and
its risk profile with reference to the interest rate risks for different mazurisies,

Scenario analyshs b 2 muld-factor analysis method which atsesses the impact of multiple factors
interacting simultancously, taking into consideration the probabilities of various scenarios.

Forelgn currency gap analysiz Is a rechnique which estmares che impact of foreign cxchange rare
movements on the Group's current profit or loss. The foreign currency gap mainly arises from the
currency mismaich in the Group's onfoff-balznce sheet items.

Sensitivity gap amalysis b 2 technique which estimares the impact of interest rate movements on
the Group's currens profit or boss. It is used to work out the gap berween furure cash inflows and
outflows by caregorising cach of the Group's interest-bearing axscty and interest-taking liabilitics into
different periods based on repricing dates.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk Management (contnucd)

(b) Market risk (contined)

Scenario simulatdon analysis s an imporant wechnique for asessing Inceres mre risk, Iv simulaces
and caleulates the changes in net interest income (M) and cconomic value (EVE) indicators in
the following year through multiple conventional scenarics and stress scenarics, including interest
rate standand shocks, yield curve shifis and shape changes, historical extreme interest mte changes,
customers’ execution of embedded oprions for depeosin and loans, et The Bank regularly re-cxamines
important customer behavior models such as loan prepayment and deposits from carly withdrawals
wsed in scenario simulation analysis.

Effective durarion amalysis is a rechnigue which estimates the impact of interest rare movements
by giving a weight to cach period’s cxposure according to it sensitiviey, caboulating the weighted
exposure, and summarising all periods’ weighted exposures 1o estimate the non-linear impact of 2
chanpe in interest rates on the Group's economic value

Intevest rate risk

The Group is primarily caposed to interest rate risk arising from gap ridk, basis risk and wrading interess
rate risk. The Assets and Liability Management Department and Risk Management Department are
responsible for identifying, messuring and monitoring. In terms of measuring and monitoring risks,
the Group regularly evaluares the interest rare sensitivity repricing gap of cach period and the impace
of interest rate changes on the Group's net interest income and economic value. The main purpose
of interest rate risk management is to reduce the potential negative impact of interest rate changes
on net interest income and economic value,

Gap risk

Gap risk, which is also known 23 “maturity mismaoch risk”, is the most common form of interest
rate tisk, It is caused by the differences in timing berween the mamrides (relared 1o fized interesr
tate Instruments] ar repricing (related 1o Aoating interest rate instruments) of assets, labilities and
off-balance sheet iems. The mismatch of the repricing timing causes the Group's income or i
inherent sconomic valse v vary with the movernent in Interest exes,

Basis risk
Basis risk, 5 caused by Interest mics on different pricing basis on the on-and off- balance shee:
business of bank books The risk could be different the basis risk changes no maner the

term is the same ar similar,

Trading inserere rave vivk

Trading Interest rate risk mainly arises from the treasury's Invesrment portfolios. Interest rare risk
is monimred wing the cffective durstion analysis methed, The Group employs basis point value
methads to messure its interesc rate sensitivity, which is expresed a3 changes in the fair value of i
investment portfolios given a 1 basis poine (0.01%) movement in the inverese rates,
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%E ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (contincd)
Interest rate risk (continoed)

(i) The following rables indicate the effective interest raves for the respective periods, and the expecied
next nepricing dates (or maturiry dates whichever are earlier) for the anetr and liskilities of the

Girosp & at the e of the year:
31 Deczmber M2
Effectime Ko Ilmde  bowe  Bowmo
o Intzress- e deomts s Meds
{f Ted bearing Eothi mdesyr s B
L
Cash and deposiey with e
srvird btk 1% LT Moz IR - - -
Degoniz with besis 10 ocber
Emancl impitotices 1% i it} R - - -
Phiermers wish aaln aad ocher
Enncil prition i L b3 T b W -
Frasial sy b cnder e
152% | = H - = =
Lo and bt 9 cooenens i sl 5 M T 7] Lt
Frarcr ko mrivible S8 g 118 A an 15 |
Frazsisl merme AN ZMESD PaN I WS Wm0
Tooal amcts ML AMESID M AW LINBE MU 4T
31 Dicrssber M2
Eain Ko lande fwe fom
e s~ b deomety ceprad  Mordes
n Ted  bedy e iy Gepn  bepn
Lkl
D i che coneee busk 1% K- o ] EA6 = -
TDecain Foes banly and oiben
P e e W KN R - o
Phirenens Frm Sanks wed acher
finoreil ieviretions 1% 1 it it st - -
Freansial wmen w0l endey
sparckan e 1% bl ] 12 B L34 Ly -
Dty fve: v BET T R R F TR 1V S H
Debe serzricien imend 16% 138 I M s Has ]
Oben NAmm a5 ms - s @
Toul lbiitia KL Smeer e I v L R VR L bi )
At Fablry gap KL T L] HHl OB . R
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk Management (contnucd)

(b)) Market fsk (continoed)

Interest rate itk (concinued)

(i) The follnving tables indicate the effective interest rases for the regpective periods, and the expecsed
mext repricing. dates (or manurity daves whichever are earfier) for the awets and Babilisies of the
Group ai ar he end of the pear: (oontinsed)

B e
Bt N Lew s Betwem. Berwee
[ v b dmol merenl  Medw
i) Toud! betieg ek mdsmeywr  Bepm Pewm
hues
Caslh 4] depesis with e
cem] s (1, R i B e T - - -
Depecs wih ks o oer
Franciyl meritusivey L% b1k 1) LE 14 . -
Pcemener with bushs ind by
fiancial ineitation: L7 (EE L i MM 11353 -
Fissmcia] amety beld wocly el
agpeenen 1% a6 3 1T - - -
Liutet sl sbaouei 12 oy iM% R L6 448N GHSES i3x LAH
Finsnce e poeibles p1ALY M L33 ko, ) o 025 B2t
Fescil vz ims IBARE M T 19 @m0 HOM
Orbeny ! [[EF4L (.55 - = = 180
Total amen bR~ R 1 KV VE L A 11 LIFer B
3 D B
Efie He  lmdms e He
e e leteime- toe Eowmeedi oeywrssd  Moxds
i} T ey mch oleey frepn
Liskilien
Dot o the ereecal busk 1% L] ] 1y T S b -
Depecins fom sl od odher
fesodl wiradns PR R ¥ W i wAT 144 -
Pacrmenrt boes bushs e acher
fonaocial fecirations bl e il L e - -
Finsnit] ancy 10k wder
eperkee apemeras L% B 1§ au L1 1551 -
Deposins froen cossomens % NN AL LomEEE THAME AT it
Diebt sevasises bmped L L 1M e 05,5 ] -
Ocen ML k. -] 1584 o v i
Toud llid NASnm  MUM MOET LS 9N #
e Esbiliey gap NA 8 T RSN G (BB Gl
> The gfextive imirvoni ikt rrpreeall e e oy imierest i leponir is Bhe dvrrape b hearing avvisunhiliie
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continucd)

(b) Marker elik {continued)
Tnierest rate risk (continocd)

(i)

et rate sensitivity analyst
The Group uses sensitivity znalysis wo measure the impact of changes in inceress e on the
Group's net profit or loss and equity. As ar 31 Decenber 2022, assuming other variables
remain unchanged, an increase in the estimated interest rate of one hundred basis points will
cause the Group’s pet profit o decrease by RMBEZ2,736 million {31 Decemnber 2021: increase
by RMBZ2,177 million), and equity 1o decrease by RMB12,553 million (31 December 2021:
deerease by RMBS,296 miltion); a decrease in the estimated inerest rate of one bundred basis
points will cuwise the Group's net profit 0o increase by RMB2,908 million (31 December 2021:
increase by RMB2,333 million), and squity o incresse by RMB13,337 million (31 December
2021: increase by RMB9,855 million).

The: sensitivity analysis ahove is based on 2 static interest rate risk profile of the Group's asets
and lighilities, This anabysis measures only the impact of changes In inserest raves within one
yoar, showing how annualised ner profic or loss and equity would have been affected by the
repricing of the Group’s assets and liahilities within the one-year period. The sensitivity analysis
is based on the following asumptions:

~  Interest rate movemnenes at the end of the reporting period apply to all derivative and
non-derivative financial insruments of the Group;

—  An interest rave movement of one hundred basis poines is based on the asumprion of
interest rape movernent over the next 12 months;

~  There ia a parallel shifi in the yield curve with the changes in interest ranes;
= There are no other changes to the portfolic of asset and liabilicy;

- Other variables (including exchange rtes) remain unchanged; and
~  The analysis does not ke inte account the effect of risk management measues taken by
MANAGEMEnL.

Due to the adoption of the aforementioned assumptions, the actual changes in the Growp's net
profic or loss and equity caused by an incresse or decrease in inceress raves might vary from
the estimated resules of this sensitviry analysds.

Foreign cwrrency rivk

The Group's foreign custency risk mainly arses from the forsign currency portfalio within the
treasaury’s proprissary investments, and other foreign currency exposures, The Group manages forsign
cursency Hik by spor and forward foreign exchange mansscrions, swap transactions and manching it
foreign currency demominated assers with corresponding liabilities in the same currencies.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUELD)

50 Risk management (coninsed)
(b) Market fsk (continoed)

Foreign curvency risk (continued)
The Group’s currency exposures as at the end of the year are as follows:

3 Dm'ﬂ:-u 2022
US Deollars Orthers Total
(RMB (RMB {RMB
RMB  Equivalent)  Equivalent)  Eguivalent)
Assets
Cash and deposits with the
central bank 3,9 v 4,001 356,426
Dieposin with banks and
other Anandial instirutions 14,275 10,286 7512 32073
Plx;ﬂhu'rl:; with l)ﬂ.l'lks and
other financial instirutions 99,693 25,085 5201 129,979
Financksl sssers beld under
resale agreements - - 8 28
Loans and advances 1o
LTS 3,354,625 74,791 69,935 3.499,351
Financial lease receivables 104,687 3,325 - 108,012
Financial investments 1,906,805 105,825 33,982 1046,612
Orhers R 15,285 1,925 128,029
Total assets 5,035,701 242235 122,584 6,300,510
Lishilities
Dnee wo the central bank 63,386 - - 63,386
Deposits from banks and
other financial instirutions 534,696 3,024 2048 540,668
PMlacements from banks and
other financial instinutions 97935 S8ATT 32,189 188,601
Financial sxets sold under
repurchase agreements 74,725 8,343 9912 91,980
Dieposins from customers 3,731,263 153,797 32,108 3,917,168
Drebt seourities dswed 816,898 51,913 7160 E75.971
Others 99343 9,500 2480 111,725
Total liabilitics SAIB246 286354 85897 5790497
Met position 517,455 (44,129) 36,687 510,013
Off-balance: sheer credic
COMMITALENTS 1,331,943 34,169 13312 1,379,424
Dreebreiive Hoanctl
instruments (Mote) (937} 43,772 (8,031} 34,814
273
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

274

50 Risk manasgement (costinucd)

(b) Markee fisk {continued)

Foreign currency rivk {continued)
The Group's currency exposures as at the end of the year are as follows: (coninued)

31 December 2021

US Diollars Others Total
(RMB (RMB (RMB
EMB Equivalent) Equivalent) Eguivalent)
Assets
Cach and deposits with che
centrz] bank 361,425 14,942 1,696 378,263
Dieposits with banks and
other financlal insticutions 17,284 26,377 T.528 51,189
Placernents with banks and
ather financial institurions 84,508 46,782 7059 138,349
Financial assers held wnder
resale agreements 31029 - 135 31,164
Loans and advances to
CusTMTETS 3,083,682 93,185 62,329 3,239,396
Finance lease reccivables 108,230 823 - 109,053
Financial investments 1744976 66,766 24,174 1LB36,016
Orhers 103,446 13,758 1,435 118,539
Total asseis 5,534,780 262,633 104 656 5,902,069
Liahilicles
Due to the eeateal bank 100,180 - - 101,180
Dieposits from banks and
other financial institurions 524,463 265 1,531 526,259
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 84,283 54,636 30,707 179,626
Financial assets sold wnder
repurchase agrecments 728972 1,828 5,600 80,600
Diepostts from custamers 3,445,129 159,292 31,312 3,675,743
Diebt securities isnzed 01,662 56,446 S.424 763,532
Onthers 79,603 9,375 1.785 90,763
Total lishilites 5,009,202 331,842 76,569 5,417,703
Net position 525488 (69,209) 28,087 484,366
OHf-balance sheer credit
comminments 1,304,615 49,136 15,853 1,369,504
Derivative financial
ingoruments (Note) {56,670} 69,135 {24,128) {11,663)

Nay:  Deviwane fladany mvenmn mln oy 58 aesl samsy of debdnm
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risk management (continsed)
(b) Market risk (contimeed)

Foreign curvency risk (continued)

The Group conducts a substantial portion of its business in RMB, with cemain transactions
denominated in USD, HKD and, o 2 much lesser exent, other currencies, As ar the end of the
year, the exchange rate changes of the currencles w which the Group had significant exposure are

a3 follows:
31 Decembser 31 December
2022 021
Exchange rates against RMB for the HE doliar 0.8914 08176
Exchange rates against RMB for the US dollar 69509 63748

The Group uses sensiivity analysis to measure the porential effeer of changes in the Group's exchange
rates on the Group's net profit of loss and equity. As at 31 December 2022, assuming other vartables
remain unchanged, an appreciation of one hundred basis points in the US dollar against the RMB
would incresse both the Group’s net profit and equity by RMB31 million (31 December 2021:
inerease by RMBS million); a depreciaton of one hundred basis poine in the US dollar agains:
the BMB would decrease both the Group’s net profit and equity by RMB31 million (31 December
2021: decresse by RMBS million).

The sensitivity analysic mentioned above it based on a static foreign exchange exposure profile of
assers and lizbilities and cenain simplified asumptions

—  The foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised a5 a resule of one hundred basis
polnt’ Auctuation in the foreign curency exchange miss (ceniral parity) agains RMB;

— Az the end of the reporting year, the fluctuation of exchange rates by one bundred basis poines
is bated on the assumption of exchange rate movement over the next 12 months;

= Due w the immarerial proporion of the Growp's votal assers and liabilicies denominared in
currencies other than US dollars and HE dollars, other foreign currencles are converted into

and swaps;

—  Oxher varisbles (including inceress raves) remain unchanged; and

—  The analysis does not wke into account the effect of risk management measares ken by
MEnAgEmCn.

Dhue to the asumptions adopted, sctual changes in the Group’s net profit or los and equity resulting
from the increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates might vary from the estimated results of this
semsitivicy analysis.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk mansgement (costinucd)
(b) Marker rsk {continued)
Price visk

Price risk mainly comes from equity investments held by the Group and the trading precious meral
investments. The Group's risk of commodity or shares price from investment is noc significant,

(e} Liquidity risk
Liquidicy risk s the risk thac a commercial bank s unable to obwmin funds on a dmely basis or
obtain funds ar 2 reasonable enst o meet repayment obligations or suitain i aset busines. In
l.m:n!.l.mzvldd'l.ll.l{quﬂtrpnllnﬂ ﬂ!.tGpmlP nmﬂmnﬁ:ﬁmnzmhﬂmmﬂmmmﬁqnﬂ
assens of high qualiny.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee ("ALMC”) is responsible for managing the Group's
overall liquidicy risk. The ALMC, chaired by the President of the Bank, is responsible for the
formulaton of the liquidicy policies in accordance with regulatory requirements and prodentdal
principles. Such policies include:

= Maincaining liguidity ax 3 sable and sufficient lovel; csuablishing integraved liquidicy risk
management fystem; ensuring the meeting of liquidity requirements on a timely basis and the
pu:p-nmumnﬁuuhd:ﬂu. wheﬂmmdu:nm:lapﬂ:ﬂn‘mri:mtmamaf
stress; and

~  Making dmely and remsonzble adjussments o capital strscrure and scale in response to marker

changes and business developmenis; achieving the integration of the security, Bquidity, and
sifectivencss of the Bank's funds,

The Asset and Lizhiliy Management Departrnent is resporuible for executing liquidity risk
management policics. It s also responsible for identifying, measuring, monitoring and managing
medium and long-term working capital on a regular basis, and Enrﬁ)rmﬂ:d:zﬂqurd]qmuw

jez, The Asset and Lishility Management Department is responsible for monitoring working
capital on 2 daily basis and ensuring the liquidicy. Significant dishursement or portfolio changes must
be reported to the ALMC on a timely basis,

The Group mainly applies liquidiey gap analysis to messure liquidity risk. The Group will continue
o focus on limit monitoring and dynamic control, and apply different scenario stress tests o assess

the Impacts from liquidity risks and develop effective contingency plans 1 respond 1o various possible
liguaidity risks.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (consinsed)

(e} Liguidity risk (continued)
The following ables provide an analysis of assets and lishiliies of the Group into relevant maruricy
groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment ar the end of the year:
31 Deccmber 207
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Devember 2012
(Exproased in emillion of Reesminkl, sl cchersise wed)

g ¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (comtnucd)

(e} Liguidity risk {oontinued)
The Following tables provide an analysis of assers and Habilides of the Group

into relovans mamricy

groupings based on the remaining periods 1o repayment at the end of the year: (continued)

3 Dol 208
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continsed)

(e} Liguidity risk (continued)
The following rables provide an analysis of the contraciual undiscounved cash flows of the financial

liabsilities a1 the end of the year:
1 Dby 221
Looaczat ke bom b
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g V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk mansgement (costinucd)

(e} Liguidity risk {oontinued)
The following wbles provide an analysis of the conracmal undiscounted cash fAows of fnancial
liabilitics ar the end of the yer: (continued)

3| Dicomber 271
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This anafysis of the financial instruments by contractual undiscounted cash fows might diverge

from acnual resules.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continsed)

(e} I.Iqu.ull'rl'l*[mﬂnmd}
The foliowing rables provide an analysis of off-balance shees asses of the Group into refevant
maturity groupings based en the remaining periods to repayment a1 the end of the year:

31 December 2022
Between
Within  one yesr and Mare than
e year five years five years Tozal
Loan and credit cand
COPMiLIENLS 365,068 540 1,520 367,128
Guarantees, acceptances and
ather credit commitments 964,754 46,456 1086 1,012,296
Towl 1,329,822 46,996 2,606 1,379,424
31 December 2021
Between
Within  one year and More than
OBE VEar five years five years Toaal
Loan and credit card
COMMiCLEn s 357,503 957 2925 361,385
(Guarantees, acceprances and
ather credit commitments 962,529 44,584 1106 1,008219
Totml 1,320,032 45,541 4,031 1.369,604
{d) Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of losses associared with internal processes deficiencies, personnel
mistakes and information gystem failures, or impacs from other external events.

The Group emablishes a framework of an operational risk management syscem o identify, assess,
control, manage and report operational g The framework covers all business functions ranging
from corporte banking, retail banking, trading, corporate finance, settlement, intermediary business,
smset management and ail supporting funcdons, induding human resource management, financizl
management, legal affairs, anti-money laundering and adminisration management. The key elements
of the framewnork are liseed as follows:

= A multi-level operational risk management framework with segregation of duties berween frone
and back affices under the leadership of senior manapgeement;

= A series of oporational risk management policies covering all businesses on the basis of core
operatonal flsk management policy;

= A ser of standard operational procedures covering all products and services, which is practical,
traceable and can be re-performed, investigared and remedied;
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

282

50 Risk mansgement {costinucd)

(d) Operstional risk (continued)

51

A series of operaional risk management wools, Including Risk Control Self-Assezsment (RCSA),
Key Risk Index (KRI), Loss Event Colleetion and IT system menitoring

An operational risk management culture, the core values of the culture is chat effective risk
management could creare value. It is suppored with 2 weam of operational risk management
professionals across all branches, businesses and functions;

An evaluazion sysem on the operaticnal risk management as well a2 an inquiry and disciplinary
system on the non-compliance issues; and

An independent risk assessment framework based on the internal audit and the compliznce
review,

Fair value

{(a) Methods end assumptions for measurement of fair value
The Group adopes the following methods and asumptions when evaluating fair values:

[¢]]

(#)

Dbt securivies and equity inveriments

The fir valuss of debe securities and equity investments that are traded in an active market
are based on their quoted marker prices in an active market ax the end of the reporting period.
The fair values of unlisted equiry investments are estimated using comparable frm approach,
after adjustment for the specific dreumitances of the bders.

Receivabler and other non-devivative financial asets

Fair values are estimated as the present values of the future cash flows, discounted ac the market
interest rases ac the end of the year,

(¥ii} Dbt securities isrned and other non-derivative financial labilities

Falr values of debr securities issued are based on thelr quoted marker prices ar the end of the
reporting period, or the present value of estimased future cash flows, The fir values of other
non-derivative financial liabilities are valued ai the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The discount razes are based on the market ineses rases an the end of the year,

Devivative financial instramenty

The fair values of foreign currency forward and swap coneracts are determined by the difference
berween the present values of the furward prices and the contractual prices ar the end of the
reporting period, or are based on queted marker prices. The fir values of interest rate swaps
arc catimated as the present value of estimared fumare cash flows. The yield curve is based on
the optimised price between the broker's quoted price and Themson Fewters’ quated price.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 Falr valoe (consinssd
(b) Falr value messureiment

8]  Financial gsets

The Group's Anancial assets mainly consist of cash and deposits with the central bank,
depesits wich banks and other financial insinutions, placements with banks and ocher financial
inatirutions, derivative finandal assets, finamclal assens held under resale agreements, loans and
advances to customers, finance bease recevables and financial investments.

Cash and deposits with the cenural bank, deposit with banks and other financial institutions,
placements with banks and other financial instiretions and financial assers held under resale
agreemenis are mostly priced st market interest rates and due within one year. Accordingly,
the carrying amounts spproximane the fir values.

Loans and advances to cussomers measured at amortised cost, finance lease receivables and
financial investments measured ar amortised cost, except for bond investments and asser-backed
securites, are mostly priced ar foating interest rates dose 1o the PBOC mues, Accordingly, the
carrying amounts approximate the fair values,

Financial assets at fir value through profit or loss, debe instruments at fair valee through
other comprehensive income, and equity instruments at fair walse through other comprehensive
income presented at Rir value.

() Financial Habilities

The Group's fnancial lishilities mainly include deposits from banks and other financial
institutions, placcments from banks and other financial instintiens, finandal ases sold under
repurchase agreements, deposite from cuseomers, due to the cenrral bank and debt securites
issued. Excepe the debe securities issued, the carrying amounts of other financial liahilities
spproximate their fir values,

Financial liabilities at Fair value through profie or loss and derivative financial labilities presented
at fair value.

The tables below summarise the carrying amounes and fair values of “debr securities and asser-
backed instruments measured 2t amortised cost™, and "debs securities fsued” not presented at
fair value at the end of yean

C.ﬂq'lng value Fair value
a-l Do:ﬂub:r 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2022 2021
Flnancial ssmet
Diebt securities
and asset=backed
insruments measured
ar amortised coss 1,118,734 ¥91,472 1,135,161 1,003,770
Financial liahilities
Debt securities lsned B75,971 763,532 859,788 751,799
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51 Fair value {continucd)
(b) Palr value messurement (continued)
(H) Finenclal Habilitles (cominaed)

Diebe securities and asset-backed instruments messured at amorised cost are based on marker
prices or broker/desler price quotations. Where this informadon s not available, the Bank
will perform waluation by referring 1o prices from valuadon service providers or on the basis
Jmuﬁmmmwmmmwmmmw
furure default rates, prepayment rates and markee liquidity, The fir values of RMB bonds are
mainly determined based en the valoation results provided by China Ceniral Depository Trust

& Clearing Co., Led.,

The fair values of debe securities isued are caloulated based on quoted market prices. For those
bonds where quoted marker prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based
on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term m marriey.

{c} Fair value hicrarchy
Thﬁﬂmn!hhhpmu&mmdmnfﬁnmdm:unmumdn&umh
the saremens of financial position across the thiee levels of the Fir value hicrarchy, The level in
the fair value hierarchy within which the falr value messurernent is caregorised is determined on the
basis of the [owest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement in its entirety. The
definitions of three levels are as follows:

Level 1@ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical awets or abilities.

Level 21 Inpuss other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assews
of liabilities, either directly (Le. pricss) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices). This
level includes bonds and a majority of OTC derivative contracts. Input parameters like
ChinaBond interbank yield curves or LIBOR yield curves are sourced from ChinaBond,
Bloombeng, Thomson Featers and Shanghai Clearing House.

Level 3:  Inputs for assets or lisbilities that are not based on cheervable market daga (unobserable
inpush, This level includes complicated unlisted equity and derivative contracs with one
or mare than one significant unobservable component.

“This hierarchy requires the use of observable open marker dara wherever possible, The Group trics
its best o consider relevany and observable marker prices in valuarions.

If there is a reliable market quote for financial instruments, the fair value of financial instruments
is based on quoted market prices. If a reliable quoted marker price is not available, the fair value
of the financial insruments is estimared using valvation technigues. Valsarion techniques applied
incdude reference o the fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted
cash fow analysis and option pricing models, The inputs used in valuation cechniques include risk-
free and benchmark interesy races, credic spreads and forelpn exchange raves, Where discounred cash
flow analyss is used, estimared cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount
rate wied is with reference to another instrument that is substancially the same.
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 Falr value (consinscsd

(€} Falr value hierarchy (continued)
Assetz and Habilities mearured at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Deerivative financial acetr
- C.!.q'n:n:r derivatives - 10,961 = 10,961
= Interest rate derivarives 1 4,768 - 4,769
Loan and advarices to
cuItomeTy = 214,253 = 214,253
Finanetal avew ar fair value
through prafit or L
= Debe instruments held for
wading 1,287 108,098 255 109,640
= Oither financial assets ar
fair value through profic
or loss 217,137 69,144 7696 293,977
Debr imrtruments at forr value
through other comprehensive
ironie 56,292 393,240 (= 449,596
Equity instrumenis at fair
value thraugh sther
comprehensive incame 24 - 1,102 1,126
Toeal 274,741 B0, 464 8,117 1,084,322
Liabilities
Financtal fiabilivte ar fair
value through profit or o 7 - - 27
- Currency derivatives - 4,743 - 5,743
= Interest rate derivatives = 4,518 = 4,518
Towal 7 14,261 - 14,288
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51

Fair value (continued)

(c) Fair value hlerarchy (coatinusd)

Assetz and Habilitles mearred ai fair value (continied)
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31 Deecember 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Levd 3 Total
Assety
- Cl.l.n':n.q- derivatives 7234 - 7234
= lmezest rare derivatives = 6,470 - 6,470
— Credit derbvarives - 1 1
Loans and advancer to
ERToTeTy - 155,647 - 155,647
Fingncial doets st fair value
threugh profir or log
— Dbt imsrumenns held for
trading 1,801 48,840 150 50,891
= Orher financial asets at
fair value through profic
or los 255,932 66,775 10,068 HILTTS
B insrruments ot fuir valee
Hreugh erher comprehensive
income 56912 268,716 &7 325,695
Equity inruments av fair
valice through other
comprehensive insome B — = _l,t02 _ 1,125
“I'::E] 34668 353,682 11,488 879,838
Liabilities
Financial labilisies ar fuiv
valiee threugh profic or loo a7 - - 67
= Currency derivatives - 6,614 = 6,614
~ Credit derivazives - 6,723 - 6,723
Toral 67 13,337 - 13,404
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

51 Falr valoe (consinsesd)
(e} Fair value hierarchy (cominued)
Aotz and Habilities mearured st fair palue (convinued)

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2022 in the balance of Level 3 fir value
measurements are as follows:

Eqey Dete
Fmsihl  wmeen e
ey gkl ehEake

Drinte  abime dooghode oo aher Detvatier
fnidl e cmprhete  copebase T famci Tead
wen poferlon e e = ] e
| Jouy X2 I 103t [l ) e - -
T g ox oz - - = 3
- Resgeied b the ol e o m - i {141 z =
Porchusny - 18 = = 185 = -
31 Dezember M12 - T3l 112 é M -
Tora! paims x by o e e
inchoded T pofi o s for
e axd (bl held ut e
ae] of i, seporring e (1 {1437 - @ f1.241) - -

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2021 in the balance of Level 3 fir value
measurements are a5 follows

Eqey Dkt
B} R
wy sk chimk
Dot ol vl choagh o chomagh oer Derivasier
sl g comprhesde  comprchiishe Taul Baanl Teal
wem poltolon ipeee o e kit [

1 Jrmary 2021 ] 10364 34 - n2 o @
Teuzalerred m lewd 1 - bl - g b1k = =
Tiasslerred o b 3 - {iH) - - ) - -
Terd gt o b
= Reoogeised i the poofi ot kom . e . . i . .
P 1 M ] = 1 = &
Serimey i L =, - g ! 1
30 Decrshes 2801 1 1831 1 & 11488 - -
T gl ce by o ey

incaded in gt o b for

iy v fbileies Beld ot e

d of the mpering e - i) . - s - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Devember 2002
Epremmed t lliodn of Rsniniibl, il selvsrmies. satel)

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value {eontinued)

() Fair valne hlerarchy (moatizued)

Financial sraets and Habiliites wot mearured ai fair value

The mbles below summarise the three levels’ Gir values of "debs securities and asser-backed instruments
mieasared ag amomnised cost” and “debt securities isued” ot presented ar fair value on the satement

of financisl positon:

31 December 2022
Levd 1 Level 2 Leved 3 Total
Financlal assets
Diebe securities and assee-
backed instruments
measared ar amostised cost 217623 917,538 - 1,135,161
Financial liahilities
Diebt securities isseed 21,583 838,205 - 859,784
3I Dmub:r M't
Level 1 Lﬂrl 2 l.a:l 3 Total
Financial assets
Dbt securities and asset-
backed instruments
measured an amortsed cost 184,283 819,487 - 1,003,770
Financial liabilities
Debe securivies lansed 23,262 T2B,537 - 751,799

and marer rate volarilisies.

As ar 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of financisl instruments valued with significant
unobservable Inputs were immaterial, and the effects of changes in significant unobservable

{d) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued with significant unobservable inputs are primarily unlisted equity and
derivative contracts, These financial instruments are valued wsing cash flow discount model and
muarket method. The medels incorporate variows non-observable assumptions such as discount rae

assumptions to reasonably posible alternative asumptions were also immaterial,
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

52 Entrusted lending busimness

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to government agencies, corporations and
individuals. All entrusted loans are Funded by entrusted funds from these entities and individuals, The
Group does not ke any credit risk in relation to these mansactions, The Group act 25 an agent w hold
and manage these assets and liabilitdes ar the direction of the entrustors and receives fee income for the
services provided. The entrusted asets are not the assers of the Group and are not recognited in the
stziement of financial position,

31 December 31 Decermber

2022 2021
Entrusted loans 02,724 105,138
Entrumed funds 92,724 105,138

53 Commitments and contingent liabilities
(a) Credit commitments

The Group's credis commitments take the form of approved boans with signed contrace, credit card
commitments, bank acceprances, lewers of credit and financial guarantees.

The contractual amounts of loans and credit cand commitments represent the amounts should the
contracts be fully drawn upon. The Group provides financial guarsniees and letiers of credit
guarames the performance of customers to third panies. Acocprances comprise undenakings by the
Group to pay bills of mxchange drawn on eustomers. The Group expects most acceptances to be
settled simultancowsly with the reimbursement from the customens.

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Loan commitments
- Oiiginal contractal maturity within ane year 16,007 15,635
~ Orriginal contracrual manerity more than one year

{inchasive) 6,009 7,564
Credit card commiements 5,112 338,186
Suhwu! . 36Ta 261,385
Acceprances 724,330 6,088
Leters of guarantes 116,297 121,565
Levters of credit 171,484 217,381
Guarantees . 185 185
Total 1,379,424 1,369,604

The Group may be exposed 1o credic risk in all the credit businesses above. Group management
periodically awesses the estimated credic risk and makes provision for any expected credit losses. As
the facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the woaal of the contracnual amounts shown
above &5 not representative of expected future cash oarflows,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenrs
For the year ended 31 December 2022
(Epremmed t lllioge of Rsniniibl, il sebvsrmie. smtel)

¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

53 Commitments and contingent liabilities (continised)

() Credir risk-weighted amount of credit commitments

i

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

Credic rish-weighted amount of credin commitmens 418,205 409,233

The credit risk-weighted amount of credit commitments represents the amount caloulased with
reference to the Regulation Governing Capiral of Commercial Banks (Provisional). The risk weights
are determined in aceordance with the eredit status of the eounterpartied, the maturity profile and
ather factors. The risk weights ranged from 0% to 100% for coedit commitments.

Caplial commitmenis

As at the end of the year, the Group’s authorised capital commitments are as follows:

31 December 31 Deceinber

w22 w21
Contracted but not paid
- Purchase of property and equipment 3939 2,139
Approved but not contracted for
- Purchase of property and equipmens - | 4,530
Total 9647 6,668
Underwriting and redemption commitments

The Group has no unexpired commirments for underwriting bonds as a1 31 December 2022,

As an underwriting agent of the PRC government bonds, the Group has the responsibiliey for buying
back those bonds it previously sold should dhe holders decide 1o make an carly redemption of the
bords held. The redemption price for a bond ar any dme before s manarity dare s based on the
coupon value plus any interest unpaid and accrued up to the redemption date, Accrued ingerest
payable o the bond holders is caloulated in accordance with the relevant MOF and PBOC rules.
The redemption price may be different from the fair valse of similar financial instruments raded

ar the redemption date.

As ac the end of the year, the underwritten, sold and immarure national bonds” redemprion
commitments st nominal valise are s follows:

31 December 31 December
222 2021

Redemption commitments 4,320 5,393
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Commitments and contingent labilitiea (continued)

As ar 31 December 2022, the Group was the defendant in cenain pending litgation and disputes
with gross claims of RMEB1,688 million (31 December 2021: RMBET4 million). Provisions have
been made for the estimated losses from such litigations based upon the opinions of the Group's
internal and external legal counsels (Mote ¥ 36). The Group considers that the provisions made are
reasonable and adequeare,

Sobsequent Events
The Group has no significant subsequent event.

271
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
17.48 16.75 16.06 18.06 21.01
16.01 14.86 14.79 15.78 17.93
16.71 15.81 15.44 17.03 19.49
16.38 15.60 15.81 18.05 19.10
100
2022 2022 2022 2022 10 2022 11 2022 12
20.59 20.09 20.83 21.01 20.58 19.74
19.94 19.50 20.17 20.36 19.28 18.94
20.32 19.88 20.44 20.66 19.90 19.35
100
19

100
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2022 12 31
35,825.31
56.86%
839.56

16 50(a)
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2022 12
10,843.22

17.21%

.51(c)

31

142.88

0.25%

73.82%

0.84%
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|ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of China Everbright Bank Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSS") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsihilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financia statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
Statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit losses for 1oans and advances to customers
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The Group uses a number of models and assumptions
in the measurement of expected credit losses, for
example:

Significant increase in credit risk - The selection
of criteria for identifying significant increase in
credit risk is highly dependent on judgement and
may have a significant impact on the expected
credit losses for loans and advances with longer
remaining periods to maturity;

Models and parameters - Inherently complex
models are used to measure expected credit
losses. Modelled parameters have numerous
inputs and the parameter estimation involves
many judgements and assumptions;
Forward-looking information -  Expert
judgement is used to create macroeconomic
forecasts and to consider the impact on expected
credit losses under multiple economic scenarios

given different weights;

Whether financial assets are credit-impaired -
whether a credit
impairment has occurred requires consideration

The determination of

of a number of factors and the measurement of
its expected credit loss is dependent on estimates
of expected future cash flows.

Since expected credit losses measurement involves
many judgements and assumptions, and in view of
the significance of the amount (as at 31 December
2022, gross loans and advances to customers
amounted to RMB3,582.531 hillion, representing
56.86% of total assets, and impairment allowance for
loans and advances to customers amounted to
RMB83.956 hillion),
advances is considered a key audit matter.

impairment of loans and

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 111 1, Note
V 16 and Note V 50(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls related to
the credit approval process, post approval credit

collateral
assessment,

management, loan rating system,

monitoring and loan impairment
including relevant data quality and information

systems.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
loan review procedures. We assessed the debtors
repayment capacity and evaluated the Group's loan
grading, taking into consideration post-lending
investigation reports, debtors financia information,
collateral valuation reports and other available

information.

With the support of our internal credit risk modelling
experts, we evaluated and tested the important
parameters of the expected credit loss model,
related
assumptions, mainly focusing on the following
aspects:

management’'s major judgements and

1. Expected credit loss model:

In response to the macroeconomic changes,
we assessed the reasonableness of the
expected credit loss model methodology and
related parameters, including probability of
default, loss given default, risk exposure, and
whether there was a significant increase in

credit risk.

We assessed the forward-looking
information management used to determine
expected credit losses, including the

forecasts of macroeconomic variables and
the assumptions and the weight of multiple
macroeconomic scenarios; and

We assessed
management’s

reasonableness  of
credit
impairment. For credit-impaired loans and

the

determination  of

advances, we analysed the amount, timing
and probability of management’s estimated
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future cash flows, especially the recoverable
cash flows from collateral.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

2. Design and operating effectiveness of key
controls:

We evaluated and tested the data and
processes used to determine expected credit
losses, including loan business data, internal
credit rating data, impairment system
computational logic, as well as inputs,
outputs and interfaces among relevant
systems; and

We evaluated and tested key controls over
the expected credit loss models, including
approval  of model changes, ongoing
monitoring model  performance, model
validation and parameter calibration.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls related to disclosures
of credit risk and the impairment allowance.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group has applied valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques usually involve subjective judgement and
assumptions. With different valuation techniques and
assumptions applied, the valuation results can vary
significantly.

As at 31 December 2022, the book value of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
amounted to RMB1,084.322 hillion and RMB14.288
billion respectively, representing 17.21% and 0.25%
of total assets and total liabilities, respectively.
Financial instruments which required either direct
(i.e. prices) or indirect (i.e. derived from prices)
inputs, hence categorised within Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, represented 73.82% of total financial
assets measured at fair value; and financia
instruments which regquired significant unobservable
inputs, hence categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, represented 0.84% of total financia
assets measured at fair value. Due to the significance
of financial instruments measured at fair value, and
the uncertainty in valuation, this is considered a key
audit matter.

Relevant disclosures areincluded in Note Il 2 and
Note V 51(c) to the consolidated financia statements.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls related to the valuation
of financial instruments.

We evaluated the valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group through comparison
with the valuation techniques commonly used in the
markets, validation of observable inputs using
external market data, and comparison with valuation
outcomes obtained from various pricing sources.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’'s controls related to
disclosures of fair value.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Consolidation assessment of, and disclosures about, structured entities

In the process of conducting business of financia
asset management and credit asset
transfer, the Group issued financial products and held

investment,

the rights and interests of different structured entities,
including wealth management products, funds and
trust plans. The Group determines whether these
structured entities are to be consolidated based on the
assessment of whether the Group has control over
them through taking into consideration the power
arising from rights, variable returns, and the link
between power and returns.

The assessment of the Group’'s control over
structured entities involves significant judgement and
estimation such as the purpose and design of
structured entities, its ability to direct relevant
activities, interests it holds directly or indirectly, the
performance fee obtained, profit and the exposure to
loss from providing credit enhancement or liquidity
support, etc. The comprehensive analysis of these
factors and the conclusion of whether the Group has
control rights involve significant management
judgement and estimation. Due to the significance of
the unconsolidated structured entities and the
complexity of judgement exercised by management,
thisis considered a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note Il 6 a d
Note V 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls relating to the Group
's assessment of whether it controls a structured
entity.

We assessed the Group’s analysis and conclusions on
whether or not it controls structured entities by
reviewing relevant term sheets to analyse whether the
Group has the obligation to absorb any loss of
structured entities, as well as the Group’s analysis on
its power over structured entities, the magnitude and
variability of variable returns from its involvement
with structured entities. We also assessed whether the
Group had provided liquidity support or credit
enhancement to structured entities, as well as fairness
of transactions between the Group and structured
entities.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s controls over its

unconsolidated structured entities.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE BANK’S 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

oOoOooodn

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for ng the Group
's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no redistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professiona
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financia statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We aso provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Chi Keung.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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